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LALIN VISION

Lalin Property PCL is determined to become a leader
in residential property developer with continuous and
sustainable growth based on business developments,
technologies, innovations, and competitiveness in order
to deliver customers with quality, life of living, and good
society. We, as well as, attach great importance to society,

employees, suppliers, and stockholders.

LALIN CORE VALUES

L AL I N represents the values held by Lalin Property as a guideline for human resources development and business

growth. LALIN is composed of the following:
L Long Term Thinking means

A Adaptation means

LALIN MISSION

Lalin Property PCL is a residential property develop-
ment company that meets standard quality on outstand-
ing location, modern design, impressive service, value
prices, and professional management on good practices
in corporate governance in order to deliver quality of life,
living, and society. As well as, attach great importance to
society, employees, suppliers, and stockholders to achieve

sustainable growth.

long-term thinking with insight into the business’ continued survival and growth.

adaptability to surrounding conditions through analysis of various factors affecting

business success on a regular basis.

L Life Style means

life, life-style and society to customers through construction using only bricks,

true customer understanding in order to respond to and deliver a good way of

rocks, concrete and sand.

Innovation means

the development of new innovations for the purpose of increasing competitive

capacity, e.g., tunnel form and precast methods, etc.

N Networking

means

presence of networks and alliances to create sustainable business success.
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Report of Executive Chairman

The year 2019 was one of difficulty because the effects of the trade war spread and reverberated over every cor-
ner of the world. Consequently, the economies of each country became sluggish, including in China, which is a large
global engine.

The export sector of the Thai economy faced the problem of a slow-down, because most of its trading partner
countries also experienced economic slow-downs and the value of Thailand’s strengthening baht currency exceeded
the currency values of its competitor countries in trade. The tourism sector was sluggish, particularly for Chinese tour-
ists, who are the largest tourist group in the country. Consequently, the growth in terms of income from tourism did not
meet set goals and the only thing left is the engine of expenditures in the government sector, which causes problems
with political technique. Consequently, the establishment of the government, policy announcements and budgets took
too long. Thus, economic power is low and the Thai economy has grown by only 2.4 percent.

Apart from being subject to impact due to a slow-down in foreign demand, particularly from China, Thai real estate
businesses have been affected by more stringent loan-to-value ratio measures set forth by the Bank of Thailand for the
loan offerings of commercial banks. Consequently, post-finance has become more difficult with widespread impact on
the real estate market, particularly the condominium market.

The Company is aware of economic conditions and the condominium market. Thus, we have delayed condominium
construction for the past two years and will continue with particular focus on low-rise housing as well as real demand.
We have also made adjustments in our strategies based on increasing market competition and weaker consumer spend-
ing power. And with the right management and business strategies, the Company has continued to have increased
transfers by 13.2 percent and a higher net profit by 14.7 percent.

As a representative of Lalin, | would like to thank everyone on the Lalin team for devoting their energy, ability and
unity to overcoming various obstacles so well. | would also like to thank our all of our financial institutions, suppliers and

buyers who have always helped support the Company.

C. Ml —

(Chaiyan Chakarakul)
Executive Chairman
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Financial Highlights

$18mM3 2560 2561 2562
dunswsg (@1uunn) / Assets (Million Baht)

Aufpauda (Inventories) 8,478.64 8,529.38 10,063.12

Aunineaan (Total Assets) 9,893.96 10,429.55 11,501.88
KUauna:douvovdoRU @uuin)
Liabilities & Shareholders’ Equity (Million Baht)

ﬁﬁaumuﬁﬂu (Current Liabilities) 2,467.36 1,820.54 2,720.72

uﬁ%u”l,simguﬁﬂu (Non-Current Liabilities) 1,902.63 2,612.82 2,217.42

wilAusan (Total Liabilities) 4,369.98 4,433.36 4,938.14

nuﬁ@@mmsﬁ‘ﬂﬂﬁwmﬁa (Paid up Share Capital) 925.00 925.00 925.00

douaegDiatiu (Shareholders’ Equity) 5,523.97 5,996.20 6,563.74
wWan1satuviu (31uuin) Operation’s Result

se/lfannnisune (Sales) 3,589.20 4,082.06 4,623.04

se/lffsau (Total Revenue) 3,598.92 4,098.66 4,640.93

ﬁ’fl,i%uﬁ”]u (Gross Profit) 1,429.94 1,608.15 1,810.77

flagnd (Net Profit 691.71 777.15 891.51
InguIdudasicoku (UIn) Per Share Figure (Baht)

fAls (11@Nw) 47E (Net Profit (Loss)) 0.74 0.84 0.96

yaA AT (Book Value) 5.97 6.48 7.10

yaA Ry (Par Value) 1.00 1.00 1.00
das1diudaniwAaavnivnasivu (Liquidity Ratio)

FMI1FIUANTNAAD (Current Ratio) 3.49 4.78 3.74

ARIEIUANINARDINYLIALULEY (Quick Ratio) 0.07 0.33 0.08
dasidunaavaduaivisnlunisiinils (Profitability Ratio)

‘ﬂvm’]ﬁ’]vl,?%ul;fu (Gross Profit Margin) 39.84% 39.40% 39.17%

#ns1111991NN13R”1L U (Operation Profit Margin) 24.24% 24.38% 24.74%

amanrinlsgns (Net Profit Margin) 18.97% 19.04% 19.28%

fnamanaLwnugneu (Return on Equities) 12.98% 13.49% 14.20%
dasidiuus:ansniwlunisadiuvu (Efficiency Ratio)

fé’mw@m'auLmumnmi”wﬁuﬁwm (Return on Asset) 7.14% 7.65% 8.13%
dasidouulgurgnivnisidu (Financial Policy Ratio)

ﬁmawﬁ%uﬁi@mumméﬁ@ﬁu (Debt to Equity Ratio) 0.79 0.74 0.75

ﬁmmfﬁaqu‘ammmmgﬁ@ﬁu (Net Debt to Equity Ratio) 0.56 0.45 0.50
ﬁﬁuquﬁuﬁﬁmﬁﬁimé’q (ﬁﬁuﬁu) Number of Outstanding Shares (Million Shares) 925.00 925.00 925.00
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Board of Directors and Management

1. Mr.Taveesak Watcharakawong 73 years old
Position - Chairman
Date of Nomination - August 30, 2002  (Years in position: 17 Year)
Education - Over 30 years experience in Real Estate Business
Director Training - Still not participate in Director training courses of 10D
Working Experience - 2003 - Present Chairman Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd
- 1998 - 2002 Chairman Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.
Disqualifications - No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by dishonest.

- No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the

company in the past one year.
Meeting attendance Last year - Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
- Attended the 2019 annual general shareholders’ meeting
Share Holder (%) - 28.30%
Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be directors in one non-listed company which doesn’t have any conflict of interest to the company.
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2. Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul

Position

Date of Nomination

Education

Director Training

Working Experience

Disqualifications

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

71 years old

Director

Executive Chairman

August 30, 2002  (Years in position: 17 Year)

Bachelor Degree in Commerce (honour) Thammasart University
M.S.Thammasart University

Real Estate Management, Chulalongkorn University # 8

Senior Executive Program 4 Sasin GIBA Chulalongkorn University and
The Wharton School University of Pennsyvania and “Kellogg” Graduate
School of Management North-Western University

The National Defence for joint state-private sectors course, class 14
Capital Market Academy (CMA), Class 7

Director Certification Program (DCP) class 65 - |0D

2003 - Present  Managing Director, Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
1988 - 2002 Managing Director, Lalin Land and House Co.,Ltd.
No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by
dishonest.

No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the

company in the past one year.
Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
Attended the 2019 annual general shareholders’ meeting

25.51%

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be directors in three non-listed companies which don’t have any conflict of interest to the company.
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3. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit

Position

Date of Nomination

Education

Director Training

Working Experience

Disqualifications in the past one year

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

75 years old

Independent Director

Chairman of the audit committee

August 30, 2002  (Years in position: 17 Year)

M.SC in Commerce, University of Santo Tomas, Philippines

BBA (Management) — University of East — Philippines

The National Defense for joint state-private sectors course, class 355
Director Certification Program (DCP) class 63 - 10D

2006 - Present  Director / Senior Executive Vice President

Bangkok Bank Public Co.,ltd.

1996 - 2006  Senior Executive Vice President Special Asset Management
Bangkok Bank Public Co.,ltd.

1973 -1996  Executive, Bangkok Bank Public Co.,ltd.

No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by
dishonest.

No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the
company

Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
Attended board of audit committees’ meeting 4 times out of 4 meetings.
Attended the 2019 annual general shareholders’ meeting

0.00%

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

- Executive Director, Bangkok Bank PCL.

- Independent Director, Nominating and Remuneration committee Bangkok Insurance PCL.

Non-listed Companies

Be directors in two non-listed companies which don’t have any conflict of interest to the company.
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4. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk

Position

Date of Nomination

Education

Director Training
Working Experience

Disqualifications in the past one year.

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

76 years old

Independent Director

Member of the Audit Committee

August 30, 2002  (Years in position: 17 Year)

Certificate in Real Estate Management University at Hawaii

M.B.A. International Trade and Finance, Gothenburg School of
Economics and Business Administration, Sweden

Bachelor of Arts, (Honour First Class) Faculty of Commerce and
Accountancy, Thammasat University

The National Defence for joint state-private sectors course, class 7
Capital Market Academy (CMA), Class 2

Director Certification Program (DCP) class 85 - 10D

1995 — Present Real Estate Management Program — Thammasart University
No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property

by dishonest.

No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with

the company

Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
Attended board of audit committees’ meeting 4 times out of 4 meetings.
Attended the 2019 annual general shareholders’ meeting

0.00%

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

- Independence director and chairman of the audit committee — G J Steel Pcl

- Independence director — Aira Capital Pcl Non-listed Companies

Non-listed Companies

None
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5. Mr.Satit Chanjavanakul

Position

Date of Nomination

Education

Director Training

Working Experience

Disqualifications in the past one year.

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

72 Years old

Independent Director

Member of the Audit Committee

December 23, 2009  (Years in position: 10 Year)

MBA Thammasat University

M.Sc. (Textile Technology), University of Leeds, U.K.

Bachelor of Engineering (Industrial Engineering), Chulalongkorn University
The National Defence for joint state-private sectors course, class 14
Capital Market Academy (CMA), Class 5

International Advanced Management Program, Massachusetts Institute
of technology (MIT), USA.

Hubert Humphrey Fellowship Scholarship - Planning & Resource
Management, Massachusetts Institute of technology (MIT), USA.

APO Scholarship - Effective Problem Solving for Decision Makers;
Japan

Netherlands Government Scholarship - Industrial Quality Control; at
Bouwcentrum Institute, Rotterdam

Director Certification Program (DCP) class 83 - 10D

2004 - 2008  Secretary General, Board of Investment (BOI),

2003 - 2004  Deputy Secretary General, Board of Investment (BOI)
2001 -2003 Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Industry

No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by
dishonest.

No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the
company

Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
Attended board of audit committees’ meeting 4 times out of 4 meetings.
Attended the 2019 annual general shareholders’ meeting

0.00%

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

- Member of audit committee; Asia Plus Group Holding PCL.

Non-listed Companies

Be directors in two non-listed companies which don’t have any conflict of interest to the company.
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6. Mr.Nat Sangarsongkogk 60 years old

Position - Director
- Executive Director
Date of Nomination - August 30, 2002  (Years in position: 17 Year)
Education - Master of Business Administration (MBA), Rangsit University
- Real Estate Management, Chulalongkorn University # 11
Director Training - Director Certification Program (DCP) class 67 - IOD
Working Experience - 2012 - Present Deputy Managing Director, Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2003 -2012  Assistant Managing Director, Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2000 -2002  Senior Project Management Manager,
Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.
- 1989 -2000  Project Management Manager, Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.
Disqualifications in the past one year. - No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by
dishonest.
- No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the
company
Meeting attendance Last year - Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
- Attended the 2019 annual general shareholders’ meeting
Share Holder (%) - 0.04%
Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be a director of Prosper company limited (Subsidiary company which Lalin holds 99.98% of total share)
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7. Mr.Churat Chakarakul

Position -

Date of Nomination -

Education -

Director Training -

Working Experience -

Disqualifications in the past one year. -

Meeting attendance Last year -

Share Holder (%) -

42 years old

Director

Executive Director

April 25,2012  (Years in position: 8 Year)

M.B.A. American University U.S.A.

M.S. (Economic) University of lllinois — Urbana Champaign U.S.A.
Bachelor of Engineering, Chulalongkorn University

New generation leader in Democracy Program Class 3 —

King Prajadhipok Institute’s Society

Director Certification Program (DCP) class 161 - IOD

2004 - Present Deputy Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2003 - 2004 Assistant Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.

2001-2003  SBU2 Director & Corporate Marketing Department Manager
Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.

2001 -2003  Assistant Marketing Manager - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2001 - 2003 Analyst — Investment Banking -
Capital Nomura Securities Public Co.,Ltd.
2001 - 2003  Analyst — Investment Banking - Phatra Securities
Public Co.,Ltd.
No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by
dishonest.
No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the
company
Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
Attended the 2019 annual general shareholders’ meeting

6.36%

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be a director of Prosper company limited (Subsidiary company which Lalin holds 99.98% of total share)
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8. Mr.Wanchai Aranvutikul

Position

Education

Working Experience

53 years old

- Assistant Managing Director - Construction

- M.B.A. - Srinakharinwirot University

- Bachelor of Civil Engineering, King Mongkut’s University of Technology

North Bangkok

- Mini MRE - Thammasat University

- 2015 - Present Assistant Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.

- 2013-2015
- 2012 -2013
- 2007 - 2012
- 2003 - 2007
Share Holder (%) - 0.00%
Family relation with Director & Executive - None

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

None

Senior Project Construction Director -

Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.

Senior Project Manager - TCC Land Co.,Ltd.

Senior Project Manager - Pruksa Real Estate Public Co.,Ltd

Project Director - Ktech Construction Public Co.,Ltd
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9. Mr.Kittichai Thitapanich
Position

Education

Working Experience

Share Holder (%)

Family relation with Director & Executive

45 years old

- Assistant Managing Director - Management

- Master of science in Information Technology - Mahidol University

- Bachelor of Art in Sociology and Anthropology - Kasetsart University

- 2019 - Present Assistant Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.

- 2018 -2019

- 2013 -2018

- 2010-2013

- 2008 - 2010

- 0.00%

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

None

- None

General Manager - VPLS Thailand Co.,Ltd
Senior Project Manager - NIIT Technologies Thailand Co.,LTd
Assistant General Manager at Nissan Motor Thailand co.,Ltd

HR Manager at Packsys Global Thailand Co.,Ltd
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10. Mr.Seri Sintuas 42 years old

Position - Senior Director (Finance & Procurement)
- Company’s Executive Secretary
Education - M.B.A. - Chulalongkorn University
- B.B.A. - Thammasat University
- Certificate in Real Estate Management University of California,
Riverside Extension U.S.A.
- CSP Class 50 - 10D
Working Experience - 2019 - Present Senior Director (Finance & Procurement) -
Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd
- 2015-2019 Finance Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2008 - 2015 Finance Manager - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2006 — 2007 Assistant Finance Manager - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2003 -2005 Trader —The Siam Cement PLC.
- 1999 - 2001 Internal Auditor - Bangkok Bank Public Co., Ltd.
Share Holder (%) - 0.00%
Family relation withDirector & Executive - None
Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be a director of Prosper company limited (Subsidiary company which Lalin holds 99.98% of total share)
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11. Ms.Kanitha Thamviseth 56 years old
Position - Account Manager
Education - Bachelor of Accountancy — Bangkok University

- Mini MBA - Chulalongkorn University
Working Experience - 2003 — Present Account Manager - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 1988 -2002 Assistant Account Manager - Lalin Land and House Co.,Ltd.
Share Holder (%) - 0.00%
Family relation with Director & Executive - None
Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be a director of Prosper company limited (Subsidiary company which Lalin holds 99.98% of total share)
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Change in Shares hold by Company’s directors and management

Positions

Share as of

Jan 1,2019

Bought/
Received
during year

Sold

during year

Share as of

Dec 31,2019

1. Taveesak Watcharakawong | Chairman 261,806,113 0 0 | 261,806,113
2. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director and Executive Chairman 233,775,810 2,200,100 0 | 235,975,910
3. Suvarn Tansathit Independent Director and Chairman of audit committee 0 0 0 0
4. Niputh Jitprasonk Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 0 0 0 0
5. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 0 0 0 0
6. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director and Deputy Managing Director 364,393 0 0 364,393
7. Churat Chakarakul Director and Deputy Managing Director 58,863,636 0 0 58,863,636
8. Wanchai Aranvutikul Assistant Managing Director 0 0 0 0
9. Montree Montreemanee Assistant Managing Director 0 0 0 0
10. Seri Sintuas Finance Director and Company's Executive Secretary 0 0 0 0
11. Kanitha Thamviseth Account Manager 0 0 0 0
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Policy and Overall Business Operations

Significant Changes and Development

Lalin Property Public Co., Ltd. was founded on 8 September 1988 with initial registered capital of 20 million baht
and Mr. Thaweesak Wacharakhawong and Mr. Chaiyan Chakornkul as the first shareholders. The company conducts
housing business under the slogan “Home Built with the Best Intention”. The first housing project under the project name
“Lully Ville” was set up in two areas, namely, Srinagarind and Dhupateme Roads, with a total of 800 housing units on
88 rai of land and a project value of 1,100 million baht. The project has already been closed. Throughout the past, the
company has continually launched housing projects, even during the economic crisis of 1997 when the company was
one of only a few companies in Thailand that did not require debt restructuring and created no NPL for any financial

institutions.

During the time of crisis for the real estate industry, the company started marketing for new housing projects, e.g.
the project Friend-get-Friend and the implementation of escrow accounts to build customer confidence. As a result,
the company was one of only a few companies in the real estate industry with no need to re-negotiate its debt structure
with any financial institution. Moreover, the company was the leader in implementing the strategy to purchase projects
and land as collateral for the NPAs of financial institutions and asset auction from the Financial Sector Restructuring
Authority (FSRA) for further development. As a result, the company was able to develop projects continually and with

annually increasing sales figure and competitive operating costs under today’s conditions of fierce competition.

The company has increased its registered capital consistently to support project development as follows:
1997 Increased registered capital to 250 million baht.
1998 Increased registered capital to 300 million and 400 million baht, respectively.
1999 Increased registered capital to 555 million baht.

2002 Converted to public company on 3 September 2002 and registered in the SET with registered capital

increased to 825 million baht.

2017 Increased registered capital to 925 million baht.

Throughout the past ten years, the company has expanded projects consistently to support business growth and
replace previously completed projects. The company has conducted regular research on market demand and developed
products to meet consumer demands and expand its customer base. In 2010, the company launched a new brand,
“Lanceo”, with single home and modern duplex home projects, designed by a designing company with performance
accepted worldwide with an Organic Contemporary theme blending contemporary work with nature. The following year,
the company launched another new brand, “Lio”, a 2-storey and 3-storey town home project in modern ecology style.
The two brands are for customer base expansion to the market of new generation consumers. As of the end of 2019,

the company had launched a total of 61 “Lanceo” and “Lio” projects valued at approximately 41,000 million baht.

Furthermore, the company launched an 8-storey condominium project to support specific consumer groups,
especially those who are new graduates who have just started working and people who want to live in condominiums
in the city. During 2011-2013, the company launched four 8-storey condominium projects under the brand “Levo” and
“Lib” valued at approximately 1,200 million baht. The first project began to generate income in late 2012. In addition to
expanding customer base to a wider age range, the company also expanded its customer base in terms of geographic
area. The company has expanded its business to provincial markets since 2012, to provinces with capacity such as
Chonburi, Rayong, Chachoensao, and Nakhonratchasima. At the end of 2019, a total of 18 new projects were launched

in provincial markets.
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Business Goals

The company is determined to become the nation’s leading business in the housing business with policy focused
on stable, continual growth and business expansion by taking factors into consideration with prudence and caution and
seeking new business opportunities. The company is considering concepts for developing projects capable of meeting
customer demands from project location, housing development with consideration of functionality, modern design, cost
effectiveness as well as the building of quality society. The company’s motto is “Homes Built with the Best Intention”.
Under normal conditions, the company launches new housing projects every year in areas with capacity, according to
the Five-Corner Home policy, with fair selling prices and quality society, with emphasis on lower middle to high class
customers, and focus on customers with real demand. During the past years, the company continually launched 7 - 9
new projects in each year. And for 2020’s Plan, the company plans to continually launch 9 — 11 more new projects with
an approximate total value of 5,000 — 5,500 million baht. The company set revenue target in 2020 at 5,250 million baht.
In term 3-5 years target, the company set revenue growth at 10-15% per year, and target to increase market share in

townhome segment within price range 1.5-2.5 million baht from 8% to 10%.
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Nature of Business

Lalin Property Public Company Limited is a developer of houses with land for commercial sales. The Company currently
has registered capital of 925 million Baht (of which 825 million Baht is fully paid-up). Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong
serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul as Executive Chairman. The Company is
the sole developer and owner of various residential housing projects, with a primary focus on detached house, semi
detached houses (new concept homes), and townhouses in the Bangkok and greater Bangkok area. The projects
comprise “Lalin GreenVille”; “Baan Lalin in the Park”; “Baan Burirom”; “Lully Ville”, “The Balcony Home”, and the two
new brands named “Lanceo” and “Lio”. The company launched a new condominium project branded “LEVO” in 2011,
and “The LIB” in 2012 to support customer’s needs. The company launched projects which cover 5 major regions of
Bangkok and vicinities, that is, the central city zone, the western zone, eastern zone, northern zone and southern zone.
This has provided the basis for the Company’s business direction for over 30 years. Moreover, since 2012 Company
has started to expand business to other potential provinces. At the end of 2019, Company had already launched 18
projects in up-country market.

With its extensive experience spanning over 30 years, the Company is the leader of the mid market housing
segment, targeting customers looking to purchase homes in the 1.5 - 6 million Baht range. This segment represents a
market supported by real demand, with consumers possessing a household income of between 25,000 -120,000 Baht
per month. This market also includes a significant number of the population. The Company is committed to ongoing
product development, to meet the needs of consumers, whether in terms of project locations; developing house designs
with a regard for functionality; contemporary design; and value for money. This reflects the philosophy carried in the
hearts of all Lalin Property employees: “Houses built on good intentions”.

The Company seeks to develop projects that meet demand for housing in areas that consumers want, striving to
make the Lalin Property name widely associated with value and quality. The homes in each project offer a selection of
designs to choose from. Customers can purchase either one of 3 options in the projects: pre-built homes, semi-pre-built
homes and built-to-order homes. This approach and business strategy has allowed the Company to fulfill the needs of
its customers, inspiring them with confidence in its operations. Company had registered trademark for project’'s names,
and each of project names have their own customer target. At present, Company has project names under management

as follow.

Lalin Greenville Luxe

L U X E

Project Type : Detached House

Target Customer  : High Income Segment. Selling price is above 7 Million Baht.

Lalin Greenville

L - . Qaan3udaa
I~ YV ~ . The Executive
aaﬂ I\SUDG@ douyd & JumRdUTe Frssmamil

Project Type : Detached House

Target Customer  : High Income Segment. Selling price is above 5 Million Baht.
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Baan Lalin
j v Theyo
= e young Executive
Vhuadaa U daa R i
Project Type : Detached House

Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 3.0 — 5.0 Million Baht.

Baan Burirom

Uhuysspes  owgyssuel

ay Lalin Fropeery

Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept)

Target Customer  : Medium Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.2 — 4.0 Million Baht.
Lully Ville

Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept), and Townhouse

Target Customer  : Medium-Low Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 1.0 — 2.5 Million Baht.

The Balcony Home

(( Zhe @afwny Ll

By .Cafm

Project Type . In town Townhouse
Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.5 — 3.5 Million Baht.

LANCEO
5 I
PRIDE
carnceo QANcC20
by L alin Property By Lalin Praperty
Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept) under concept Modern Organic

Contemporary

Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.5 — 4.0 Million Baht.
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LIO

Project Type

Target Customer

LEVO Condo

: 8-storey Condominium. Under concept “Revolution of Life”

Project Type

Target Customer

Selling price’s approximately 1.8 — 3.0 Million Baht.

LIB Condo

LIB

Project Type

Target Customer

s Hy Lalin Proparty

LI C i I_I Il

BY LALIN FROPEATY

: 8-storey Condominium. Under concept “Liberty of Living”

: Townhouse for young generation under concept “Modern Ecology”

: Young generation who want to live in town, and close to electric train station.

: Young generation who want to live in town, and close to electric train station.

: Medium-Low Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 1.5 — 2.5 Million Baht.

Selling price’s approximately 1.4 — 2.5 Million Baht.

The company’s main revenue comes from the real estate business, which can be divided into four types of housing

products, namely, single homes, duplexes, townhouses and condominiums. The revenue from each type of product

can be summarized as follows:

Product Types

Revenue from Sales

Million B

Million B

Million B

Detached House & Semi-Detached

House 1,836.20 51.16%| 1,862.76 45.63%| 1,800.84 38.95%

Townhouse 1,696.03 47.25%| 2,205.61 54.03%| 2,819.91 61.00%

Condominium 56.97 1.59% 13.69 0.34% 2.28 0.05%
Total 3,589.20 4,082.06 4,623.03
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Overview of Real Estate Industry

Condition of Real Estate Industry in 2019

Registered housing units in the Bangkok and Vicinities

Number of newly completed and registered housing units in Bangkok and Vicinities during year 2015-2019

2018 2019
Number of newly completed and registered housing (units)
1. Built by Developers
- Detached house 11,837 12,736 12,129 15,563 14,161
- Semi-detached house 2,366 1,895 2,535 2,101 2,564
- Townhouse and shop house 19,624 17,111 16,634 20,051 21,526
- Condominium 67,551 72,886 63,319 73,121 53,163
Total of building by developers 101,378 104,628 94,617 110,836 91,414
2. Private construction
- Detached house 19,591 19,156 17,995 17,507 18,279
- Semi-detached house 95 119 142 107 123
- Townhouse and shop house 2,689 2,640 2,100 2,385 1,841
Total for private construction 22,375 21,915 20,237 19,999 20,243
Total of newly completed and registered housing 123,753 126,543 114,854 130,835 111,657
Rate of change (%)
1. Built by Developers
- Detached house -9.34% 7.59% -4.77% 28.31% -9.01%
- Semi-detached house -16.10% -19.91% 33.77% -17.12% 22.04%
- Townhouse and shop house 8.67% -12.81% -2.79% 20.54% 7.36%
- Condominium -10.00% 7.90% -13.13% 15.48% -27.29%
Total of building by developers -6.99% 3.21% -9.57% 17.14% -17.52%
2. Private construction
- Detached house -4.61% -2.22% -6.06% -2.71% 4.41%
- Semi-detached house 10.47% 25.26% 19.33% -24.65% 14.95%
- Townhouse and shop house -29.66% -1.82% -20.45% 13.57% -22.81%
Total for private construction -8.47% -2.06% -7.66% -1.18% 1.22%
Total of newly completed and registered housing -7.26% 2.25% -9.24% 13.91% -14.66%
- Detached house 25.40% 25.20% 26.23% 25.28% 29.05%
- Semi-detached house 1.99% 1.59% 2.33% 1.69% 2.41%
- Townhouse and shop house 18.03% 15.61% 16.31% 17.15% 20.93%
- Condominium 54.59% 57.60% 55.13% 55.89% 47.61%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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Summary of Overall Real Estate Industry

Based on the data on the number of housing fully constructed and registered in Bangkok and surrounding areas
of the Real Estate Information Center (REIC), the number of housing fully constructed, registered and built by operators
(subdivisions) in 2019, the total was 91,414 units, a decrease from the previous year by as much as 17.52 percent. The
number of fully constructed, registered single homes in 2019 was 14,161 units, which was a decrease or 9.01 percent
(if considered in detail by type, two-floor single homes, which are considered the main product, the number of registra-
tions was 10,507 units, which is a decrease of as much as 20.23 percent from the previous year). At the same time, the
number of fully constructed, registered townhouses and commercial buildings in 2019 was 21,526 units, which is an
increase of 7.36 percent (if only townhouse products are considered, the number of registrations was 19,786 units, an
increase from the previous year by 12.47 percent, while the number of registrations for two-floor townhouses was 13,557
units, a 10.05 percent decrease from the previous year). At the same time, the number of fully constructed, registered
condominiums in 2019 was 53,163 units, a decrease from the previous year (73,121 units) or a 27.29 percent decrease.

Based on the number of fully constructed, registered subdivisions, there has been practically no growth over the
past four to five years. The year 2019 was a year with a number of negative factors with impact on the market such as
the global economic slow-down, which is partly due to the trade war between the United States and China that has had
far-reaching impact on other countries in the world, including Thailand. In addition, this market is likely to face prob-
lems with the level of household debt, which will probably remain high and is a reflection of consumer buying power.
Moreover, 2019 was also a year when the Bank of Thailand began to enforce measures for controlling loan-to-value
ratios (LTV), which has had tremendous impact on the market, particularly in the condominium group. The sales and
transfer of registration have been substantially lower for the entire market, particularly in the second quarter, which is
the first quarter when the measures were enforced. Nevertheless, the Bank of Thailand and the government have taken
notice of the impact of these LTV measures and begun to see signals of a market slow-down on housing and the Thai
economy. Thus, some issues of the LTV criteria have been lessened and various measures have been gradually is-
sued as market stimuli for the real estate market such as the following: 1) tax cut measures for first-time home buyers;
2) reductions in service fees for transfers of proprietary rights and mortgage fees as low as 0.01 percent for residences
not exceeding three million baht in price and 3) Measures for the “Baan Dee Mee Down” project in which the govern-
ment will help people taking out home loans who have incomes of no more than 1.2 million baht with 50,000 baht per
case, etc. The measures issued by the government in its efforts to provide market stimuli have had positive effects on
the market. Although the overall picture for 2019 is contracted, the decreases have been better than have no measure
for any assistance at all.

In terms of demand for home loans, based on the data on the number of newly offered mortgages collected by the
Real Estate Information Center (REIC) from various commercial banks, state banks and financial institutions, the overall
number of home loans newly offered in 2019 was 640,259 million baht, which is a decrease of 62,641 million baht from
the previous year, or a decrease of 8.91 percent. This is considered a contraction of newly offered housing loans in
nearly ten years since the contraction caused by massive flooding in Thailand in 2011. Nevertheless, the number on
outstanding home loans at the end of 2019 was 4,010,235 million baht, which is an increase from the end of the previ-
ous year at 215,226 million baht, or an increase of 5.67 percent.

Year Value of New Home Loans Growth (%) Value of Outstanding Home Growth (%)
(million baht) Loans (million baht)

2014 575,637 7.63% 2,844,646 11.35%
2015 577,844 0.38% 3,092,947 8.73%
2016 586,050 1.42% 3,320,469 7.36%
2017 633,990 8.18% 3,525,103 6.16%
2018 702,900 10.87% 3,795,009 7.66%

2019 640,259 -8.91% 4,010,235 5.67%
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As for supply, based on survey data on the launching of new projects in Bangkok and surrounding areas by Agency
for Real Estate Affairs Company Limited in 2019 found a supply for the launching of sales for a total of 118,975 units, a
decrease of 4.85 from the previous year with a rather substantial drop in condominium homes at 10.77 percent due to
the LTV measures of the Bank of Thailand that came into effect on 1 April 2019 and have had impact on condominium
sales. Consequently, many developers have had to postpone the launching of new high-rise projects, which left a huge
supply on the market that is gradually decreasing. In 2019, the number of newly launched condominiums was 66,367
units, or a decrease of 10.77 percent from the previous year. At the same time, the overall horizontal view of the number
of newly launched projects in 2019 was 52,608 units, an increase from the previous year by 3.85 percent. If considered
by type, the single home product category increased from the previous year. The total number of newly launched units
for sale was 13,084 units or an increase of 18.18 percent from the previous year. As for duplex units, the number of
newly launched sales was 6,599 units, a decrease of 8.85 percent from the previous year. At the same time, the number
of townhouse units launched for sales was balanced with 31,987 newly launched units in 2019, an increase of 0.85

percent from the previous year.

New Supplies in the Bangkok and Vicinities (Separated by types)

Launched in Launched in Launched in Launched in Growth (%)
2016 2017 2018 2019

Detached House 12,146 10,217 11,071 13,084 18.18%
Semi-detached House 7,287 4,063 7,240 6,599 -8.85%
Townhouse 29,932 35,462 31,717 31,987 0.85%
Shop house 2,860 1,109 632 938 48.42%
Total of Low rise 52,225 50,851 50,660 52,608 3.85%
Condominium 58,350 63,626 74,380 66,367 -10.77%
Vacant land 2 0 0 0 0.00%
Total 110,577 114,477 125,040 118,975 -4.85%

Source : Agency for real estate (AREA)

In recently year, the ratios of projects opened by listed companies increased significantly, reflecting higher confi-
dence from consumers than unlisted companies. Furthermore, superior competitive ability of companies in the market
enabled companies in the market to increasingly take market shares from companies outside the market in the past
several years. In present, the number of new projects and units launched for sale by companies in the market accounted

for ober 80 percent of all units opened for sale.
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Trends for the Real Estate Industry in 2020

Real estate industry trends in 2020 expect this year to be another challenging years for the professionalism of
entrepreneurs in the market. The real estate industry continues to have many direct and indirect risk factors, causing
overall trends of the residential real estate industry for Thailand in 2020 to show trends of contracting from 2019 due
to pressure from economic recession in Thailand and the world. In 2020, there is significant risk of severe recession
for the Thai economy and the global economic recession due to the impact of trade wars by the world’s superpowers
and the coronavirus outbreak spreading from China to other countries around the globe. If the outbreak becomes more

widespread, severe effects on the global economy and Thailand’s economy can be expected.

Furthermore, the residential real estate industry has negative factors from high household debt. This will have significant
impact on consumer buying needs and ability. Furthermore, the economic recession has caused signs of accelerated
visibility for non-performing loans in the commercial banking sector. This will cause commercial banks to implement
stricter policies in considering loans. Consequently, people who want to buy homes to be denied loans or have reduced
limits. Moreover, negative factors from residential loan control measures via the LTV criteria of the Bank of Thailand
became effective since 1 April 2019. Although the Bank of Thailand relaxed certain criterions later to reduce effects on
the market, measures had effects on demand, particularly in the condominium group where customers buy and invest
for profit. Furthermore, foreign demand for condominiums, particularly from Chinese customers, which absorbed supply
in the market in the past, began to clearly slow down since 2019 and more down payments were seen to have been

abandoned due to a slow-down in the Chinese economy.

However, the year of 2020 also has positive factors such as declining interest rates, which will benefit people who want
to purchase housing, including real estate stimulus measures announced by the government, the Ministry of Finance
and the Bank of Thailand to stimulate the real estate sector and Thailand’'s economy such as reducing transfer fees and

mortgage registration fees to 0.01 percent for housing valued at no more than three million baht, the Ban Dee Mee Down

Project to return 50,000 baht to borrowers who took out loans to purchase houses and easement of the LTV criteria by
the Bank of Thailand, etc.
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Risk Factors

In the business operation of the Company, the potential risks affecting to the operation of the Company in the
future are as followed;

1. Risks from economic slow-down

In 2019, Thailand’s economy grew at 2.4 percent, which decelerated growth compared to previous years when
the economy was able to show 4.2-percent growth in 2018 and 4.0 percent growth in 2019. In addition, there have
been signals indicating further economic slow-down, particularly during the fourth quarter when growth was only 1.6
percent, which is the lowest growth rate in the past 21 quarters, or over 5 years. The main factors affecting Thailand’s
economic growth in 2019 and causing the Thai economic growth to under-perform were the effects of the recessive
global economy, which has been subject to impact from the trade war between the United States and China, which
has had impact on the Thai export sector, resulting in negative export numbers for Thailand throughout the year at 4.9
percent. Although the private consumer sector has continued to have 4.5-percent growth, public sector expenditures
were only 1.4 percent, partly due to delays in post-election budgetary allocations. As for investment figures, the overall
picture for 2019 was able to show 2.2-percent growth with 2.8-percent growth from private sector investments, while
public sector investments were able to show only 0.2-percent growth.

The real estate development business is a field of business that is marked by close connections and movement
in the same direction as economic conditions. Therefore, if overall economic conditions are recessive or slowed down,
there is generally going to be impact on confidence and consumer spending power, because decisions to buy homes
involve long-term obligations. So, if future economic conditions or directions are in a slow-down, this factor will make
consumers delay their decisions to buy homes, so they can observe the situation.

In early 2020, many people expected the Thai economy to keep growing at a low rate or at a rate similar to 2019.
However, with added risk from widespread coronavirus outbreaks in China and increasing infections in many countries,
the coronavirus outbreak is expected to have severe effects on the global economy, including Thailand’s economy. If
the outbreak situation becomes more severe and widespread, there will be ongoing impact on the tourism sector and
other sectors of the economy, which may cause the country’s GDP in 2020 to be negative for the first time in ten years
since 2009 when the Thai economy was affected by the sub-prime loan crisis in the United States.

Risks from economic slow-down in 2020 remain factors worthy of close monitoring and assessment. If the corona-
virus epidemic spreads further, the economy will be subject to substantial impact. In cases where unexpected events
occur or cases where the global economy, particularly the economies of key countries, does not grow as expected,
the overall Thai economy may be affected. This will cause the economy to slow down with direct and psychological
effects, which may cause consumers to delay purchasing decisions. The company always assesses economic risks
closely in the area of the domestic economy and foreign economies. The company normally considers economic risks
at company director meetings and executive director meetings in order to assess the economy and future trends for two
months per time. The aforementioned risk assessments are used in planning and modifying the organization’s strategy
to be consistent and appropriate with economic directions at each time.

2. Risks from the Coronavirus Outbreak

In early 2020, the coronavirus outbreak occurred with its origin in China. The coronavirus began to spread to
other countries with severe effects on economic activities. If Thailand and other countries are unable to control this
outbreak and the numbers of infections and deaths increase, there will be severe economic impact and many people
will become unemployed with reverberating effects on every industry. If the epidemic lasts for more than four months,
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severe economic recession will take place worldwide. The Thai economy will contract for the first time in over ten years
and may recede more severely if the epidemic’s severity and duration are greater than expected. If the overall economy
is severely affected, the real estate sector will be subject to impact no differently from other affected business sectors.
The company holds meetings and monitors the situation closely. The company will modify strategies to suit situations
according to assessments of potential risks.

3. Risks from High Competition in the Real Estate Business

The overall real estate sector in 2019 slowed down. When considered retrospectively, registration numbers over
the past 2 — 3 years shows the overall real estate business to have almost no growth in line with the economy’s inabil-
ity to grow effectively. In addition, although household debt per GDP is lower, household debt remains high, thereby
weakening consumer buying power. Moreover, land prices rose recently, particularly the price of land along BTS lines,
causing consumer buying power to be unable to catch up. This caused overall demand for housing to grow only slightly.
In addition, the market, particularly the condominium market, shows significant signals of profit speculation including
loan issues, causing the Bank of Thailand to begin implementing LTV control measures in order to reduce market
speculation. Condominium project sales have been significantly affected, causing many entrepreneurs to delay high-
rise project launches. In addition, many entrepreneurs in the stock exchange have attempted to modify strategies to
create business growth with more need to expand the market to other segments. Some entrepreneurs who developed
only high-end housing have expanded to lower markets while most entrepreneurs who market mid-low level housing
attempted to increase ratios in high-end housing. Some entrepreneurs who previously focused on high-rise projects
have increased development ratios for low-rise housing project to compensate for the shrinking condominium market,
which will cause the overview of competition in 2020 to show trends of more severe competition after 2019.

The company has been in the business for 30 years. Therefore, the company has expertise in the real-estate
business. Investments for the development of each project receive thorough consideration by the Executive Commit-
tee with feasibility studies for each project, including in-depth market studies of supply and demand at each location.
The company has research, business development and product development sections in the company. Therefore, the
company is able to reduce risks caused be higher competition in the real-estate business.

4. Risks arising from interest rate change

The financial situation in 2018 and 2019 showed significant fluctuations that differed from most market expecta-
tions. In 2018, overall returns for US government and Thai government bonds rose, particularly in the second and third
quarters. In 2018, the Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) decided to raise the policy rate four times, bringing
the US policy rate to 2.25 — 2.50 percent at the end of 2018 while the Financial Institutions Policy Committee (FIPC),
Bank of Thailand, raised the policy rate for the first time in seven years, causing Thailand’s policy rate to rise to 1.75
percent from 1.50 percent. In late 2018, many parties expected the market to have rising interest rates. However, in
2019, global interest rate directions did not meet market expectations. Interest rates returned to a declining direction.
The FIPC reduced the policy rate twice to 1.25 percent. In early 2020, the policy rate was reduced twice to support the
economy, which was expected to have severe recession, causing the policy rate to drop to 0.75 percent, the lowest level
in history. Regarding the minimum retail rate (MMR) of commercial banks, which affect consumers’ ability to purchase
housing, the minimum retail rate declined in line with the policy rate. The MMRs of four major commercial banks were at
6.50 — 6.75 percent at the end of 2019 and showed trends of declining further in 2020 according to lower policy rates.
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If interest rates rise, this may have some effect on consumers’ ability to purchase residences; however, the inter-
est rate trend is in downturn in 2020. Therefore, it is a benefit for buyers who want to buy house. The Company has low
liabilities. Thus, the Company’s interest expenses are low when compared to the Company’s income. Furthermore, the
Company has strict management of risks from interest rate changes and liquidity. For example, the Company issues
long-term loans shares with fixed interest rates and adjusts loan share terms to be suitable to changing situations.
Moreover, the Company issues bills of exchange to adjust short-term liquidity and cut financial costs. The Company
negotiates with financial institutes to make long-term loan agreements with fixed interest rates, makes committed lines
with commercial banks as a reserve balance and the Company consistently monitors domestic and overseas financial
situations by inputting issues for consideration at every Executive Committee meeting in order to assess situations and

manage appropriately in a timely manner.

5. Risks from more stringent loan offerings by commercial banks

Commercial banks have recently become stricter in their consideration of credit and loans concerning both loans
for entrepreneurs (pre-finance) and loans for consumers (post-finance). In terms of pre-financing, commercial banks
began to increase stringency in financial support for projects during the past year by setting various additional terms,
particularly for groups of people with no previous experience in the real estate business and groups of non-listed com-
panies. Hence, those companies are finding it more and more difficult to access sources of financial support which can
be considered an advantage for the industrial sector in helping to increase market supply. Business-wise, risks are
incurred with such low access to monetary sources. Due to the Company’s strong financial status, our debt-equity ratio
is very low in comparison to the industry average. Furthermore, the Company has a good history of long-term financial
discipline without ever applying for debt restructuring or non-performing loans with any financial institution, even in dur-
ing the economic crisis in 1997. Hence, the Company is well-known by various commercial banks. Apart from this, the
Company has made succinct financial plans with preparation of sufficient liquidity and in concurrence with the Company’s
plans for business growth. Moreover, the Company has also prepared sufficient long- and short-term lines of credit for
business growth in line with the Company’s plans, including sufficient liquidity to handle severe economic deceleration.

In terms of credit for consumers (post finance) last couple year, commercial banks have also been stricter in their
considerations, partly due to the figures for household debts which escalated late last year. The current conditions in
which the personal credit industry is enjoying rapid growth have had impact on consumer spending behavior where
consumers spend money in advance via personal credit, e.g. credit cards and various personal loans, and also the
Government’s first car buyer policy. This has had the effect of reducing the home buying power of consumers. At the
same time, commercial banks have stricter criteria in considering loans for people who want to buy homes. For home
purchases, most customers need to rely on loans from commercial banks for approximately 90 — 95 percent of the home
price. Therefore, the Company'’s realized income inevitably depends upon the consideration of commercial banks in
granting loans. If commercial banks become stricter, the Company’s realized income may be reduced in conjunction
with sales due to some customers who are refused loans by commercial banks. Nevertheless, the Company has closely
monitored consumer conditions and the policy of each commercial bank in granting loans in order to revise policy as
suitable for each period of time. In addition, the Company cooperated with some commercial banks in order to propose
special conditions for customers buying homes in the Company’s projects, e.g. granting loans for 100 percent of the

home price at a lower interest rate than the market and step payment programs, etc.

6. Risks arising from Housing Loan Governance Measures of the Bank of Thailand

At the end of 2018, the Bank of Thailand (BOT) issued criteria governing for housing loans and other loans related
to housing loans by setting controlling criteria to prevent financial institutes from allowing housing loans and related
loans exceeding the loan to value ratio (LTV ratio) specified by the Bank of Thailand. The aforementioned measures will
become effective on 1 April 2019 and onward.
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According to the new criteria, in cases where residences are valued below ten million baht and the residence is
a first horizontal home, the LVT ratio is set at 95 percent. However, the LTV ratio for condominium residences is 90 per-
cent. In the case of loans for a second home, the LTV ratio is 80 if the first home’s payments have been made for less
than three years. However, if the first home’s payments have been made for more than three years, the LTV ratio is set
at 90 percent. In the case of loans for a third home and up, the Bank of Thailand specified the LTV ratio at 70 percent.
Later in late 2019 to early 2020, the Bank of Thailand relaxed the old LTV criteria on the following issues: 1) The Bank
of Thailand relaxed criteria for syndicated loans from counting loans as shared by every person to considering cases
where co-borrowers have no ownership rights in housing as cases where housing loans were never taken out; 2) The
Bank of Thailand increased the LTV ratio in the case of first homes valued at no more than ten million baht to maintain
the old LTV ceiling at 100 percent and allowed loans to be take out at an additional ten percent for necessary living
expenses; and 3) In the case of a second house purchase valued at no more than ten million baht, the Bank of Thailand
reduced the repayment period for the first home from three years to two years and allowed an LTV ratio of 90 percent
to be used.

Effects from the aforementioned LTV control measures will require people who want to purchase homes to have
more savings before purchasing homes. Nevertheless, the Company believes issuance of the aforementioned LTV control
measures will have a positive effect on the overall housing industry in the long-term. The Company’s risks of effects from
the aforementioned measures are rather limited because most of the Company’s products are in the horizontal group.
Furthermore, the Company’s customers are real demand customers who make purchases to live in and are first-home
purchasers. Ordinarily, customers have some savings already before making a decision to purchase a residence. Nev-
ertheless, the Company will closely assess effects on the overall industry after the aforementioned measure becomes
effective and the Company will adjust business plans to be consistent with the situation.

7. Risks from the rise of construction cost

The average oil price in 2019 was 64 dollars per barrel, a lower price when compared to 71 dollars per barrel in
2018. Furthermore, the overall price was more stable than in the past when the oil price peaked at over 130 dollars per
barrel in mid-2012 before gradually lowering since the end of 2014 to 30 dollars per barrel in early 2016 or a decline of
over 70 percent before gradually rising to 55 dollars per barrel in 2017 and rising to 71 dollars per barrel in 2018. Oil is
the cost of almost every type of goods including construction materials. In addition, consumer product prices usually
move in the same direction as oil prices, causing the price of some construction materials to rise slightly in 2017 — 2018
in line with higher oil prices. Moreover, demand pull is increasing from a growth in construction in the private sector
including construction in major public utility projects of the government sector. In the past, after recognizing signs of
a rise in some construction material prices, the company made appointments with the company’s suppliers of certain
products in order to make an agreement and determine some fixed prices before prices rise. However, the slowdown
of the global economy and the Thai economy including continually lower oil prices and trends of significant declines in
2020 due to the global economic recession have reduced the world’s demand pull, causing construction material prices
to show possibility of becoming lower due to higher supply than demand. Therefore, there is limited risk from a potential
rise in construction costs in 2020. The company has compact management of construction material cost risks by mak-
ing independent purchases of main materials. And because the company has many projects on hand, the company
has high negotiating power with ability to make agreements with sellers on prices for large purchases. Furthermore,
the company closely monitors price movements of key construction materials including domestic and foreign market
directions. If the company considers price trends to be escalating, the company will make agreements on fixed prices
in advance. The company will negotiate with the company’s suppliers for key items such as steel, floor panels and roofs,
etc., to set appropriate purchasing prices. Moreover, the company attempts to seek other quality replacement materials
in addition to implementing new construction technologies as deemed fitting.
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8. Risks arising from lack of skilled labors in construction works

The unemployed rate in Thailand has been in the low level for consecutive years which cause the lack of labors
in some fields of work. In addition, by reason of the expanding in construction and real estate sector, the expanding
investment in large public utility projects, both roads and railway mass transportation system, of the Government, and
also that of Thailand becoming aging society. As a result, the lack of labor in the construction sector was increasingly
severe in the past few years. However, the Company has the policy of risk management in this aspect by applying new
construction technologies to replace some previous construction system, which can reduce labors. For example, the
tunnel form construction system is applied to the construction of town houses and the precast system is applied to the
construction of single houses and condominiums. Moreover, the Company assigns the section responsible for supervis-
ing and studying new construction technologies, both domestic and international, in order to consider the appropriate-
ness and application. Additionally, the Company plans to retain the former contractors by continuously and regularly
assigning construction works so that contractors are able to support their own labors, building the good relationship
with contractors of the Company; such as, holding banquets, awarding contractors having the best performance; and
distributing construction works based on skills and abilities of each contractor. The Company will also establish project
construction manager, project engineer, head of project construction supervisor, construction works supervisor, and
quality control officers to control and oversee construction works of contractors so that the quality of construction works
of each contractor will be assured.

9. Risks arising from the construction of pre-built homes

Following the economic crisis, most entrepreneurs apply the strategy of semi-pre-built homes to create the con-
fidence of consumers. Such strategy is necessary to spend the high cost which probably causes the risk of financial
liquidity and the risk arising from the changing behavior of consumers. However, the Company has the low level of such
risk because the Company has studied the behavior of consumers thoroughly and established the construction plan
efficiently. The plan is to combine the products, such as, pre-built home, semi pre-built home, and built-to-order home.
The beginning of the construction depends on the estimation of sales. In addition, since the Company has the low ratio
of liability per capital, the strict policy of cash flow management, and the large amount of excess equity in any financial

institutes, so the Company has the extremely low risk of financial liquidity shortage.

10. Risks arising from natural disasters

At the end of the year 2011, Thailand suffered from the most severe flood crisis in 50 years, which widely caused
impacts and damages totaling over 1.2 trillion Baht. The real estate sector was affected directly and indirectly from this
situation, resulting to the buying decision of consumers, especially the project located in the severe flood-affected area.
In addition, some consumers decided to change locations from severe flood-affected area to no flood-affected area.
Some consumers changed their minds to buy accommodation in form of condominium instead. However, this risk factor
is limit in present situation.

Regarding to the Company, the risk management is provided to various aspects, such as, the project opening in
many areas, which is the original business operation principle of the Company. As a result, the impact of the flood is
limited to some projects only. Many projects of the Company are located in no flood-affected areas. It is considered to
be the management of risk sharing in terms of location which the Company is aware of this prior to the flood situation.
Additionally, the Company also shared the risk of products by expanding more vertical projects in 2012. Furthermore,
the Company also expanded the projects to the region market where 17 projects have been launched in the Eastern
part and North-eastern part of Thailand.
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11. Risks arising from land procurement for project development

Over the years, the price of lands in some locations, especially the location nearby sky train and areas providing
new developed utilities, such as, extension line of BTS, new line of BTS, extension line of roads and expressways, etc.,
dramatically increased since the economy and real estate business expanded by reasons of the increasing accommo-
dation demand of citizens and the expansion of regional market. This resulted to the higher price of lands in provincial
areas which increased rapidly in such period.

In addition, land procurement for project development is necessary to carefully study the use of such land, includ-
ing the financial and marketing feasibility, and also consider relevant laws, such as, City Planning Act, etc. However, the
new City Planning Act which was announced in 2013 has been modified the use of land in some locations. In acquiring
land, it's necessary to study of land use act. Some types of accommodation may be unable to construct in some loca-
tions. Also has to study the provisions of Floor Area Ratio — FAR and Open Space Ratio — OSR, including the provisions
of the environment permit. All of these are risks that may occur from land acquisition. Nevertheless, the Company strictly
manages the risk from land purchase by studying marketing feasibility, deeply analyzing returns obtained from the in-
vestment of each land, and studying limitations of laws and other regulations of each land before buying. The decision
of land purchase will be considered carefully and approved by the Executive Committee.

12. Risks arising from Liquidity Risks

Based on the Company’s financial ratios at the end of 2019, the Company’s current ratio is 3.74 times and the
Company’s quick ratio is at 0.08 times. The aforementioned ratios may be considered low in line with the nature of the
real-estate development business, which has a high proportion of inventory out of all assets. According to consideration
of the Company’s interest bearing debt at the end of 2019, the Company’s liabilities were only at 3,387 million baht while
the Company’s cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2019 were at 124 million baht and Company’s equities were at
6,564 million baht or Net Interest Bearing Debt / Equity ratio as low as 0.50 times.

At the end of 2019, the Company’s debt/equity ratio was 0.75 times, closed to that of in 2018 and 2017 which were
at 0.74 times and 0.79 times, respectively. This ratio is low when compared to the overall industry average which were at
1.40 times. The Company adheres to financial discipline and has done so for over 30 years from the Company’s found-
ing. The Company never creates overwhelming and uncontrollable debts. The Company is one of only a few real-estate
development companies in Thailand to have not been required to enter a debt restructuring process with any financial
institute during the economic crisis of 1997. Thus, the Company receives good reliability and support from commercial
banks. At the end of 2018, the Company has approximately two billion baht in unused committed lines with commercial
banks, which is sufficient to repay all loans due for paymentin 1 — 2 years.
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Shareholding Structure and Management

Corporate securities

1. Ordinary Shares

As of December 31, 2019, the Company had registered capital equivalent to 925,000,000 Baht, of which 924,999,441
Baht was paid-up. This comprises 924,999,441 ordinary shares carrying a par value of 1 Baht per share.

According to Thai NVDR Co., Ltd.’s data, 22,590,031 of the Company'’s ordinary shares were held by investors
investing through non-voting depository receipts (NVDRs) as of August 30, 2019, representing 2.44% of all paid-up
shares. As such shares are not entitled to a voting right (except for a decision to delist the stock), the holders of non-
NVDR shares have 2.50% more of the voting right. As a result, holders of only 24.39% of the paid-up ordinary shares will
have a voting right equal to 25% of all voting shares. The investors can check the most updated names of company’s

stock holders investing through Thai NVDR Co.,Ltd. at The Stock Exchange of Thailand’s website (www.set.or.th)

2. Debentures

As of December 31, 2019, the company had 9 tranches of outstanding debentures which have total value at 2,940

Million Baht as below.

2.1) Unsecured debentures No.1/2017 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption

Underwriter

Registrar

Secondary Market

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 1/2017 Due B.E. 2020

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without de-

benture holder’s representative Debentures

500,000 Units

1,000 Baht

500 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
February 24, 2017

February 24, 2020

Fixed coupon rate of 3.40%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on February 24, 2020
None

CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited

United Overseas Bank Public Company Limited
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
Thai BMA
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2.2) Unsecured debentures No.2/2017 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

2.3) Unsecured debentures No.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption

Underwriter

Registrar

Secondary Market

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 2/2017 Due B.E. 2020

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture

holder’s representative Debentures

70,000 Units

1,000 Baht

70 Million Baht

Private Placement to not more than 10 investors (PP10)
July 7, 2017

July 7, 2020

Fixed coupon rate of 3.30%

Semi-Annually

Bullet principal payment at maturity on July 7, 2020
None

United Overseas Bank Public Company Limited
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA

3/2017 Details of debentures as below.

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 3/2017 Due B.E. 2020

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture

holder’s representative Debentures

370,000 Units

1,000 Baht

370 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
July 27, 2017

July 27, 2020

Fixed coupon rate of 3.30%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on July 27, 2020
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Asia Plus Group Holdings Public Company Limited
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA
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2.4) Unsecured debentures No.1/2018 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company

Limited No. 1/2018 Due B.E. 2021

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture

holder’s representative Debentures

500,000 Units

1,000 Baht

500 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
March 7, 2018

March 7, 2021

Fixed coupon rate of 2.95%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on March 7, 2021
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA

2.5) Unsecured debentures No.2/2018 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 2/2018 Due B.E. 2021

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture

holder’s representative Debentures

100,000 Units

1,000 Baht

100 Million Baht

Private Placement to not more than 10 investors (PP10)
April 17,2018

March 25, 2021

Fixed coupon rate of 2.95%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on March 25, 2021
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA
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2.6) Unsecured debentures No.3/2018 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

2.7 Unsecured debentures No.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 3/2018 Due B.E. 2021

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture

holder’s representative Debentures
400,000 Units

1,000 Baht

400 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor (I1)
August 10, 2018

August 2, 2021

Fixed coupon rate of 3.22%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on August 2, 2021
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
Thai BMA

4/2018 Details of debentures as below.

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 4/2018 Due B.E. 2023

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture

holder’s representative Debentures

500,000 Units

1,000 Baht

500 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
November 16, 2018

November 16, 2023

Fixed coupon rate of 4.50%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on November 16, 2023
None

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA
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2.8) Unsecured debentures No.1/2019 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

2.9) Unsecured debentures No.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption

Underwriter

Registrar

Secondary Market

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company

Limited No. 1/2019 Due B.E. 2024

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture

holder’s representative Debentures
200,000 Units

1,000 Baht

200 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor (I1)
February 11, 2019

February 11, 2024

Fixed coupon rate of 4.20%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on February 11, 2024
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
Thai BMA

2/2019 Details of debentures as below.

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 2/2020 Due B.E. 2023

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture

holder’s representative Debentures

300,000 Units

1,000 Baht

300 Million Baht

Private Placement to not more than 10 investors (PP10)
August 8, 2019

August 8, 2022

Fixed coupon rate of 3.40%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on August 8, 2022
None

United Overseas Bank Public Company Limited
Phatra Securities Public Company Limited

CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA

The Outstanding of Bill of Exchange as of December 31, 2019 is 450 Million Baht
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Top 10 major Shareholders as of August 30, 2019

As of August 30, 2019, the top 10 Shareholders as recorded in the Shareholder Registrar are presented as follows.

No. Name of Shareholder Number of Shares %
1 Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong 261,806,113 28.30
2 Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul 233,775,810 25.27
3 Mr.Churat Chakarakul 58,863,636 6.36
4 LGT BANK (SINGAPORE) LTD 40,576,257 4.39
5 Ms.Pornchanok Watcharakkawong 37,319,657 4.03
6 Miss.Usana Chakarakul 30,833,333 3.33
7 Mr.Tanakrit Saimuckka 28,923,090 3.13
8 Mr. Kenneth Rudy Kamon 25,628,778 2.77
9 Thai NVDR Co.,Ltd. 22,590,031 2.44
10 UBS AG SINGAPORE BRANCH 19,957,575 2.16
Company has group of shareholder which might vote in the same direction as follow.
No. Name of Shareholder Number of Shares %
Group of Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong
1 Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong 261,806,113 28.30
2 Ms.Pornchanok Watcharakkawong 37,319,657 4.03
3 Mrs.Paetai Watcharakkawong 5,606,060 0.61
Group of Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul

1 Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul 233,775,810 25.27
2 Mr.Churat Chakarakul 58,863,636 6.36
3 Miss.Usana Chakarakul 30,833,333 3.33
4 Mrs.Kannika Chakarakul 5,606,060 0.61

Dividend payment policy

The Company has a policy to provide dividends in the rate of not less than 30 percent of net profit after taxes,

barring any exceptional circumstances and so long as such payment does not significantly affect the normal operations

of the Company. The decision to offer dividends takes into account various factors, such as the Company’s operating

performance and financial status; liquidity; business expansion; and other factors relating to corporate administration.

The dividend pay-out must be approved by Shareholders as appropriate, as well as the Board of Directors.

In 2019, the company proposed to the Annual General Shareholder’s Meeting to consider and approve the allocation

of profits by paying cash dividend at the rate of 0.385 baht per share which is approximately 356,124,785 baht (or ap-

prox. 39.96% of net profit), details as follows.
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Historical Dividend Payments
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Net Profit / Share (Baht) 0.33 0.51 0.52 0.43 0.61 0.74 0.84 0.96
Dividend Paid / Share
Cash Dividend / Share (Baht) 0.18 0.245 0.27 0.225 0.1385 0.30 0.34 0.385
Stock Dividend / Share (Baht) - - - - 0.1212 - - -
Paid ratio (Existing : New share) - - - -1 8.25:1 - - -
Dividend Paid / Share (Baht) 0.18 0.245 0.27 0.225| 0.2597 0.30 0.34 0.385
Dividend Paid / Net Profit (%) 55.16% | 48.20% | 51.44% | 52.26% | 42.82% | 40.76% | 40.47% | 39.96%




76 USGN ada wSowiwas#h 911ia (UKIBU) s1evuls=91U 2562

TAsvasivovdAns

ALUENSSUNISUSUN
(Board of Director)

AUNSSUNISUSKIS
(Executive Board)

ASSUNSWYQNIS l
(M . “D' t ) 00 00 0000000000000 OEOCOOCEONOSGINOSNONONONONOSNONONONONONOSNONONOSNONOSNONDS
anaging birector

drunnssunisvanis

(Managing Director’s Office)

SOVNSSUNISIAMISIKEY
(Deputy Managing Director)

sovnssunisgvamsikey

(Deputy Managing Director)

Corporate Marketing Finance &
& Business Procurement
Development

|
BU2 '

SBU1 I

SBU3 '

| Project | Project | Project | Corpo[ate.
L Accouting Zone 1 Y Zone 1 Y Zonel Y Zone 1 Y Communication
—
Government —  Project | Project » Project - Project — I\I/I?ae'::;tri;?
== Coordination & Zone 2 4 Zone 2 4 Zone 2 4 Zone 2 y
Legal Affairs
| Project _ Project | Project | Project | Product
| CRM Zone 3 4 Zone 3 4 Zone 3 4 Zone 3 y Development Y
——

| Project . Project | Project | Project . E-Marketing
Zone 4 4 Zone 4 4 Zone 4 4 Zone 4 4 y

| Project . Project | Project | Project | Business
Zone5 Zone5 Zone5 ) Zone5 Development Y

- Condominium



Annual Report 2019

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

77

ALUENSSUNISASIVADU
(Audit Committees)

wWheasavaaunelu

(Internal Audit Department)

WE29NSSUNISYANIS
@NYUSKISLIUNDESID

WYIUNSSUNISIANTS
d1gNISUSKIS

(Assistant Managing Director
- Management)

(Assistant Managing Director -
Construction Management)

Quality

Control

Construction Construction Construction Construction Construction Precast
Management Management
Center (CMQ) & Innovation )i | MIS
Project Project Project Project Construction IF:rté%ast B
B "~ Management actory
Zone 1 Y Zone 1 Zone 1 Zone 1 Y 9 Corporate
Strategy
| Project Project Project Project | Construction New
Zone 2 4 Zone 2 Zone 2 Zone 2 4 Planing Technology Human
Resource
| Project Project Project Project | Survey
Zone 3 4 Zone 3 Zone 3 Zone 3 4 Special
Projects
| Project Project Project Project
Zone 4 4 Zone 4 Zone 4 Zone 4 4
| Project Project Project Project
Zone 5 4 Zone 5 Zone 5 Zone 5 4




78

USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111A (UKBU) s1evuds=91U 2562

Tasvasivnisdans

1)

ALUNSSUNISUSUN

Tt 2562 UFEMANN9LsTgNAMIENITNNNIUTENTINAU 5 AT Te D4 FUR 31 FUdNAN 2562AMUENITNNNTLTENE

Auau 7 v Taeludnuauiiiinesunisdasyaanet] 3 vinw dsznausian

da-ana AU

1. Wedng Ses¥An1nad 1sea1ungINnIg

2. wiglrafiug 91Asna N97N19 WATLILEIUNIINNITLTMNG

3. WNEI49990U UnuAdimel N77UNNT NITUNNTBATY LAZLILEIUNTTNNIATIAAAL
4. UNEUWNE AnTUTa9A N774N17 NITUNITRATE LWAZNITNNTATIAADL

5. WEA136 T1eYLE9ng N33UN1T NITUNNTRATY LAZNITUNNTAIIRAADL

6. Wiy adrgaAszd N994N19 LATNITUNNTLINNG

7. Wity 1Ama NTTUNNT WATNTINNNTLTUNT

Tnaduneds Augdad Anssdiumdaiuaayniiizem

s198oNnsSUNISHTSIUNDAVLNUNNWUMUKUDEDSUSOOUSUN

(1)

()

wevdAng Jasiannaed  walaedud 1ama wienly adraaased nesunisasdluanuvinuiiasansilade

foufiu wazilsssiumsdAtyaeatiiem dasndnaunanssunislid

el TIAINA 38 ‘lmf;lmﬁ adnaaaseyf vire u’]ilﬂ]i‘ﬁ]g TIAINA ﬂﬁum?mﬂmmwuﬂumumuum

@’1?134@“]1@LL@“‘]J‘E!‘”V]UW?W@W?]EU“H@\']U?HV] sLLLLﬁ“ﬂ\'iﬁQﬁl‘ﬂiﬂ‘H

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

m@wcyﬁm“l%flvmﬁqmmu%mq@, siaangnlglnin, nnsleudviuaziulaw@nsnisldlnin, aenane
waszuuamheianiglunarnisuanlasnisdnassnay, aeAuRulseiunis i, Tauusslautu
tsziunslglnin, na@nldlni

m@@uﬁywm‘l%{iﬂﬂi:ﬂﬁqmwﬁ@mﬁ, ﬁi‘ﬂﬂﬂﬂqﬂ’}ﬂ‘f{i’]ﬂi‘zﬂ’], nleudnzuaznisiuleudnanisldiin
tszil, aaldeanuuuwasilszunusaiszuudseil, yavEnensE IS el sziannelunay
menanlasanisdnassiag, seAnEulssiunnsldindsal, TaunarulenGulssiunsldinsyl,
muﬁnﬁﬁﬁﬂizm, nsaelaunsldiingszdifhunnns

| '
e A ° v o

gunnFaaialunanniuinsdwst, nnaindnsnisldvsneaningdny, Sumndaginldiuiemld swdisding
Sy Lﬁfaﬁ%ﬁumﬂm, N17UUNLLATL TN

ma‘n@@um’m/si@“lmum’]m/uf’ﬂﬂu@ummmﬂﬁwﬂrmwlmumﬂmlm ALMULENIUINTNNTMTREIANS
la 78955 1w tlgna¥eennns, eneusnans, daudasenmsynuszan, nisoubiu, S ATTA LT S e
nadanmng, FaAufiumain, ssnatiaie, mememadey uazesnuiideiusasnisieainsennns e
naaaaunIRudsziuluAan1sfenadnafusian

mm@@umqmm@mmumﬂm ﬂumu‘wmumwmmmmmma‘@u‘lmmmnu mmmma‘mmu Al
mwmma‘mumvim\‘immﬁﬂwmmmimu mis\nmmumﬂﬂa‘vmw T wiNAnaT99nTann aaLias “ad,
mmLmmeLL@z‘smmLLuqmmwmummmqLquuifaﬂﬂL@rmLqumﬂi:ﬂummi%ﬂimu,mz/mfamqqmm
angseytline, Lfaﬂmﬂﬁ'mﬁumﬁm;Tqﬁﬁmmmiﬁmﬁmm@ apnzideuiifyanannA1ege, nsaanziien
21ANITA, mmulumafmifmﬂumuummmwmmmmm@m@umummmmﬂm aannluenansiive
N19978, 21184 UaaA’NUes mfamummuwnmmummﬂaumimmmmmwWﬁmwmwmuqmm@/mu
W‘i@ﬁJEN‘]JQﬂ@?ﬁd/ﬁﬂd‘gﬁ/@dﬂ@ﬂﬂi’m



Annual Report 2019

Lalin Property Public Company Limited 79

Management Structure

1) The Board of Directors

In 2019, the Board of Directors convened a total of 5 meetings and as of December 31, 2019, the Board had

7 members. Of this number, 3 were Independent Directors, with details as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong Chairman

2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director & Executive Chairman

3. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Director, Independent Director & Chairman of the Audit Committee
4. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Director, Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
5. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Director, Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
6. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director & Executive Director

7. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Director & Executive Director

Mr. Seri Sintuas serves as Company Secretary.

Name of directors authorized to enter into binding obligations

(1)

()

Two of these three directors, namely, Mr. Taveesak Wacharakawong, Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul and Mr. Nat

Sangarsongkogk, must sign together with company seal affixed. There are no limitations to director authority.

One of these three directors, namely, Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul or Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk or Mr.Churat

Chakarakul, signs with the company’s seal affixed on the following matters:

2.1

22

2.3

24

2.5

Requests for temporary or permanent use of electrical power, extension of electrical power use, electrical
power use right transfer/receipt, requests to expand distribution area within/outside the land housing
project, requests for power guarantee refunds, transfers and receipt of power use security deposits
and power use termination.

Requests for temporary or permanent use of water, extension of water use, water use right transfer/
receipt, requests for plumbing system design and appraisal, requests for expansion of water distribution
area within/outside the land housing project, requests for water use security deposit refunds, transfer
and receipt of water use security deposit, water use termination, requests for permanent water use
transfer.

Filing of complaints about telephones, telephone number right rental, filing of general complaints to the
Thailand Post Company to take any action and requests for house numbers.

Requests for license renewal/license amendment/changes in license type with any public agency or
organization such as permits for construction, permits for building demolition, all types of building
modifications, land fill, requests to install signs, link roads, cut foot paths, drain wastewater, verify and
issue certificates, building construction and the placement of security deposits in the aforementioned
matters.

Requests for permission to do business with the Land Department or public agencies related to land
and housing, amendments of land housing diagrams and land housing project methods, all types of
land surveys, e.g., sub-divisions/merging, boundary checks, etc., boundary indicators and boundary
certification, reductions or cancelations of security deposits for utilities and/or utility maintenance,
documents concerning the setting of village housing juristic persons, condominium juristic person
registrations, condominium registrations, signatures to participate in village housing juristic person
meetings or condominium juristic person meetings, signatures in documents for the sale, mortgage or
termination of mortgage and records of late right transfer of the contract to purchase/sell residential

land/land with structures/condominium/ building structure.
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2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

The filing of complaints to interrogate officers, retract complaints, appoint attorneys, authorize the power
of attorney to file lawsuits, drafting letters to inquire about/cancel contracts, letter to explain to public
agencies, or individuals, or juristic persons.

Signing contracts to purchase/sell condominiums, condominium unit purchase reservation contracts,
contracts to purchase/sell land (in land housing projects), contracts to purchase/sell land with
structures (in housing projects), land rental contracts, building rental contracts, condominium unit rental
contracts, furniture rental contracts, contracts for the purchase/sale of kitchen furniture, equipment
and other related premiums and furniture installation, contracts for signing frame rentals, contracts
for advertisement services, contracts for construction employment, contracts for design employment,
letters of confirmation for service/merchandise receipts, purchase orders, documents for conducting
and presenting environmental impact assessment reports, the filing of local taxes/sign taxes/household
taxes/ security guards, maid/ messenger employment contracts, photocopier rental contracts, property
(clubhouse) rental contracts, memoranda of understanding (repair/remodeling utility systems) made
available for housing village juristic persons.

Purchase/sales/removal/renewal of financial notes for purchasing material in normal business; letters to
request lines of credit, forms for financial transaction requests, request to use services/change internet
banking service information, requests to issue letters of guarantee/extend letters of guarantee, requests
for confirmation of balance for the auditor’'s annual audit.

Signing to receive privileges such as land deeds and/or any documents from banks, financial institutions,
individual or juristic persons.

Signing letter to inquire and/or verify any information, to make any requests or coordinate with public
agencies, government enterprises, private companies, associations, individuals or juristic persons on

business matters related to the company’s normal business operations

Scope of duties and authorities of the Board of Directors

1.

Manage the Company in accordance with laws, the objectives, Articles of Association and resolutions

of Shareholders’ Meetings

Formulate policies and determine the direction for operations, financial management and business risk
management; oversee management operations in line with the predetermined policies with efficiency

and effectiveness

Consistent responsibility to Shareholders; protect the interests of Shareholders; disclose information

with accuracy, completeness, to standard and with transparency

Authority to appoint any number of Directors as Executive Directors for performing one or more tasks,

except those prescribed by law as requiring the mandate of Shareholder’'s Meeting resolutions.

Transactions in which Directors or other individuals may have a potential conflict of interest or vested
interest, or any other form of conflict of interest with the Company obligate the said Director to refrain

from exercising or casting votes concerning the matter in question
Board of Directors’ Meetings are required to be held at least every 3 months

Regular Shareholders’ Meetings are to be organised within 4 months of the end of the Company’s

accounting year.

Directors may not engage in any business or have shareholdings in other juristic persons of a similar
nature with the Company’s business, or that are competitors to the Company, except as informed to

Shareholders prior to appointment as a Director
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2) Management

As of December 31, 2019, the Company’s Management Board comprised 7 individuals as follows.

3)

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Managing Director

2. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Deputy Managing Director

3. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Deputy Managing Director

4. Mr. Wanchai Aranvutikul Assistant Managing Director

5. Mr. Kittichai Thitapanich Assistant Managing Director

6. Mr. Seri Sintuas Senior Finance Director and Company Secretary
7. Mrs. Kanittha Tumviseth Account Manager

Scope of authorities and responsibilities of the Managing Director

The Managing Director is responsible for performing any ordinary operating activities as assigned by the

Board of Directors or the Executive Committee specified under the rules and regulations of the company. The

ordinary operating activities of the company are defined as follows:

To approve the purchase of the construction material and any relevant services for the benefits of the

company. This shall not include the purchase of the land.

To approve the operating expenses, selling and administrative expenses and investments to be in
accordance with the budget approved by the Board of Director or the Executive Committee. This shall

not include any loans or guarantee.

Such Managing Director shall not perform any operations that may lead him or any person to have a conflict

of interest with the company or the subsidiaries.

Company Secretary

The appointment of the Company Secretary relies on the discretion of the Company’s board of directors

because the board of directors is responsible for the appointment of a Company Secretary to handle meetings

of the Company’s board of directors, shareholders’ meetings and various activities of the Company’s board of

directors in order to help the board of directors and the Company practice in compliance with related laws and

regulations. At Board of Directors Meeting 3/2556 on 13 August 2013 Mr. Seri Sintuas was appointed to the position

of Company Secretary to replace Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk. The appointment became effective as of 14 August

2013 onward until the present.

Company Secretary Scope of Authority and Duties

1.

Manages shareholders’ meetings and board of directors’ meetings in compliance with the law as well
as the Company’s rules and regulations as well as the code of best practice.

2. Reports resolutions and policy of the Company’s board of directors and shareholders to the executives
involved and monitors practice in compliance with resolutions and policies.

3. Offers preliminary advice to the Company’s board of directors on issues involving the law and the
Company’s rules and regulations as required by the board of directors and monitors practice for accurate
and regular compliance, including reports on changes in legal specifications relevant to the directors.

4.  Records minutes to the shareholders’ meetings and meetings of the Company’s board of directors,

including follow-up on practice in compliance with resolutions passed by the meetings of shareholders
and the Company’s board of directors.
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Compiles and stores reports on stakeholders reported by the directors and executives in addition to
other important certificates or documents, e.g. company registration, letters scheduling meetings of the
Company’s board of directors, minutes to the meetings of the Company’s board of directors, annual
reports and letters scheduling shareholders’ meetings with the minutes to shareholders’ meetings.
Handles disclosure of information and informative reports under obligation to report to the agencies
regulating the Company in compliance with the official rules, regulations and specifications of those
agencies.

Contacts and communicates with general shareholders to inform them of various rights or privileges
granted to shareholders and to also keep them informed about Company news.

Handles the activities of the Company’s board of directors.

Performs other tasks as stipulated by the law or as assigned by the Company’s board of directors or

as notified by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

4) Remuneration for Directors and Management
1. Monetary remuneration

(@)  The remuneration of the Company’s Directors in 2019
# of attended Remuneration
Total
Name of Directors Position B(?ard ©i AUd.'t AT CE] : Amount
Director |Committee| Allowance |Remuneration -
” o (BMillion)
(BMillion) | (BMillion)
1. Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong| Chairman 5/5 - 0.10 - 0.10
2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director & Executive 5/5 - 0.10 - 0.10
Chairman
3. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Director, Independent 5/5 4/4 0.10 0.60 0.70
Director & Chairman of the
Audit Committee
4. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Director, Independent 5/5 4/4 0.10 0.45 0.55
Director & Member of the
Audit Committee
5. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Director, Independent 5/5 4/4 0.10 0.45 0.55
Director & Member of the
Audit Committee
6. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director & Executive Director 5/5 - 0.10 - 0.10
7. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Director & Executive Director 5/5 - 0.10 - 0.10
Total 0.70 1.50 2.20

Details of the director’'s remuneration for the year 2019 (Resolutions of the 2019 Annual General

Shareholder’s Meeting held on April 24, 2019) as follows :

1. Directors’ meeting allowance Baht 20,000 / Meeting
(No annual remuneration for directors)
2. Annual remuneration for Chairman of audit committee Baht 600,000 / year
3. Annual remuneration for Audit committee Baht 450,000 / person / year
(b) Remuneration for Executive Directors and management as of the end of 2019 was provided

in the form of salary, transportation allowance and bonuses, totaling 47.75 million Baht.

2. Other remuneration

- none



86 USBn ada wSowiwosh 9111A (UKBU) sngguls=9U 2562

5) umanNs

o 1 o

wsEmlipnndAnyetegeiuyaainsaesddm Tnadadainissine Wiiumineu enfidu

v a q

be

1. afapnsRuitinieTafiogandt aNsuIA1981ANIEUATIEIT

U

2. NEINUANIDURLITN

3. dUmsiseiugunn

v a wa

4. adaRnIRUINEMRLNITE1T 017l gUaNLn Nepsansa Areayns Iute Nagenduilszausiaing
waz NILAN N19AN LG9 AANTA YTENTINNWALTI6

X o Y o = o Ao o =2 Y = o Aa o ao
uanani wiEme ldnssminisanulaeasieluaniuiinauaesmiingu aadinsilndesntiensdiindaasit
Jnldszuullasiude Wulsramnl nasssuddiunanssu 5 a lueadns uazlddnlilinanmadannnulasnsis
1eanilneansluananiulszaninen

v
o

U 31 FUNAN 2562 LiFHNY ANITNIITUIIUILYIAL 649 AL (Tﬂiquﬂi?uﬂqﬁLL@:;:Iu?uﬁ?) Tnguwenilunsay

aneumdnaasieliil
tszan 49519 594
1lszanlagenng 164 0 164
ANENUNAAT 240 83 323
szandniineulug 162 0 162
ER kY] 571 83 649

v
o

Tt 2562 wilniuiinanauunuluglrestuneutasiuiamurisau 258.16 §uum

ulsurgluniswasunynains

munmmm‘wmemmmmmmLL@anmﬁnummmiuﬁ%uu 1310 zm@ WEINNETH SRR () ALLREIN
uumvmwmmamnmmmmmmw mﬂimm‘ﬂmmu “mumﬂ@nuumm Falanar A e Aaldinnudr Ay lunnamses
AANFRNTAFLNNSLBVNIRANT LASNINENNINHAR mmuiﬂmmmmummwsaumuqmmm WA NgIN13D
Tunnsugeduldacinsdiiy

miﬁmmﬁwmmuuwﬁﬁmfluu‘ﬂﬂmﬂﬁﬁﬁm WanudAnyduasusu dssniulaunaluniswmuiminenns
yanatesLFEnatnaiuszul Lazsaliins TmﬂmwmLuuwmmﬁﬂﬂmwmmmmnﬂw LRt (Knowledge) LL'Z\]o,Vlﬂ'lfh,
(skill) IfaonndasiinuiidesiuRingen finnsaiaiAuai (Attitude) mmmmmummﬂ@mm wianTaLg a9 T
dusingiuresiniusssnesing InatFEmaimumingnsyaAraeenasLaas FausiGududuminay & BRI NUNANgeI
dguilmaninaulug *7{Lﬁuﬂ13Lﬂu;§ﬁﬁq1@1umﬂﬁu‘§mi (Service Mind) kaziaddidnlaluunuinnisniiaulngnss
AuFuninauilszan

LFEnHnguRunsinaususzantl Tnadinnsinuuaudngsasine 171'm@‘uﬂqunﬁiﬁwuﬂwﬁﬂqqulunﬂi:ﬁu 2%
\i NANGMINIFIANIIAINE (Knowledge Management), N33 NLHUNALNE Strategic Planning, 484 RMMFLNTINIUIEAL
Management Wag lidauaaantinnuszay Operation 219U NANGRTIAINTINANLA (Value Engineering), nstEmsfiLu
LA (Service Excellence), “a¢ mm"l,ﬂmmn@m‘wuﬁm L‘W@Lmﬂuummnﬂuwmwmﬂgummu‘lumwmmqq Tuauan
1@@mwﬂswawmwu@nmnumwumimmmiuuLLmumiwmmmmm‘wuﬂnﬂm‘wm (Star) 13Taaannz (Individual
Development Programs) mewumummg mmmmm‘lm:mumgwu uazaNsalIRWluA LTI TR9L3EN
15 luananmall



Annual Report 2019 Lalin Property Public Company Limited 87

5) Personnel
The Company accords a high importance to its personnel and offers various benefits for employees, such as :
1. Housing loans, provided by the Government Housing Bank
2. Provident funds
3. Social security

4. Financial assistance for various events such as entering the monkhood, marriage, maternity leave,

injury, housing, natural disasters, or death of an employee or their immediate relatives and spouse.

Moreover, the Company values the importance of safety in the workplace. Consequently, the company
has organized annually fire drills and activities related to safety. Also, the company has promoted 5S activity in

organization, and arranged to check the elevator in company’s building monthly.

As of December 31, 2019, the Company had a total of 649 employees (not including Directors and management),

categorized according to the major operations as follows.

Full-time Part-time Total
Project Sites 164 0 164
Construction 240 83 323
Head Office 162 0 162
Total 571 83 649

In 2019, employees received remuneration in the form of salaries and bonuses totaling 258.16million Baht.

Human Resources Development Policy

In today’s economic environment and intense competition, Lalin Property PCL. is determined to create quality
products under the slogan “Home Planted on the Roots of Goodwill.” Therefore, the company gives importance to
management and manufacturing resource preparations, which includes preparing people with sustainable competitive

potential.

Human resources development is considered one of the policies to which the company gives top priority. The
company has a systematic and continuous human resources development policy focused on potential development
for people to gain knowledge and skills consistent with their work responsibilities. A good attitude toward work and the
organization is fostered in conjunction with promoting values that form the foundation for the corporate culture. The
company is determined to develop human resources in all aspects. When employees start work, they are required to
pass a new employee orientation course with emphasis on service-minded people and direct understanding of work

roles for regular employees.

The company makes annual training plans by establishing courses that cover employee development on all
levels, e.g., knowledge management, strategic planning, etc. for management and operation employees, e.g., value
engineering, service excellence, etc., including basic courses to prepare employees for future effective work in various
positions. Moreover, the company has specifically arranged individual development programs for star employees in

order to further their knowledge and skills and allow them to perform work as company managers in the future.
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Furthermore, the company organizes activities promoting attachments among employees and the organization
(Engagement) by fostering a good work atmosphere with safety and happiness. Closeness is established between
managers and employees through various activities, which are considered a means of building employee spirit and
morale, allow them to recognize their importance and value, and to foster work ethics and moral conscientiousness for

responsibility to work with care and attention to society.

Finally, the company gives importance to work-life balance. The company holds the view that good work-life quality

is a factor that will sustainably attract and retain skilled and knowledgeable employees in the organization.

Lalin Property PCL. believes that the company’s human resources development policy is an important foundation

that requires constant structured implementation in order to achieve sustainable growth for the organization.
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Corporate Governance

1.

Corporate Governance Policy

Lalin Property public company limited recognizes the essence of the good corporate governance as an
important factor to lead the company to have the efficient system and a foundation for the sustainable growth of
the company. The company abides by the principles of Good Corporate Governance for listed companies of the

SET, and has implemented the good corporate governance to be a practice guideline as follows:

1. Rights of Shareholders

The company always recognizes and respects the rights of the shareholders. These rights include the rights
to purchase/ sell or transfer the shares, profit sharing, sufficiently access to company’s information, attend the
meeting to vote at the shareholder’'s meeting.

The annual general meeting of shareholders shall be held annually within 4 months after the end of accounting
period. The notice of this meeting and the meeting agendas including the meeting document shall be sent to the
shareholders at least 21 days before the shareholders’ meeting and shall be advertised on the daily newspaper at
least 3 consecutive days. Moreover, the company shall have the notice of the meeting and the meeting document
posted on the website of the company (www.lalinproperty.com) not less than 30 days before the meeting. In this
case all shareholders shall have enough time to study and look through the entire meeting document and be well
preparing for the meeting. The Company encourages shareholders to attend in the shareholders’ meetings to fully
exercise their rights in delivering opinions and suggestions in participating in decision making on crucial issues,
and in inspecting the operations of the Board of Directors and Management.

The notice of meeting shall include information such as date, time and venue of the meeting, including location
map and all relevant supporting documents that shall be used for making decision at the meeting. Moreover, in
the notice of meeting, the company should also inform all shareholders the meeting rules, including the Articles
of Association on the Shareholder Meeting, meeting regulations and practice, procedures and documents to be
presented by shareholders before attending the meeting for both cases whereby the shareholders are attending the
meeting in person and by proxy. The proxy forms of type A, B and C are attached at the end of this notice letter as
for the convenience of the shareholder to appoint their proxy. Moreover, the postage is provided by the company
on the meeting date for the convenience of the proxy. For the shareholders who cannot attend the meeting, such
shareholders can appoint any independent director to vote on their behalf.

Furthermore, for the convenience of the shareholder meeting, the company has set the appropriate date,
time and venue of the meeting by not having the meeting on the bank holiday. The company also set the meeting
to be held during 8.00 a.m.- 4.00 p.m. and the venue to be located at the area whereby it is easy to access for all
shareholders. For the past meetings, the company has always chosen the venue which is nearby the BTS, MRT
station as for the convenience of the shareholders to commute. At the annual general meeting of shareholders,
the company shall open for registration at least 2 hours before the commencement of the meeting in order to
provide sufficient time for all shareholders to register and to hold welcome reception for shareholders attending
the meeting.

The company allows shareholders who join the meeting after the meeting has already commenced to vote
on agenda items that are in the process of being considered and do not yet have a resolution.

In the agenda of directors’ election, the company provides opportunities for shareholders to vote on individual
directors. The invitation letter will have accompanying documents with details of the directors nominated for election
including their education and working experience backgrounds, shareholding in the company, and the record of
their meeting attendance in the passing year. Shareholders; therefore, have sufficient information to support their
consideration in voting.

At each shareholder meeting, the company shall give all shareholders equal opportunity to present their
opinions and suggestion, including raise questions at the end of each agenda. Moreover, the company shall provide
sufficient time for further discussion whereby the chairman of the meeting, directors and the management shall
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equally pay attention to every question and give the clear answers. A clear and complete minute shall be recorded
with total votes of each agenda. Company has invited auditors from C.W.W.P Company Limited to observe the
meeting and check transparency of voting summary every time. The company issued and submitted the minutes
of the meeting to Stock Exchange of Thailand and Ministry of Commerce within 14 days as specified by law, and
posted on company’s website for interested shareholders to read and examine the information.

At the 2019 annual general meeting of shareholders, All 7 directors are attending the meeting. Chairman,
Chairman of the Audit Committee, Managing Director, C.F.O. and high level management from each important
department whereby these people are required to attend the meeting in order to answer the inquiries of the
shareholders.

2. Equal Treatment to Shareholders

The company has treated all shareholders equally and fairly no matter the shareholder is the executive
director or non-executive director or has the alien nationality. The Company prepares the shareholders’ meeting
documents in both Thai and English.

The company offers the opportunity for shareholders who cannot attend the meeting in person by letting them
appoint other persons to attend the meeting and vote on their behalf. When sending out the notice of meeting,
the company shall have the proxy form attached with the letter every time. Such shareholders can determine their
voting direction and appoint at least 1 person to be their proxy. Moreover, the company has provided the postage
at the registration area in front of the meeting room for the convenience of the proxy in case they have not affix the
postage.

For this annual general meeting of shareholders, after the details of each agenda have been explained
then the shareholders will be given equal opportunity to raise the questions and present their opinions to the
meeting. The voting ballots shall be distributed to shareholders attending the meeting for voting especially for the
disapproved votes or abstained votes. Moreover, the company has separated each agenda from one another so
that the shareholders can vote each agenda independently, for example, agenda on the election of directors. For
this agenda, the shareholders can vote for directors individually and then the voting ballots shall be collected from
all shareholders.

The company also sets the policy that Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees shall not use the material
internal information of the company that has not been disclosed to the public for their own or other benefits, including
buying/ selling securities of the company. The company has a management procedure for the case whereby the
management uses the internal information of the company for their own or other benefits. The details of procedures
are as follows:

+ Inform the directors and the management their obligation to report on their holding securities including
those securities held by their partners and minors and report on the changes in securities investment
specified under Section 39 and the Determination of Punishment under Section 275 of the Securities
and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

« Circulate the memo to Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees informing that Directors, Executive,
Staffs, and Employees who have received the material internal information that may effect on the prices
of the securities, shall avoid or temporarily stop the purchase/ sale of the company’s securities for
1 month. Moreover, they shall not disclose material information to other persons before the financial
statement or such internal information has been disclosed to the public. In order to monitor and examine
the abovementioned operation, the company has set the policy that the management shall report the
holding securities and changes in securities as specified under Section 59 to the Board of Directors.

*  The company specifies that each director has duty to report transaction of buy and sell of company’s
share to the board of director.

«  Failure to follow the rules above may result in disciplinary action by the company. This may range from

a verbal warning, a written warning, probation and all the way up to termination of employment.
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3. Roles of Stakeholders

The company is aware of the rights of each group of stakeholders, either internal stakeholders or external
stakeholders e.g. customers, shareholders, competitors, related government agencies and employees, including
social and environmental responsibilities. The company also encourages the cooperation between the company
and the stakeholders in order to promote the sustainable growth of the company in a long term. The details are
shown as follows

. Customers :

1. The company has emphasized on promoting the satisfaction of the customers by offering customers with
good quality products and great service to be accordance with our determination “to build the house
with good willingness”.

2. The company has emphasized on developing the quality of the products. As such, the product research
and development unit has been established in order to study the requirements of the customers and
continuously develop quality of products.

3. The company has set the quality control for the houses built by the contractor. The inspection shall
be conducted by the supervisor, head of supervisor, engineers and project manager, respectively.
Moreover, to ensure the quality of the house, the company has set the centralized quality control unit to
inspect the quality of the houses.

4. To enhance the efficiency of the after sale service, the company has set the Customer Relationship
Management (CRM) unit to resolve any problems of the customers and organize the events of each
project of the company.

5. The company has communicated with the customers via the website of the company and the quarterly
newsletter to update the news and other activities to customers.

. Shareholders :

1. The company determines to be a good representative of the shareholders by considering a good return
and maximizing long term shareholder’s wealth.

2. The company has communicated with the shareholders via the website of the company to update the
news of the company e.g. details and supporting document of the shareholder meeting, etc.

3. The company is welcomed any inquiries or questions raised by the shareholders and investors via the
telephone or at the meeting.

. Creditors :

1. The company complies with the terms of loans and obligations to its creditors including business creditors,
financial institutes, and company’s bondholders.

2. The company always carefully considers and manages its risks in doing business. Thus, company is only
a few companies in property development sector that has never been NPLs with any financial institutes
during Asian financial crisis in 1997

. Trading partners :

1. The company continuously promotes the cooperation and maintains good relationship with their trading
partners e.g cooperating with the partners in producing the roof in the specific color of the company and
cooperating with the commercial banks to offer a special interest rate to the customers of the company.

2. The company has treated the partners fairly and appropriately under the condition and trade agreement.
The company has always made the payment to the partners on time every week.

. Competitors :

1. The company has operated under the competitive rules. As such, the company shall not destroy the
reputation of the competitors with some negative accusation.
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2. The company operates its business with professional. There is no violation of competitor confidentiality
or deception to get the confidential information of the competitors. As for now the company has no
disputes with their competitors.

. Employees :

1. The company believes that employees are valuable assets and treats all employees equally and fairly
by offering the fair and appropriate remunerations and fringe benefits.

2. The company offers several fringe benefits to employees, for example, employee home loans with the
Government Housing Bank, Retirement Mutual Funds, health insurance card to all employees, including
some contribution money in the events of ordination, marriage, maternity, illness, disaster to your home
and funeral of the parents, child, partner or employee.

3. The company has continuously provided employees with training. The company shall study the
requirement and develop the annual training plan to employees in all level to enhance their knowledge
and capabilities. Apart from the annual training plan designed to employees in all levels, the company
has specially designed the individual development program for the high potential employees (star) to
enhance their knowledge and capabilities to a higher level and to become the management in the future.

4. The company has emphasized on environment and safety issues in the workplace by organizing regular
fire drills, activities related to safety, 5S, and arranging for monthly elevator maintenance.

5. The company has remuneration policy related with company’s performance in each year. Also,
remuneration policy that related with company’s performance in long term such as ESOP program and
Balanced Scorecard.

. Mass Medium :

1. The company has emphasized on disclosure company’s information to mass medium; therefore, public
can receive the correct and timely information. The company also organizes various projects in order
to keep good relationship with mass medium such as arranging a company’s site visit and cooperating
in several social activities.

. Community and Social :

1. The company is responsible for the environment, social and community. Therefore, the company has
regularly involved in several social activities, such as, offering some contributions to disaster victims,
giving out the scholarships to students every year, etc. Some of activities in 2019 are revealed under
“Corporate social responsibility” section.

In case shareholders and stakeholders didn’t received fair treatment from the company, the company has
established a channel for them to contact, file complaints or provide information through the internal audit department
at the address below, in order to verify information, investigate the truth and proceed according to the Company’s
procedures and report to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors if any crucial issues found.

Internal Audit Department - Lalin Property Public Company Limited (Building 2)
222/2 Lalin Property Tower, 2nd floor

Srinakarin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi

Bangkok 10240

Tel: 0-2732-1041-5 # 310 Fax: 0-2377-9656

4. Disclosure and Transparency

The company has emphasized on equally disclosing the correct and transparent material information of the
company, including the financial statement and non-financial information to investors and related persons in a timely
manner. The company has set up one unit to be responsible for the investor relations. Its responsibility includes

communicating with the investors and related persons through several communication channels e.g. news release
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via the Stock Exchange of Thailand, performance press release to the analyst, press release, telephone, e-mail

and website of the company.

The Investor Relations department will be responsible for disclosing important information and answering
queries to investors. Interested investors can view company’s financial statement as well as importance operating
performance from the Company’s website at www.lalinproperty.com or contact Investor Relations department for
more information at:

Investor Relations Department - Lalin Property Public Company Limited
222/2 Lalin Property Tower, 2nd floor

Srinakarin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi

Bangkok 10240

Tel: 0-2732-1041-5 # 202 Fax: 0-2377-9656

In the annual report, the company shall report the responsibilities of the Board towards the financial report
along with the auditor’s report, including the roles and responsibilities of the Board, the Audit Committee and the
Executive Committee. This includes the number of the meeting and the number of attendance by each director
in the past year. Moreover, the company should disclose the remunerations (including those in money term and
other benefits) of the directors, Audit Committee and the management of the company in the annual report and
the report 56-1.

The Company'’s board of directors has set policy concerning directors’ stake holding reports by stipulating
the requirement for reports on the stock holdings of directors, spouses and children who have not reached legal
age on a regular basis every year. Policy has also been set for conducting related transactions whereby various
terms and conditions have to be set based on the characteristics of normal operations if related transactions are
conducted at market prices, which can be compared with prices occurring with outside parties. Thus, the Audit
Committee or the Company’s auditor or an independent expert will have to give consideration, examine and render
an opinion on the reasonability of conducting the transaction. Related transactions must be compliant with the
laws governing securities and the stock market as well as the regulations, notifications, directives or specifications
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, including compliance with specifications involving the disclosure of information

about related transactions and the acquisition or sales of the main assets of the Company or its subsidiaries.

5. Responsibility of the Board of Directors

5.1 Structure of the Board

The Board of Directors comprises of persons with good knowledge, capabilities and experience in various
areas. The Board is responsible for setting the vision, mission; and approval of the business direction, policy,
strategy and goal of the company in order for the management to use as a guideline in developing the annual
business plan, supporting plan and budget. The key performance indicators (KPIs) system is used to monitor the
performance. In 2019, Board of Directors had considered, reviewed and approved vision, mission, and strategies,
so that Management and staffs had the same goal.

In order to have a clear roles and responsibility, the Board has set the clear roles and responsibilities of the
Board, Audit Committee, Executive Committee and the managing director.

The Board of Directors comprises of 7 persons. Of that amount, 3 of them are the directors who are the
management and another 4 are not the management. Of those 4 directors who are not the management, 3 of
them are the independent directors and in the Audit Committee whereby this figure is more than one-third of total
directors, this gives them the authority in examining the operations of the company and balancing the power of
other directors. Moreover, the Chairman of the Board shall not be the same person as the managing director as
there should be a segregation of duties whereby the governance policy setting and the day-to-day operation shall

be separated from each other.
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Under the Item 15 of the company regulation, it is stated that one-third of total directors, whereby currently
there are 7 directors, shall be released from the post at the annual general meeting of shareholders. Each director
has a term of 3-4 years. After the term is reached, the Board shall hold a meeting to consider the person with
qualification to be the director in order to propose to the shareholder meeting. The Board can reelect the director
who is released from the post back to be the director.

The company has prepared documents and described the overall image of the company’s business, along
with other information related to the company’s business for newly appointed directors to ensure that appointed
directors understand the company’s business.

5.2 Sub Committee

The company has established the Audit Committee whereby the term of directors is 2 years. Its roles and
responsibilities have been set clear and stated under the roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee under
the Section of Management.

The Board has not established the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. The remunerations
set by the Board have been well considered whereby the Board has compared remunerations to those set by the
same industry. Such remunerations shall be approved by the shareholder meeting and the remunerations of the

management shall be in accordance with the principal and policy set by the Board.

5.3 Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for managing the company to be in accordance with the law, objectives, regulations
and the resolution passed from the shareholder meeting. The Board shall consider and give an approval, including
develop the vision, mission, strategy and direction of operations, treasury, risk management. Moreover, the Board is
responsible for overseeing the management to efficiently and effectively operate under the policy set. Furthermore,
their responsibilities include protecting the interests of the shareholders and disclosing the correct and complete
information with standard and transparency.

The Board can assign and appoint the director to be the managing director to perform any business except
for those required by the law stating to have the resolution passed from the shareholder meeting. For any issues
whereby the director or the person may have a conflict of interest, such directors shall waive their right to vote on

those issues.

5.4 The Board of Directors Meeting

The company’s board of directors regularly organizes meetings. The chairman of the board promotes thorough
consideration and sufficient time allocation for each meeting. In preparing meeting agendas, the company offers
opportunities for directors to propose meeting agendas with the Chairman of the Board and Managing Director
as the people in charge of granting approval for meeting order and agendas. Hence, the corporate secretary
will coordinate with all directors and schedule meetings in advance throughout the entire year, sending meeting
invitations, agendas and minutes to the meetings to the company’s board of directors at least seven business
days before every meeting so that directors have time to study the information before each meeting. Furthermore,
directors are charged with attending the company’s board of directors’ meeting every time unless necessity
dictates otherwise. The minimum meeting quorum when the board of directors passes a resolution requires that
at least two-thirds of all directors be present.

Furthermore, the company offers opportunities for independent directors to organize their own meetings and/
or participate in a meeting with the internal auditor and/or with the company’s auditor without the presence of the
management to discuss any problems of interest each year, and fully at will. In 2019, there is a meeting between
independent directors without management for one time.

Each meeting is recorded in writing, and the board of directors is required to certify each of the aforementioned
minutes to the meeting every time in the subsequent meetings. In 2019, the company’s board of directors
organized a total of five meetings, four of which are meetings according to normal agendas, while another meeting
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was organized near the end of the year in order to jointly evaluate the year’s performance along with making
considerations, reviews and setting visions or missions of the company in a period of 3-5 years, including making
approvals for the company’s business direction, policies, strategies and goals for the following year. Hence, the
details of attendance for each director are disclosed in the heading Directors and Executives’ Remunerations
5.5 Self-assessment of the Board

The Company has policy to make arrangements for the Company’s board of directors to have annual self-
performance evaluations, so the board of directors can consider their work performance and problems together.
Thus, the performance results can be used in consideration of corrections and improvements in the work of the
board of directors. Evaluations are both individual and collective for the entire board by using the evaluation forms
recommended by the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The evaluation form on the performance of the Company’s
board of director contains content for evaluation covering the following six aspects of work performance: (1)
Structure and qualifications of directors; (2) Roles duties and responsibilities of directors; (3) Board of directors’
meetings; (4) Performance of duties by directors; (5) relationships with management and (6) personal development

of directors and executives.

5.6 Remunerations

The remunerations of the Board are cautiously considered and set by the Board Meeting whereby these
remunerations are compared to those set by the same industry. The proposed remunerations shall be approved
at the shareholder meeting. As for the remunerations of 2019, the directors had the meeting allowances of THB
20,000 per meeting (No annual remuneration). The chairman of audit committee had the annual remunerations
of THB 600,000, and the member of audit committee had the annual remunerations of THB 450,000 per person.
For the remunerations of the management, the management shall receive the salary and bonus based on the
performance of the company and their individual performance. Details of the remunerations of the Management

shall be disclosed and presented under the Remunerations of Directors and Management.

5.7 Development of Directors and the Management

The Company supports and sends the Company’s directors to participate in training courses offered by
the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) on a continual basis in order to build credibility with shareholders
and investors in general that directors have knowledge and understanding about their performance of duties as
directors based on the principles of good governance. Thus, if new directors are appointed, the Company will
provide them with orientation. The Company’s board of directors has appointed a Company Secretary as the person
who summarizes various information for new directors, so they can understand the business overview, including
the Company'’s structure and business operations. In addition, new directors are invited to visit the operations in
order to gain greater understanding about the Company’s business operations.

As for executives, the Company has policy for executive development by sending them to further their

educations in master’s degree courses (MBA) and Mini-MBA courses, etc.
2. Board Committee

The Company’s board committee comprises 2 committees, the Audit Committee and the Executive Committee,
with details of names and scope of responsibilities as well as authorities presented below.

2.1) The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises 3 members as follows.

Name of Director Position
1. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Independent Director & Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee

3. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
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All of the audit committee above has fully qualifications determined by the Securities and stock

Exchange Act, and has adequate expertise and experience to review creditability of the financial reports.
In 2019 the audit committee convened a total of 4 meetings. Ms. Prapasri Kittichalermliat, Internal audit

Manager, serves as audit committee secretary

Definition of an Independent Director

An independent director means a director who does not own a business or have any work related

to the company that will affect the director’s independent decisions. Hence, an independent director
is required to meeting the following qualifications:

1.

A share holding of no more than one percent of the total number of issued shares entitled to vote
of the company; not a major shareholder or a person with directing authority in the company.
Furthermore, the shares of persons related to each respective independent director are also to
be included.

Is not or was not a director who participated in work management, employee, worker, salaried
consultant, person of the company with directing authority, major shareholder, or of a person of
the company with directing authority, unless removed from the aforementioned status for at least
two years.

Not a person related by blood or legal registration as a father, mother, spouse, sibling, offspring,
including spouse of offspring, of other directors, executives, major shareholders, person with
directing authority or person nominated as a director, executive, or person with directing authority
in the company.

Does not or never has had business relations with the company, the company’s major shareholders
or person with directing authority of the requester in a manner that could obstruct the director’s
independent judgment, along with not being or had not been a significant shareholder, or a person
with directing authority of any person who has business relations with the company, the company’s
major shareholder or person with directing authority unless removed from the aforementioned
status by at least two years.

Is not and never has been a company auditor, major shareholder or person with directing authority,
and is not a significant shareholder, person with directing authority, or partner with the audit office
where the company’s auditor or person with directing authority in the company, unless removed
from the aforementioned status for at least two years.

Is not or never has been a service provider in any profession, which includes legal consultation
services or financial consultation, that received a services from the company amounting to more
than two million baht per year from the company, the company’s major shareholders, or persons
with directing authority, and cannot be a significant shareholder, person with directing authority
or partnership of the service provider of the aforementioned professions unless removed from the
aforementioned position for at least two years.

Not a director appointed as a proxy for a company director, major shareholder or shareholder
who is involved with a major shareholder of the company.

Not engaged in the same business or in significant competition with the company’s business, or
not a significant partner in a partnership or a director participating in work management, employee,
worker, regularly salaried consultant, or a person who holds more than one percent of all shares
with voting privileges of another company operating in the same business and in significant
competition with the company’s business.

No other attributes preventing the director from rendering independent decisions about the

company’s performance.

Components and Appointment of the Audit Committee

The company’s board of directors and/or meeting of shareholders will appoint at least three people to

form the Audit Committee. Appointees are to be fully qualified in compliance with naotifications by the Securities

and Exchange Commission and are to hold a 2-year term of office for each appointment.
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Scope of duties and authorities of the Audit Committee

The audit committee of the company has the scope of duties and responsibilities to the Board of
Directors on the following matters:

1.
2.

8.

To review the Company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate.

To review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are

suitable and efficient, to determine an internal audit unit's independence, as well as to approve

the appointment, transfer and dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit or any other unit in

charge of an internal audit.

To review the Company’s compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s

regulations, and the laws relating to the Company’s business.

To consider, select and nominate an independent person to be the Company’s auditor, and to

propose such person’s remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management meeting with an

auditor at least once a year.

To consider the related transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to

ensure that they are in compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s regulations, and are presented

accurately and comprehensively.

To report the audit committee’s operation to the board of directors at least once a quarter.

To prepare, and to disclose in the Company’s annual report, an audit committee’s report which

must be signed by the audit committee’s chairman and consist of at least the following information:

(a) An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s financial report,

(b) An opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system,

(c) An opinion on the compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s
regulations, or the laws relating to the Company’s business,

(d) An opinion on the suitability of an auditor,

(e) An opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests,

(f) The number of the audit committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each
committee member,

(g) An opinion or overview comment received by the audit committee from its performance of
duties in accordance with the charter, and

(h) Other transactions which, according to the audit committee’s opinion, should be known to
the shareholders and general investors, subject to the scope of duties and responsibilities
assigned by the Company’s board of directors; and

To perform any other act as assigned by the Company’s board of directors, with the approval of

the audit committee.

2.2) The Executive Committee

In 2019 the Executive Committee convened a total of 94 meetings and as of December 31, 2019 had 3
Directors, as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Executive Chairman
2. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Executive Director
3. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Executive Director

Components and Appointment of the Management

The company’s board of directors will appoint management by selecting a number of people from the

company’s directors.

Scope of authorities and responsibilities of the Executive Committee

1.

The Executive Committee is invested with the authority to carry out operations in accordance with
the policies of the Board of Directors, within the framework of the law and the Company Articles
of Association. Exceptions are made for conditions required by law as requiring the mandate of
Shareholders’ Meeting resolutions.
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2. The authority to approve loans or other borrowings from financial institutions and/or the issue of
financial debt instruments and/or any other forms of financial promissory notes to general investors,
specific investors and institutional investors. This includes authorization to arrange settlements or
payments for the normal business operations of the Company, such as investment outlays, or for
the purchase of land or land with constructions and other activities. The limit for each transaction
is determined at a maximum of 700 million Baht, or an equivalent amount, or as assigned by the
Board of Directors

3. Authority to appoint and remove Company officers from designations not above the level of
Managing Director

4. Authority to prepare, propose and determine policies, business direction and strategies for the
Company to the Board of Directors

5. Perform duties related to the general administration of the Company, including the determination
of the organizational structure and management, covering all details pertaining to the selection,
training, hiring and removal of Company employees.

6. Formulate business plans; facilitate administrative activities; approve the annual budget for
business operations and the annual expenditure budgets; carry out operations in accordance with
the business plans and business strategies to complement the policies and business direction
presented to the Board of Directors

7. Perform other duties as assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors.

The delegation of authority to the Executive Committee requires that transactions in which Executive
Directors or other individuals may have a potential conflict of interest or vested interest, or any other form of
conflict of interest with the Company or its subsidiaries, obligate the said Executive Director to refrain from
exercising or casting votes concerning the matter in question. The authorization of transactions with a possible
conflict of transaction must be carried out in compliance with the Announcement of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand concerning the guidelines, method and disclosure of listed company related transactions.

3) Selection of Directors and Executives

Appointment and removal of Company Directors

1. Inthe appointment and removal of Company directors, Company directors are elected by the shareholders’
meeting whereby the appointment of directors must be approved by shareholders’ meeting with no
less than half of the total number of votes cast by shareholders in attendance and entitled to vote at the
meeting. The shareholders are entitled to exercise their rights to vote on an individual basis.

2. The Shareholders’ Meeting nominates Directors according to the guidelines and method as follows:

(1) Each Shareholder has voting rights of one vote per share

(2) Each Shareholder will have a total number of votes determined as per ltem (1) to nominate one
or several persons as Directors. However, the shares may not be divided in favour of a particular
individual

(3) Individuals receiving the highest votes in descending order will be appointed as Directors
according to the number of Directors required, or to be voted in. In the event that there is a tie,
but the appointment of both candidates would exceed the number of Directors required or to be
voted in, the Chairman of the Meeting will cast the deciding vote.

3. Ateach Annual Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, a total of 1 in 3 of the number of Directors is required
to vacate their posts. If the number of Directors is not divisible by three, the figure closestto 1in 3 is to
be used. In the first and second years following the registration of the Company, the Directors to vacate
their posts will be decided by a lottery system. In successive years, the longest serving Directors will
be obliged to vacate their posts first.

4. In addition to completion of tenure, a Director may be considered to complete their terms due to

(1) Death
(2) Resignation
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(3) Lack of qualifications or possession of prohibited qualities as specified by the Public Companies Act
(4) The Shareholders’ Meeting passes a resolution seeking the removal of a Director. A vote of not
less than 3 in 4 of the number of shares present and eligible for voting at the Meeting, representing
at least half of the votes in attendance and eligible to vote at the Meeting, is required
5. Any Director intending to resign must submit their formal resignation to the Company. The resignation
becomes effective upon the date the resignation document reaches the Company.

Nomination of Executive Directors

Executive Directors and management are nominated by the Meetings of the Board of Directors and are
not reviewed by the Nominations Committee, since the Company currently does not have such a committee.
Nonetheless, the Board of Directors considers candidates based on their qualifications, knowledge, capabilities
and relevant working experience. This includes qualifications as specified by Measure 68 of the Public Limited
Companies Act of B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992) and the relevant Announcements of the Securities and Exchange
Commission. This is in the interests of ensuring the Company’s efficient operations.

4) Insider information controls

The Company has a policy forbidding Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees from using significant
insider information about the Company that has not yet been disclosed for the benefit of others, including the
trading of Company securities. The measures regarding executives’ use of insider information for personal gain
is outlined as follows.

(1)  Management in the various departments is clearly informed of their obligation to report their equity stake
in the Company; this also applies to their spouses and children who are minors. Changes in equity
ownership are likewise required to be reported, in accordance with Measure 59 and penalty Measure
275 of the Securities and Stock Exchange Act of B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)

(2) Documentation is circulated to ensure that Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees are informed
that Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees who access to significant insider information which
has the potential to impact changes in the price of the Company’s securities are advised to refrain
from trading in the Company'’s shares for a period of 1 month. Such information is not permitted to be
disclosed to other parties prior to the disclosure to the general public of the financial statements or the
information in question. In order to control and monitor compliance in this regard, the Company has a
policy requiring management to report their shareholdings and any subsequent changes in securities
to the Board of Directors, in accordance with Measure 59.

(3) The company specifies that each director has duty to report transaction of buy and sell of company’s
share to the board of director.

(4) Failure to follow the rules above may result in disciplinary action by the company. This may range from
a verbal warning, a written warning, probation and all the way up to termination of employment.

5) Audit fees

The 2019 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders passed a resolution to nominate Ms.Wanya Buddasathien,
Certified N0.4387 or Mr.Cherdsakul Onnmongkol, Certified No.7195 or Ms.Waraporn Intaraprasit, Certified No.7881
or Ms.Chonthicha Lertvilai, Certified No.12258 or Ms.Waraporn Phanpakdeenupong, Certified No.12261 or
Ms.Rawissada Wadwaree, Certified No0.12026 of C.W.W.P Company Limited to be the 2019 company’s auditor. All
the auditors listed above have no relationship or any interest with the company / subsidiaries / executives / major
shareholders or related to such person in anyway. The audit fees were determined at 1,170,000 Baht, Increasing
103,000 Baht from year 2018.

For non-audit item, in the last accounting period the company used the English translation service from this
auditing office which costs 60,000 baht.
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Social and Environmental Responsibilities

The phrase of “Houses Built on Good Intentions” is the main philosophy of all executives and employees of Lalin
Property Public Company Limited who are committed to build a house with full intention, pay attention to the life quality
and create good environment to customers, support motivation of all employees in the organization and nearby com-

munities, and also return benefis to the society.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is one of the principles that Lalin Property Public Company Limited consis-
tently focuses on throughout its operation. The Company is aware of the sustainable growth of the organization which
requires visions, capabilities, together with morality and ethics in the operation under the good corporate governance
principle and corporate social responsibility.

Respect of Human Rights and Fair Treatment of Employees

The Company is committed to comply with the labor law and other laws related to employment by focusing on
care and attention to employees. In addition, the Company provides welfares to employees, such as provident fund,
educational scholarship for employees, group health insurance, annual holidays according to rules of the labor law, fair
salary payment, and annual bonus payment, in order to return a favor to employees’ intentions in operations. KPI (Key
Performance Indicator) is applies as the indicator representing the efficiency and effectiveness of performances of the

organization or sections in the organization.

However, the Company establishes the Welfare Committee to give advices and suggestions regarding to welfares,
inspect and audit welfares provided to employees, and provide comments and additional or necessary guidelines
relating to welfares. In addition, the Company also provides the annual employee survey relating to satisfaction on the
working environment, nature of work, executives, communication, and organizational commitment of the employees.
Such survey will be applied as the guideline for further development t and improvement.

Furthermore, Lalin Property also focuses on providing trainings continuously in order to enhance skills, knowl-
edge, and capabilities in the operation of employees. Annually, the Company will offer opportunities to supervisors
and employees to express their opinions relating to the demand of trainings for self-development and development of
occupational knowledge and abilities.

Regarding to the activities for strengthening good relationship in the organization, the Company organizes the
New Year Party at the end of every year, Annual Sport’s Day, and “Happy Hour” activity after office hours once a month,
in order to enhance happiness of employees in working, relax and reduce stress. These activities will lead to Happy
Organization and also create good relationship between employees, as well as employees and executives, including
support the organizational commitment of employees.

Fair Business Operation

The Company intends to create good confidence for customers, which will cause positive results in long term, and
ignores other benefits possibly affecting the business operation of the Company. The Company will avoid any operation
which may cause conflict of interests. If the conflict of interests is found, the Company will settle it fairly. In addition, the
Company provides the management system which prevents the bribes and corruption. If any corruption is detected,

the Company will rapidly solve that problem.

Customer Responsibility

The Company emphasizes on doing business by constructing qualified and standardized houses. Moreover, the

Company is aware of services which create the best impression to customers with the following practices.
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1. Providing complete and fair information to customers and considering benefits of customers, such as, no
exaggerated advertising, providing clear information with simple and easy-to-understand language

2. Developing products and services of the business which respond the social and environmental demand to
customers and have the standard in order to create customers” satisfaction. The Company establishes the
Quality Control section (QC) for inspecting and controlling the production process or services so that all
products are in accordance with the requirements of the organization, including the corrective action system
which helps detect non-conforming products.

3. Anti-corruption and performing fair business operation

4.  Listening to a problems and rapidly and willingly resolve problems without bias and mainly considering

benefits of customers

Organizing Activities under Project

The Company greatly pays attention to create good relationship with members under the Lalin Project by building
participation and interaction through any activities, such as New Year Party, Children’s Day, Loy Kratong Day, making
merits on Buddhist Festivals, etc. Additionally, the Company also focuses on the quality of life of all members in the
project by providing the medical checkup, vaccination for dogs, Big Cleaning event, etc.

Developing Community and Society

Strong communities and society with sustainable development are very significant as the supporting factor for the
business operation of the Company. As a result, the Company promotes social activities continuously and participates
in enhancing strength for communities by creating qualified society, reducing or stopping negative impacts on com-
munities and society, especially impacts arising out of the operation of the Company. In addition, the Company also
supports volunteering activities relating to community and society development.

Conserving Nature and Environment

1. Fostering employees to save and consume energy valuably, such as turning off lights during lunch break
and all computers after finishing using, adjusting the temperature of air conditioners at the saving-energy

temperature and turning them off after finishing using.

2. Realizing energy problems and global warming by fostering awareness of employees to help save and

support re-use of resources, such as using recycled paper for photocopying

3. Communicating to all employees, customers, and associated persons to be aware of the energy saving and

energy consumption with the highest worthwhileness
4. Using benefits from technologies in order to reduce transportation and energy consumption

5. Considering environment and impacts on society surrounding the construction sites, providing preventive
measures for dust and safety, noise pollution, managing wastes arising out of the construction, and providing

wastewater treatment before releasing out of the construction sites
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6.  Designing houses which help save energy and cause no impact on environment. All housing projects of the
Company are planned, managed, and controlled in terms of all production process. In addition, the Company
designs houses according to the principles of the nature by selecting and using materials which save the
energy and help reduce the global warming, such as, green tinted glasses, which help reduce the intense
and heat of the light, including filter UV and reflect heat, so the heat inside the house reduces and help less

consumption of air conditioners.

7. Communicating knowledge and information relating to impacts on environment and safety to all employees,

customers, and the public

Safety Operation

The Company is aware of the life, health, and property safety of employees and customer under the projects by

implementing the following operations;

1. Installing CCTV in the Company for the safety of employees and around the housing projects of the Company

foe the safety of residents in the projects
2. Providing 24-hour security guards who have no criminal records and drug use

3. The Company provides the training of “Firefighting and Evacuation” once a year so that employees acknowledge
the basic preventive measures, fire exit routes, fire extinguishers usage, and safe evacuation out of the

building. This activity is the preparation in case real situations take place.

Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSRs)

Lalin Property Public Company Limited is always mindful that we are a part of society and conscious of our impor-
tant responsibility to society as well as the community. The Company therefore regularly organizes activities to benefit
society and has consistently done so throughout. This takes the form of educational assistance with the presentation of
scholarships to schoolchildren and students; monetary donations to various charities; donations of funds and neces-
sities to victims of natural disasters such as floods; and including holding community activities through the Company’s
projects.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

At the board of directors’ meeting No. 1/2020 held on February 26, 2020, the board of directors approved the audit
committee in line with the assessment form for the sufficiency of the internal control systems for 2019. In summary, the
Company has sufficient internal controls covering 5 areas, namely, internal control, risk assessment, operation control,

information system and communication, and monitoring systems. The details are as follows:

1. Internal Control

The Company has set a goal for business operations approved by the board of directors, which is clear, reasonable and
measureable in order to be used as an operational guideline for employees. The Company requires executives and employees
to perform their duties with integrity and moral ethics in writing and also communicates this matter to all employees in the new
employee orientation. The Company has established complete policies and rules in writing, appropriate corporate structure,
clear chain of command, and relationship between internal sections, including properly assigned authorities, duties, and
responsibilities to personnel. Main duties are divided to provide check-and-balance. A chain of command has been set in
place that is clear and appropriate. Employee roles and duties are established in writing so that all employees are
aware of the authority, duties and responsibilities and properly execute duties with full ability. Employees are continu-
ously educated and trained with the skills necessary for operations. In addition, an efficient internal control system is

established, including an independent internal audit reporting directly to the Audit Committee.

2. Risk Assessment

The Company focuses on risk assessment. At the board of directors’ meeting, risks with potential impact on the
Company’s business operations are assessed and considered in terms of internal and external factors from all sections
in order to establish the strategy on risk management which may cause impacts and damages to the Company. At
the bi-weekly board of directors’ meetings, each line of work reports problems, issues and opportunities for potential
corruption and presents the measures taken in line with the risk management guidelines. The Company’s executives
assess situations, analyzes and prioritize the risk level, determines risk control methods and preventive and corrective
measures, and monitors situations that are the root cause risk factors as well as those measures in order to mitigate

potential impacts on the Company’s business operation.

3. Operation Control

The Company has set significant control activities of each work system and regularly reported performances. The
management structure is established to divide and separate duties and responsibilities of each unit, consisting of the
duty of approval, information and transaction recording and asset maintenance. However, the Company develops its
information technology to support its efficient operations. In addition, policy and operational procedures are regularly
reviewed and the Company also participated in the announcement of intention and commitment to prevent corruptions
in the projects of collective action coalition of the private sector to fight against corruptions organized by the Stock
Exchange of Thailand.
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4. Information System and Communication

The Company has arranged sufficient key information available for decision-making and submits it to the board of
directors within the period stipulated by the law. Minutes of the board of directors’ meetings are prepared in detail and
kept available for proper review of directors’ execution of duty. Documents supporting the accounting records are com-
pletely stored and categorized. The Company develops and updates the computer system for the Company’s database
management so that data collection and management as well as report preparation are efficient and suitable. Data is
always reported rapidly, timely and accurately. Communication channels are available throughout the entire company
via an intranet system. Department meetings are held on a monthly basis. For external communications, the Company
provides the section of investor relations via its website (www.lalinproperty.com) as a communication channel between

the Company and external investors and agencies.

5. Monitoring System

The Company monitors business performances to determine achievement of set goals. Meetings
are held with the Management once a week. Executive board meetings are held bi-weekly to closely monitor
performances. Furthermore, the board of directors’ meetings are held at least 5 times a year to consid-
er, analyze and evaluate whether performances meets the established strategies, goals and business plans
and to solve potential problems and adjust action plans to meet changing situations. In addition, the Company also has
an Internal Audit Department which has the duty of auditing the Company’s operations in order to assess and report audit
results directly to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee then reports performances to the board of directors at the
boards’ meetings every time. Regarding to financial data, independent auditors perform audits and render opinions. At

present, no errors in internal control system on accounting have been found to significantly affect the financial statement.

As of December 31, 2019, the head of internal audit unit is Ms. Praphasri Kittichaloemkiat. Her brief profile is as
follows;

Educational Background

 Bachelor of Business Administration (Accounting) Hua Chiew Chalermprakiet University (Year 1997-2001)

+ Master of Science (Information Technology Management) Rangsit University

Working Experience

 Internal Audit SeniOor Officer Summit Auto Seat Industry Company Limited, Year 2003- 2008
+ Section Head of Internal Audit Department Modernform (Public) Company Limited, Year 2008-2015

* Internal Audit Manager Lalin Property (Public) Company Limited, Year 2015 — current

Training Program

» Anti-corruption in Organizations of the Federation of Accounting Professions

* Internal Audit Operation in Information System of the Federation of Accounting Professions

» Evaluating Internal Control: A COSO Based Approach of the Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand
* Risk Based Audit of the Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand

« Executive Mini MBA class 15 — NIDA Business School

Certificate

« Tax Auditor

The Audit Committee has opinion that Ms. Praphasri Kittichaloemkiat, Head of Internal Audit Unit of the Company,
has adequate qualifications and experience to efficiently perform internal audits. In addition, Company’s internal audit
unit is independent. The Audit Committee has the duty to approve the appointment, transfer, and dismiss of the head

of internal audit unit or any other units relating to an internal audit.
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Related party transactions

The Company currently does not have any related party transactions. However, if company will do any related
transactions in the future, the company will determine any terms as normal commercial practice at market prices, which
may be compared with prices in transactions occurring with outside parties. The Company will assign the Audit Com-
mittee, the corporate auditors, or independent experts to review the transactions and provide their opinions as to the

suitability of pricing and justification of such items.

The Board of Directors must ensure that any future related party transactions comply with the Securities and Stock
Exchange Act, regulations, announcements, orders or conditions of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Furthermore, com-
pliance is required with regulations governing the disclosure of related party transactions and the significant acquisition,

or divestiture of securities in the Company or its subsidiaries.

Furthermore, related party transactions for the Company or its subsidiaries which may occur with individuals hav-
ing potential conflict of interest, vested interest or future conflict of interest, require the Audit Committee to review and
provide their opinion as to the necessity and suitability of the transaction. In the event that the Audit Committee does
not possess the expertise to consider the particular transaction in question, the Company will assign an independent
expert or the corporate auditors to provide an opinion. The feedback will be used in the decision making of the Board
of Directors’ or Shareholders, as may be the case. The Company will disclose details of related party transactions in

the Notes to the Financial Statements, which have been duly inspected by the corporate auditors.
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Explanation of Performance and Financial Status Analysis

In 2019, Lalin Property Public Co., Ltd. realized income at a total of 4,640.93 million baht, an increase from the
previous year by 542.27 million baht or a growth of 13.23 percent. This growth is stronger than the industry’s overview
for the fourth consecutive year. The Company continually maintains superior cost management ability than the market
average, causing the Company to have a net profit of 891.51 million baht in 2019, a growth of 15 percent from the pre-
vious year. This growth rate is higher than the industry’s overview for the fourth consecutive year from 14 percent, 36
percent and 41 percent in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The year 2019 was another year when the Company continually expanded projects, investing in the launching
of nine projects with a total value of approximately seven billion baht. All of the projects were low-rise projects with a
total of 3,180 units sold. The business has grown continually over the past five or six years. In the past five years, the
Company launched approximately 40 new projects with a total value exceeding 25 billion baht. Part of the projects were
launched to replace sold-out projects and closed projects, while part of the projects were launched with new locations
and product models to meet customer demand and support sustainable business growth. These projects contributed
to the Company’s continual growth in the past. The Company has clear goals focused on marketing only in the real
demand group and aggressively conducts business to build the organization’s capacity for secure growth in the real
estate market as a national housing Company. When speaking of low-rise housing with a price range of 2 — 6 million
baht, the Lalin brand must be among the top three in the minds of consumers. In marketing, the Company used big
data in digital marketing to analyze and seek customer insight. The Company also used the CRM system aggressively
in the form of Lalin 4.0 connections where customers can learn news, information and communicate with Lalin with fast

two-way communication in order to meet standards.

Apart from continual growth in sales and perceived income over the past five years, the Company retains the abil-
ity to manage costs as reflected in the Company’s profitability ratios, which have been higher than the industry average
since the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange in 2002. In 2019, the Company’s gross profit margin was 39.17
percent, a similar level to the previous year and higher than the industry average at 33.00 percent. This reflects good
direct cost management in the ability to purchase land and manage construction. The Company continually develops
construction systems through new innovations along with developing more effective management systems in the area of
construction, which improved product quality and manage costs. The Company’s SG&A/Revenues are at 11.00 percent,
a slight improvement from 11.53 percent from the previous year and a continual improvement when compared to 13.75

percent, 12.56 percent and 11.50 percent in 2015, 2016 and 2017, respectively.

Net profit in 2019 was at 891.51 million baht, an ongoing increase from the past four years. The Company’s net
profitin 2015 —2018 was at 355.19 million baht, 500.31 million baht and 777.15 million baht, respectively. The Company’s
profit grew by more than 150 percent in only four years. The Company’s net profit margin in 2019 was at 19.21 percent,

a slight improvement from 18.96 percent in the previous year and a higher level than the overall industry average.

In terms of capital structure, although the Company’s business has grown continually over the past several years,
the Company maintains gearing level better than the market average. At the end of 2019, the Company’s debt-to-equity
ratio (D/E Ratio) was only 0.75 times, similar to 0.74 times in the previous year and a reduction when compared to 0.85
times and 0.79 times in 2016 and 2017, respectively. The Company was able to maintain a low debt-to-equity ratio, even
though the Company invested to expand new projects with a total value of over 25 billion baht over the past five years.
This was partly because management to create an economy of speed helped the Company’s investments to turn more

along with more effective inventory management. The Company’s D/E ratio is considered very low when compared to
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the industry average at 1.40 times. The Company manages financial risks strictly by using diverse loan sources along
with setting sufficient committed lines from commercial banks for all debts due to be paid in the next one or two years.
When the balance sheet was considered, as of 31 December 2019, the Company’s total assets amounted to 11,501.88
million baht, an increase of 1,072.33 million baht from the end of the previous year or an increase of 10.28 percent. This
came from an increase of liability accounts at 504.78 million baht and an increase of 567.55 million baht in shareholders’
equity. Assets with significant changes consisted of inventory with an increase from 1,533.74 million baht to 10,063.12
million baht. This increase came from the Company’s launches of nine new projects in 2019 with a value of over seven

billion baht to support business growth and replace sold out projects.

Concerning liability accounts at the end of 2019, the Company’s total liabilities were 4,938.14 million baht divided
into 2,720.72 million baht in current liabilities and 2,217.42 million baht in non-current liabilities. Current liabilities con-
sisted of liabilities from loans in the amount of 1,390.28 million baht divided into 939.87 million baht in long term loans
due to be paid in one year and 450.41 million baht in account overdrafts and short term loans. When compared to
19.42 million baht in account overdrafts and short term loans in the previous year, account overdrafts and short term
loans can be seen to have increased significantly. This was because the Company issued 500 million baht in long term
loan shares with a period of five years at the end of 2018. The Company used the aforementioned funds to repay short
term loans. Thus, as of the end of 2018, the Company’s short term loans were at only 19.42 million baht. In 2019, the
Company sold two batches of loan shares valued at 500 million baht divided into 200 million baht in loan shares with a
period of five years and 300 million baht in loan shares with a period of three years. These loan shares were issued for
use in expanding the Company’s business. Overall, mean interest cost in 2019 declined continually in the past several

years.

Shareholder equity as of the end of 2019 was at 6,563.74 million baht, an increase of 567.55 million baht or 5.44
percent. At the end of 2019, the Company’s debt to equity ratio (D/E Ratio) was at 0.75 times, similar to 0.74 times at
the end of 2018. The aforementioned number reflects strict financial risk management policies. The Company has ad-
hered to financial discipline throughout over 30 years since the founding of the Company. The Company never creates
uncontrolled debts. This helped the Company to be one of only a few companies in Thailand to have never required the

debt restructuring process with any financial institutes after the financial crisis of 1997.

In 2019, the Company paid out dividends to the Company’s shareholders on two occasions. On 10 May 2019, the
Company paid out dividends in cash with a par value of 0.175 baht. This was a cash payment of 161.87 million baht
(for performance in the second half of 2018). The Company paid out interim dividends on 13 September 2019 at a par
value of 0.175 baht (for performance in the first half of 2019). This was a cash payment of 323.75 million baht in 2019.
This payment is currently being presented to the annual general meeting of 2020 for approval of dividend payouts to
shareholders. For performance in the second half of 2019, the Company will propose another cash payout at a par value
of 0.21 baht or a cash payment of 194.25 million baht to be paid on 8 April 2020.
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Statement of the Board of Director’s Responsibilities
to the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the financial statements of Lalin Public Company Limited, as well as the
financial information presented in the 2019 Annual Report. These financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, using appropriate accounting principles that are applied on a consistent
basis. Furthermore, cautious judgment and the best estimates for financial projections are exercised in the preparation
of the statements. Every care is taken to ensure adequate disclosure of information in the Notes to the Financial State-

ments, for the benefit of Shareholders as well as general investors and in the interests of transparency.

The Company’s Board of Directors has implemented an appropriate risk assessment system, as well as a system
of internal controls, to engender confidence in the accuracy, completeness and sufficiency of accounting information
to maintain the Company’s assets. Moreover, this serves as a safeguard against dishonest or other abnormal activities

of a significant nature.

In this regards, the Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee to review the quality of the financial statements,
the internal audit report and including the system for risk management. The recommendations of the Audit Committee

in this regard are presented in the Report of the Audit Committee as shown in the Annual Report.

The Company’s Financial Statements have been duly inspected by the corporate auditors, Ms. Wanraya Putta-
satiean (Certified N0.4387) of C.W.W.P. Co., Ltd. As part of the audit process, the Board of Directors determined the
policy guidelines for management to provide adequate supporting information and documentation, thereby allowing
the auditors to conduct the audit and provide their opinions in line with auditing standards. The auditors’ opinions are

shown in the Auditors’ Report section of the Annual Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the Company’s overall internal control systems are of
a satisfactory standard and are able to offer reasonable confidence that the annual Financial Statements of Lalin Prop-
erty Public Company Limited for the year ended 31 December 2019 are credible and comply with generally accepted

accounting standards, as well as the relevant regulations.

= C Ml —

(Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong) (Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul)

Chairman Managing Director
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Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of Lalin Property Public Company Limited is composed of three independent directors who

are qualified to the notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand. Name as below.

1. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Assoc. Prof. Niputh Jitprasonk Audit Committee member
3. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Audit Committee member

The Audit Committee performed operations independently and in full capacity as assigned by the Company’s
board of directors. The main duty is to review the financial statements of the Company to be accurate and disclosed
adequately, review the Company’s internal control system and supervise the good corporate governance of the Com-
pany. In 2019, a total of four meetings were held. At each meeting, the Audit Committee participated in discussions with

the Company’s executives, internal auditor and auditor. The essential details can be summarized as follows:

1. Reviewing the Company’s financial statement

The Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly financial statement and financial statement for the year 2019 which
were reviewed and audited by the auditors before presenting them to the Company’s board of directors for approval. In
addition, the Committee attended in the meeting with auditors without the presence of the Management so as to freely
discuss important issues in the preparation of the financial statement and disclosure of information which is beneficial
to users of the financial statement. The Audit Committee rendered the opinion that the aforementioned financial reports
are correct, complete and credible and that substantial information was sufficiently and timely disclosed in accordance

with accounting standards and related rules.

2. Reviewing the Company’s corporate governance procedure, internal control,
risk management, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Audit Committee audited the Company’s good corporate governance and internal control system in order to
evaluate the adequacy, appropriateness and efficiency of the internal control system and risk management according
to the audit standard and guidelines set by the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations. In addition, the Audit Committee considered the internal audit results according to the
annual plan prepared pursuant to the rules of risk standard, listened to explanations of the auditor about the internal
control system, and commented and exchanged knowledge and information relating to risks that may affect the Company
with the board of directors regularly every quarter. The Audit Committee rendered the opinion that the Company has
adequate and effective internal control system and risk management, including intention and commitment to prevent

all kinds of corruption.

3. Reviewing compliance with the laws on securities and the Stock Exchange

The Audit Committee reviewed the compliance with laws on securities and the Stock Exchange, regulations of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand and laws relating to the Company’s business. The Audit Committee commented that the
Company complied with laws on securities and the Stock Exchange, regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and
laws relating to the Company’s business, and found no business transactions fitting the criteria for related transactions

or transactions with potential conflicts of interest.
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4. Supervising internal audit functions

The Audit Committee monitored internal audit functions which cover missions, scope of operation, duties and re-
sponsibilities and independency to ensure that the operational process is effective and there is sufficient internal control
system. The meeting with the Audit Department is held at least once per quarter in order to consider the annual audit
plan and acknowledge the audit results, as well as provide recommendations that are beneficial to the improvement of
operations of the Audit Department and the Management. According to the internal audit results, it is considered that
the internal control has been conducted in an appropriate manner with sufficient information without any important errors
or defects. The Audit Committee rendered the opinion that the Company has adequate internal control system and risk

management.

5. Reporting performances

The Audit Committee reported performances of the Audit Committee to the Company’s board of directors quarterly
and provided comments and suggestions which were beneficial to the management. The Management has appropriately

taken corrective actions according to the suggestions.

6. Consider and select the Company’s auditor for the year 2020

The Audit Committee considered, selected, nominated and proposed the remunerations for the auditors in 2020
based on their knowledge, skill, independence, performance and appropriateness of audit fee in order to propose it to
the Company’s board of directors for further approval of auditor appointment at the shareholders’ meeting. The Audit
Committee proposed to nominate Ms.Wanya Buddasathien, Certified No0.4387 or Ms.Waraporn Intaraprasit, Certified
No.7881 or Ms.Chonthicha Lertvilai, Certified No.12258 or Ms.Waraporn Phanpakdeenupong, Certified No.12261 of
C.W.W.P Company Limited to be the Company’s auditor for the year 2019.

During the year 2019, the Audit Committee has fully performed its duties as assigned by the Company’s board of
directors. The committee fully exercised its knowledge and skills independently and sufficiently and without limitations
in regards to information access, and the Committee has rendered its opinion on the overall picture that the Company
reported its financial information and actions correctly and appropriately in accordance with the accounting standards,
has an internal control system in place with internal audits and proper risk management that are sufficient and in
compliance with laws, regulations and obligations. In addition, the Company continuously promotes good corporate
governance, transparency and credibility. Moreover, the Company continuously improves work systems for the equal

benefits of stakeholders.

(Mr. Suvarn Thansathit)

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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USUN ada wSowiwasa 911a (UKIBU) azusyneoy

LUIIEQVYIUNISIVU

fu 3uf 31 SuoAL 2562

UM IRUTIN
WM 31 5HAN 2562 31 5uNAN 2561 1 031N 2561
N N 1N
W3ulgalvisi) W3ulgalvis)
Aunind
FunSndnsudoy
RQueranagzsensiieusmtueda 7 23,030,839.49 109,886,469.37 49,703,427.03
gnwﬁwguﬁﬂu%‘iu 8 88,679,141.45 67,276,659.46 82,812,521.56
Auauna 9 10,063,121,869.57 8,529,384,063.47 8,478,636,281.96
smFUNS NS 10,174,831,850.51 8,706,547,192.30 8,611,152,230.55
Funindlainyudou
Juasmnuiions 10 101,423,899.64 426,748,453.50 31,267,283.06
fausemarian 12 768,084,135.03 830,686,035.03 839,869,385.03
fiau omsuazgunsel 13 364,904,765.43 372,034,291.37 397,948,663.26
Funswdlifidanusu - qni 2.00 2.00 2.00
Aunsndmbduldsemsdnind 14 12,123,675.20 7,212,543.00 6,130,532.35
Funindlivuidoudu 15 80,513,484.15 86,323,462.34 7,586,962.60
samaunsndlainadou 1,327,049,961.45 1,723,004,787.24 1,282,802,828.30
smdUNInd 11,501,881,811.96 10,429,551,979.54 9,893,955,058.85
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USU¥n ada wSowiwasa 91ia (UKIBU) nazusyngoy

LUIIEQVYIUNISIVU

fu 3uf 31 SuoAL 2562

AUMSEUTIN
HINEYA 31 5HIAN 2562 31 SUNAN 2561 1 4A5IAN 2561
1M 1M 1M
W3ulgalvia) W5ugaln)
Aa v YAy
ﬁuﬁuummumm@mﬂu
n -
‘HHETH‘HHHDEI‘H
Auidnifuiyuazfudtuszezdunnanniunitu 17 450,411,790.21 19,415,326.57 476,072,188.06
WminsAuazminyudeudu 18 464,138,907.15 386,280,909.62 344,993 455.49
druvesfuinasimuasiszaelunile 20 939,871,754.54 799,803,120.25 959,628,760.26
davesnildumelddya it
AK o o A~
mqmwuﬂmixmaiuwm - - 12,840.00
mBiulafane 101,403,730.61 74,890,051.91 80,482,373.04
v 2
Uszanamsnilausesdu 19 764,891,084.23 540,147,615.39 606,166,953.65
snHTUN I 2,720,717,266.74 1,820,537,023.74 2,467,356,570.50
dva v =
niHaulunag Iy
RAudduszozernnyanaiineitean 33337 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00
g 20 1,997,175,555.48 2,436,535,059.34 1,738,642,355.82
Uszmnumsniiau hingudsudmivnatlss Temniminau 21 53,535,565.30 35,979,904.30 30,569,814.30
nigumsituldsensdaind 14 5,460.97 92,624.82 1,972.67
Uszanamsniiauszezen 19 166,604,222.68 140,111,260.46 133,313,664.16
savnaulinyudan 2,217,420,804.43 2,612,818,848.92 1,902,627,806.95
JINNHTY 4,938,138,071.17 4,433,355,872.66 4,369,984,377.45

winawasznausunsRuudouniiarasaunis{uil
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USU¥n ada wSowiwasa 91ia (UKIBU) nazusyngoy

LUIIEQVYIUNISIVU

fu 3uf 31 SuoAL 2562

UMIRUTIN
g 31 511U 2562 31 5uAN 2561 1 431N 2561
U U UIn
@W3uilgalwa) @3vilgalna)
dIuve ey
NuEeuRuY 2
NuIANIiou
Yuainy 925,000,000 1 yaA1juaz 1.00 VN 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00
nuiteenuazdszudy
Yuainy 924,999,441 Ffu yaa1uaz 1.00 VN 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00
drunuyamiudin 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94
M lsavay
s
udisesnngrNe 23 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00
dalu'ldsaass 5,047,006,928.92 4,479,110,639.62 4,007,247,852.15

g A ' YA Y
mﬂﬂsznamummmumamaanu
A yA g
smmummgaaﬁu

Aa v yA Y
FINHUAUUAZTIUVOINDDTIH

winawsznausunsRuudounilarassunis{ull

21,843.93 370,499.32 7,861.31
6,563,743,740.79 5,996,196,106.88 5,523,970,681.40
11,501,881,811.96 10,429,551,979.54 9,893,955,058.85
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USU¥n ada wSowiwasa 91ia (UKIBU) nazusyngoy

LUIIEQVYIUNISIVU

fu 3uf 31 SuoAL 2562

a a
AUMINURNIENAINT

Winewg 31 5UAN 2562 31 funAN 2561 1 4n31AN 2561
U U U
Wiulgalnay W3ulgalnny
Funind
FunSndnapdou
Ruaauazsemsiisumiiuede 7 22,665,220.08 109.418,425.21 49,591,903.04
qnvivuidoudu 8 88,679,141.45 67,276,659.46 82,812,521.56
dudnunde 9 10,066,121,869.57 8,532,384,063.47  8,481,636,281.96
smFunIndnadou 10,177,466,231.10 8,709,079,148.14  8,614,040,706.56
Funindlainyudou
Juaauiions 10 100,678,867.06 426,012,375.02 30,537,912.28
Ruaauluuiindes 11,37 24,996,000.00 24,996,000.00 24,996,000.00
fiausemsviann 12 768,084,135.03 830,686,035.03 839,869,385.03
fiau osuazglnsel 13 361,351,954.33 368,481,480.27 394,395,852.16
Funswdliddaudy - qnd 2.00 2.00 2.00
gunindniituldsomsdmin® 14 12,123,675.20 7,212,543.00 6,130,532.35
Funswdlivyuidoudy 15 80,513,456.79 86,323,434.98 7,586,935.24
samFunIndlainyudou 1,347,748,090.41 1,743,711,870.30  1,303,516,619.06
FMFUNT W 11,525,214,321.51  10,452,791,01844  9,917,557,325.62

winawasznausunsRuudouniiarasaunis{uil
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USUN ada wSowiwasa 911a (UKIBU) azusyneoy

LUIIEQVYIUNISIVU

fu 3uf 31 SuoAL 2562

a a
AUMINURNIENINT

Winewa 31 5UAN 2562 31 5UNAN 2561 1 41NN 2561
UIn U UIn
W3ulgalnny W3ulgalnny
Aa v yA g
ﬁuammzmummgnaﬁu
2 -
ﬁuﬁumgunﬂu
Rudninuiyduaztudduszezdunnaaniumsiiu 17 450,411,790.21 19,415,326.57 476,072,188.06
Wmiimsauazsmiinyuieudu 18 464,758,139.98 386,539,879.97 344,993,450.44
dauvesfugnastmuasisenielunildl 20 939,871,754.54 799,803,120.25 959,628,760.26
duveanildunolddayauiinitu
AR o ° &
mamﬁumﬂismaﬂluwmﬂ - - 12,840.00
miiduldmae 101,370,817.16 74,857,268.26 79,801,734.65
Uszanumsniauszozdu 19 764,891,084.23 540,147,615.39 606,166,953.65
FINHHTUHUIEY 2,721,303,586.12 1,820,763,210.44  2,466,675,927.06
dwa 1] =
nHaulanaTeu
Rudouszezenaniitindos 33.3 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00 19,000,000.00
Rudduszezenainyanaiinertenn 33.3,37 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
yug 20 1,997,175,555.48 2,436,535,059.34  1,738,642,355.82
Uszmamsuiiau liwyuBoudmsunailss Temniminau 21 53,535,565.30 35,979,904.30 30,569,814.30
niaumiuldsemsdain® 14 355.94 89,310.61 -
szanumsniiauszezen 19 166,604,222.68 140,111,260.46 133,313,664.16
sawtaulivyudou 2,240,315,699.40 2,635,715,534.71  1,926,525,834.28
A 4,961,619,285.52 4,456,478,745.15  4,393,201,761.34

winawsznausunsRuudounilarassunis{ull
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USU¥n ada wSowiwasa 91ia (UKIBU) nazusyngoy

LUIIEQVYIUNISIVU

fu 3uf 31 SuoAL 2562

a a
JUMTNURANITNINT

wnewa 31 5UAN 2562 31 Sunau 2561 1 un31A3 2561
U N U
@3uilyalna) W3nlgalna
TIuveaetiu
nuEouru 2
Nuaanzdou
Vuensiny 925,000,000 ¥ yamiuaz 1.00 v 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00
nuiteenuazdrszud
Vuensity 924,999,441 ¥ yamiuaz 1.00 1 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00
drunuyamiuaiy 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94
flsazey
saassuda
NuAITeIIMNgHIY 23 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00
gala'lasaass 5,046,878,644.25 4,479,240,062.88  4,007,640,625.72

I 4 ' E Y
’E)Qﬂﬂizﬂ@ﬂﬂuﬂl@\iﬁﬂuﬂlﬂﬂ@ﬂﬂﬂu
1 vy Y
FINAIUVBINDOTH U

Aa v YAy
FINNHAUUASAIUVIIR DB U

winawasznausunsRuudouniiarasaunis{uil

1,423.80 357,242.47 (29.38)
6,563,595,035.99 5,996,312,273.29 5,524,355,564.28
11,525,214,321.51 10,452,791,018.44 9,917,557,325.62
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USUN ada wSowiwasa 911a (UKIBU) azusyneoy

vumlsuranuidaias
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1,122,092,691.64

50,987,606.36
(2,111,265.38)
335,546.84
251,236,431.06

18,966,753.00

(231,559.41)

21,653,202.25

U
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972,397,582.75

61,155,474.47
(1,027,872.93)
17,465.63
(59,221,741.96)
5,898,485.00
(14,812.24)
(7,140,451.84)
(214,995.38)

21,551,624.45
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1,121,769,806.73

50,987,606.36
(2,111,265.38)

335,546.84

251,236,431.06

18,966,753.00

(230,084.48)

22,013,202.23
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61,155,474.47
(1,027,872.93)

17,465.63
(59,221,741.96)

5,898.485.00
(14,812.24)
(7,140,451.84)
(213,871.75)

21,919,569.63
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15,550,674.34
605,378,796.29
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(96,752,362.63)

230,084.48
(208,946,741.90)

1,653,499,688.40
(79,000,653.62)

213,871.75
(201,201,684.50)

57,283,347.10

1,372,760,618.92

57,385,771.85

1,373,511,222.03
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(1,065,000,000.00)
1,392,000,000.00

(46,874,247.52)

(138,492,350.00)

(66,600,000.00)

n

Wiwlgalnai

(1,885,000,000.00)
1.491,000,000.00

(37,532,426.89)

(561,571,102.00)

(74,650,000.00)

N

(1,065,000,000.00)
1,392,000,000.00

(46,874,247.52)

(138,492,350.00)

(66,600,000.00)

n

(1,885,000,000.00)
1,491,000,000.00

(37,532,426.89)

(561,571,102.00)

(74,650,000.00)

75,033,402.48

(1,067,753,528.89)

75,033,402.48

(1,067,753,528.89)

(19,003,536.36)
2,248,000,000.00

(1,798,000,000.00)

500,000,000.00
(800,000,000.00)
(802,500.00)
(25,989,343.33)

(323,376,999.77)

13,343,138.51
760,000,000.00
(1,230,000,000.00)
(12,840.00)
1,500,000,000.00
(960,000,000.00)
(3,369,999.99)
(19,892,227.25)

(304,892,118.96)

(19,003,536.36)
2,248,000,000.00

(1,798,000,000.00)

500,000,000.00
(800,000,000.00)
(802,500.00)
(25,989,343 .33)

(323,376,999.77)

13,343,138.51
760,000,000.00
(1,230,000,000.00)
(12.,840.00)
(1,000,000.00)
1,500,000,000.00
(960,000,000.00)
(3.369,999.99)
(19,999,350.53)

(304,892,118.96)

(219,172,379.46) (244,824,047.69) (219,172,379.46) (245,931,170.97)
(86,855,629.88) 60,183,042.34 (86,753,205.13) 59,826,522.17
109,886,469.37 49,703,427.03 109,418,425.21 49,591,903.04

23,030,839.49 109,886,469.37 22,665,220.08 109,418,425.21




s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 151

USUN ada wSowiwasa 911a (UKIBU) la:usdngoy

KUgIKQUS:NDULUNISIDU

dksulaugadun 31 SuoAu 2562

1. Yoyandl

'
A v o o A

a o [ a o 3 Aana
UIYNA ‘ﬂﬂ'i/lg!,ﬁﬂu@nuﬂﬁzﬂ’c‘lﬁﬂaﬂNWﬂuWQLLZ’!%WTEI!%ﬂlﬂuu@ﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁ&ﬂﬂﬂﬁH“I/]ﬁ]']ﬂﬂ o

]
v A

a aa { a o I a o
UN 8 NEAINIYU 2531 mgﬁﬂuuwuﬂﬂmamﬁ 8781/2531 LAz UTHNA “lﬁ'uﬂiﬁmmﬂumymmwu

9 v
[ [} =1

e WeTuf 3 Aueneu 2545 nziieuiiayanaavi 0107545000233 Tasldninaulnaaegaai

o

a2 J @ a 1
222/2 DUUATUATUNS 1Y NHIMNN ALzt ngamwunuas Yszmalng Taslidnevusielng)

flo NnquaszAAINA azaszna Y AR Tudadiuieoas 35.58 azSeoa 34.24 awdAu

a o o A a o A

U3 Hna duliugsnandn Ae msauedinisunindiveans
d o o a
2. IDAUNMSIANRUNI TN
Y Y
2.1 UMIRUHIAMIUAUINATTIUMITIeNUNIMIIUYeslsemaine saudsmsAnnuaziug
Ufianmaigdndsemald Tasanindniyd ngszdievnazlszmaanznssunsfiny
[ v J [ I 9
NANNS NELAZAMANAANS NININEITDI
o a I o a 9 A o 1 d‘g} ~
22 myiasens wumstudlu llaulszmansuianngsnamsm Fes fvuasemsdonaodl
Tuumstu
v o a A Y I a 1 a Aa o 9
23 lumsvaiaumsRuie ldilu llananasgiumssenumeamstu heusmsvessting dog
I¥msiszanamsuaztoaunaviatslszns FalinansenuaosuuRunmnenuseld a1l
a [ t4 dyQ = 9 a v Aa [ C4 dya A a dy = A a dy
funsnduazviiay uazmsilamedoyanenuaunsnauaz i dunonnaIu Fananinauy
5aoauanan lnnsnunldlszanans 13
a @ I a v A A o Y I
24 swnunuemstuatiun Ineidussaumemstuaioiuieng liumemsaungrune

518\111!1/11\1ﬂ”liﬁlmﬁllﬂ”lﬂ”IETQﬂi]HLLﬂﬁi]”lﬂi”lfN”lH‘IﬂNﬂ”ﬁﬁuﬂﬁﬂﬂ”ﬁeﬂ]l‘ﬂEJ



152 USBn ada wSowiwosh 9111A (UKBU) s1evuds=91U 2562

3. NANMIIATNUNIRUIIN

[ o a a o o 4 a o 1 { '
3.1 TunI5TAMIUNITRUT IV UTHN afl‘ﬂaﬂLﬂm“V]fﬂii’JMLﬂWW&Ji‘H‘V]EJE]EJ‘I?]EJEQJJﬂ'IEJiG%hWiﬂ’HJﬂiJ

4
[

a o a 3 J. @ Y o Y ! v Y
VNUIHN aaan Wi'E]WL‘W'E]ia 109 (WHIBU) Wa\‘ﬁﬂﬂulﬂﬁﬂﬂ'ﬁ’]ﬂﬂ\‘imaﬂlLa$'§18ﬂ1'§ﬂ1i$ﬂ’N\‘lﬂulmﬂ

9
a o Y a o 1 Y 1 [
Tagusng dovulunsingosauonsidiu aell

@ @

AdIUNMTAINY AdIUNITAINY
o o o o
i - 3 - a Jun a Jun
¥oNINT ANVULFIND 3 3
31 TUNAN 2562 31 TUNAN 2561
Y 4
FREGE FREGE
~ o ¢ 72X o w o v a o @A
U3EN wiomiles nIewmesa i WanedamIunIndievie 99.98 99.98
a o Jd o w o o a o 4
131N nsomles Wimaa saia Waned s unsnamovie 99.00 99.00

@ a w1 2 @ v W a o a [ P o
32 ﬁ@Uigﬂgna'l'UiUu%"U@\iﬂﬁ‘HT]ﬂ@ﬂ ﬁui:fﬂ?ulaﬂﬁﬂillﬂﬂﬂlﬂ\‘]ﬂi‘ﬂﬂ aaa WﬁﬂWLWﬂﬁa 1NA (UHIFBU)
[ ) a2 a o ( a v J ya 1
33 Gluﬂ’liﬂﬂ“ﬂ’lﬁ‘llﬂ’lil\?ui'lll UIHN hlﬁjﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁuﬂiwmlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁUﬂ\‘]lﬁﬁfJ L!agi'lﬂﬂ'l'ﬁ?gﬁiﬁﬁﬂ'l\‘]
@ Y
AULLAD

= a o 1 % %

o U { 9 o
34 ulewremstaFuesuitndosludiuvessienstiydnmlounulsulouronisiiyd

UASINUN VLI HN
' Y
3.5 lumsdarkeumiRusan USEma fuutuaauluyiindosNuiing asuawasosas

Yy 9

A &£ A
99.00 tFFUBUYIHIDOYUI DAL 100

Q

4. MmsnasgIumMsnenmInsiuaiulvinazatvliulsensed fiia

A o Y o a Y 1 Y [ A v o Y o [
VIHNA 1@“1%1@]5:@1“fni'iTEJ\NL!‘V]']\?ﬂ']'iNUﬂﬂﬂﬁlﬂulmgﬂUUﬂﬁUﬂ?\?WNWﬁUQﬂ‘Ui%ﬁTWﬁ‘U

=

Y dd‘Q' A v o A A a oA 2 1
3@‘U3$ﬂ&t?ﬁ1ﬂ@%ﬂlﬁh1uﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ’ll‘!ﬂ 1 UNIIAN 2562 3JTﬂ’é]‘]Jg‘U@TﬂthllmNﬁﬂi%“l/l‘ﬂf]ﬂ']\ih

v
=) o =) v A

M3zAIAYABIVNTRY FIMTTNIATFIUMNMTTIONUNNMI[U A1UR 15 509 519 1dAnndyanh

2

o w Y A ava A o =S [ v A ] =) a ua v z:gll
ﬂTﬂUQﬂﬂWNTﬂ@ﬂ{]U@I VIHN llﬂ15uWHIﬂUWﬂﬂﬁUﬂJfBiWNN1ﬂ@ﬂ§]Uﬂﬂ\ﬂ!

v
A o W

1 Y d' Y é [ 9 1 =) a o a 1 1 9
4.1 ﬂWHTﬂﬁHW%TﬂLW@ﬁlmﬂNTWQﬁﬂJ MINNUNAT — LT HITVBIUT HND NTUINATUIHTN

‘. 4 : @ { o o I a @ J v 1 1
naelhie 1 ldnaedygrniinugndnzdesiuiinduduninduazdaiilunldie
Y @ Y

] I 1Y) 9 [ 2’, g A A
E’JEJNL‘]Jui%‘]_l‘]JLl,ﬁ$ﬁ’f’]ﬂﬂa’ENﬂ‘]Jiﬂlmﬂﬂﬁiﬂgﬁﬂ"lﬂﬁihﬁq‘lty”l MU Gl,uﬂsmma:aznmmm

o o Y = =

v o 1 a @ I ) : o
msaasmitedunindnezSufdmsudunulums Idnasdygriiszeznamilanavse
Yy &

g‘/ 1T A v K 9 [ [ 1 I 1 91 A a
qdUNN ﬂﬁ]f‘ﬂifﬂzi_l‘l!'i/lﬂﬂuﬂucluﬂ']ﬁllﬂll']"]f\‘lﬁﬂJuﬂJﬂﬂQﬂﬁTJlf]_]uﬂ'ﬂ%‘mﬂmﬂlﬂﬂﬁTﬂﬂWﬁ

A A IS

U a A [ A o o Y Y o Y 9
4.2 'iwm'immﬁumﬁnfmizualuﬁmumummﬂugﬂm Tﬂﬂiﬁﬂugﬂmm JJm'i%ﬂmmEJuTaumu

] Yya 9 1a 1 A o A 1A Y Aq ¥ 1 dy I 1
LB mﬂwﬁuﬂﬂﬂﬂllilﬂﬂyjam (UBILDY) VT END WATUINTUAMN WA uaiuaIuved
D B v A a o ¥ ¥y v o v ¥ 2 Y o o= v
U unserHannusEna mmﬁmaﬂwaﬂmmmﬁmmﬂ PANIUHIIADIUUNNAUNUUD

U 9

=

[ dyd [ = 9 A A o I 9 () 1
'iwmimamgﬂumuwuwamunumﬂmﬂmuwuu‘nﬂtﬂumunuﬂlumiﬁmmwmﬂ



s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 153

4
Y

09.11 A A Yy [ A A 1 o

MIUUTENA ]lﬂllﬂ'lii]ﬂﬂiglﬂ'1/]5’]flﬂ'l§"U'N§”lEJﬂ151/]1]W'ﬁﬂ§$1/]ﬂ@]@518ﬂ’]5zluﬂ‘ﬂﬂ’lhli
< <] o o a2 o A @ Y o dy

VIANULUALTTY Tdmiuﬂﬁuﬁ;{ﬂ’mﬂ 31 SUINAY 2562 Llﬁ@]\?hlﬂ ANU

JUMSHUTINAUMTEURNIZNINS

RGN A (anav) MUNIAIFIU
Mavyaan MITIUNNNTRY
avfuf 15
STRNY STRIY N

mﬁﬂwmgmﬁmﬁﬂ
amsull Gugaiun 31 Sunaw 2562
AUNUY (2,797,317,706.72) (14,945,070.31) (2,812,262,777.03)

3

£y

aunulumssadiviing (280,399,741.24) 14,945,070.31 (265,454,670.93)

2 L% 'd' Yy Y Vo T U b
5. anasgrumsnenumenstuaiiulnaifidssmaldudmadaliinateavol s
a = v A 9 9 a =
animndniy® 1ddsemaldnasgunsseaunemstu wasgiumsty® uazns
= a @ V=R =1 v o 9 o [ a A A
ANUNINTFINNITI1IUNMTRU TV I Bz linatfaauledivivaunisquniiseu
szoznauFNGEUlunTonasiuil 1 uns1AN 2563 WIATFIUNITIIBNUNINMTRIURTD 1H]

[ 1 Y= ~ v 0o w = Y o d’l
ﬂ\‘iﬂaTJllﬂﬂJﬂﬁlﬂaﬂuLlﬂa\‘iﬁaﬂﬂ1iﬁ1ﬂfuu“]5\1ﬁ1m1iﬂﬁ§ﬂhlﬂ N

v A A A
WAIFIUNQNIATINDINNNITNY

WINTFIUNITIBNUNNNIRY RTVN 7 599 M3amwedoyansoionansitu
a o A A A A a
WIATTIUMTIYNUNNMTINUY RUUN 9 1393 IATOIUDNNNITNY
v A o A A A = a
IATTIUMTUYY RUUN 32 1399 NITUTANTIYNITIATDINDNINNITNUY

a

MIAANUNIATFIUMITVNUNNMSRU TV 16 503 M13ToanuanuFesvesduanugns

Tumisnuaalssma
- o ! d‘ o dala a 9
MIANNUNIAITIUMITPNUNWMIEY AUVN 19 HBINITNTTHUTUNNMINUAIBATITTNY

WIATFIUMTIIBNUNNMTRUNGUAINEAITNAY TMuananmsneInunsIaszimnn

U a

HazNITIAYan AT 09leN19N15RUAIeYan1gATI TINS5 1A IUAATIIe Tag 1T 8910

UTIANV0INTIAIINIMITRY ANHUSVDINTSUARUAANNTYYMASUNUFINIVOININT
. v A [T o Y ' A A a 9 a
(Business Model) #anM3MNeInLITMIMUIUNIABIAIY0UATINONIIM IR Tag lFuuInaue

9 A a 1 a dﬂf [ A [ o A [ A =
HAYIANUAIUATAANAIAIDLIAATY HATHANNITNEINUMITYFLoInUANUTe: 590DINT
[ [ 4
ueasIeMsazMsitamed oyan30alion1en1s AU HaglouIATFIUMTTIBNUNNMTRUNGUT
= v W Y o Y v A = v A a oA v A
e v 1y sz Innasgiumsiys Msannuue s UMy d uazuuliianianis i

ynuninaifaulFegluilaativansnan T

U Q £



154 USGn ada wiowiwasa 911in (UrIBU) s189uUs=91U 2562

a v A A [
WAFFIUMITNYNHUHNNNTNEY ﬂ‘]J”lJ‘ﬁ 16 1509 atyq‘nvh
@ - Yo v v 9 v 1
ll'lﬁﬁi'luﬂﬂﬂﬁhlﬂﬂ'lﬂuﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂ1iﬂlﬂ\‘lﬂ1iTUEiT(’Jfﬂi N13IAUAANN NITUEANTIYNITHAS DT

o

A v o ' o Yy NN/ e o o o ' {
Aameipyaveddyy e uazmvua Il uaun Snduasnilaudmiudyyusnnsensni
1 J 1a v a g‘; )
szezna lumsEnnnd 12 @ou Buuadunswidrevaiuliyanie
Y91 ure1U3113 90T 8N naz U HndesedserImslsziiunansenunelaliae

a Aa A o a Y Y A a ua
\‘1‘]Jﬂﬁl\‘ll.lbluﬂ‘1/]l§MHW?JW]iﬁTL!fniZHENTH‘V]NﬂTiNuﬂJNﬁuiﬂﬂ@ﬂi‘]Uﬁ

6. Wanamsiyindnw

4 % 1A @ o a2
6.1 namim3dayaninldiaieunstu

v
1A

4 @ Yo o a A 4 a Y1 1Y ’A
Lﬂﬂ!"l/]ﬂ']ﬁ’JﬂyjﬁﬂWﬂiﬂf%ﬂﬂTﬂUﬂWﬁNu D INUNIINTNUIAN I@ﬂigﬁﬁjﬂﬂﬂlﬂﬂl“ﬂ@u‘]

v
A a

o v Aa @ 4 d’d 9 4 [ 1 d' Y a 4 [
dmivauniwduazriduulsznnaiing lnusinigtayganou laidamenusiniiiaya
1 d' [} dd‘d‘ 9
anlF lunTeremstiydnmnedos
d’ A a
6.2 1A3DINONIINITIY
a [ o a Ao 9 a 9y a
FUNTNINNINMTRUNTUF TuaDuaaIgIuemMIRu Usenaudle Ruaauazs1enis
=S 1T A a dy =S A dyQ A Ao 9 a
MVIMRUAA QUaINY QAN UUYUAUIU HUTUNNMTRUNTUF IIUIaaIgIuENITRY
v y A v y A A A a va 9 w9 2 a Yo .
UY52noUAIg 11MUMIA AN INYUAsUBY RUay YU uagniduaglddy gy
a é v A ) [ 1 9 A 1 v Y td'
M3ty FeuTetnemsiaFmnedmsusemsuaazioms ladamenen 13 luuaaziaven
A 9
INYIVDY
6.3 RUAALAZIIENTNIUINIIUAA
a 1A a [ I o
RUAALAZITIEMINIVNINUEA IVRUENNTUIMTUTLANATEUATIEIU DBUNTWE AL
1A § a ,o' [
Uszarlinu 3 mou n'hidanszalsyiu
2 o A
6.4 PUUNYUNIUDY
dyd' J Qd’ Yo
gnuildutaaInINyamIgnEnez Iasy
a Y A
6.5 AUAINUKAD

a Y

o [ A 1 AA Yo 9 1 ° 1

aumdizagl uaaayasimunmmurseyamgnineg lasuudwanmlaszdind
a Y o I ) Aa T W Aa 1 [ o Y 1 Y A
aumndisazil Usznouaie nau Anianau eyl Inaa o mnease uaza lyiisdu
A4 9
ningIvelagnsa

NUITHINAAL HAAIYAAINWTINNU W oyangninamine 1450 uduhednla

:-, 1 ) Aa 1 o AAa 1 v U 1 9 2 o A

9171 1M ulszneuale NAU ANTaNNAY AasIal Inaaie g AneaI g U
o 1 A o 3 R o a ' El A A F) o
80318V INUNT AT ¥ I Mua Tagdens Iasens Arlgatennedrvelagnsanylnsans

= S I o = Xy gy 4 v Y Y
1agAD NI IRUNINNAEIVEY FAVzrgAuNAABNL 8B T UAUN W HDNUAD AT

] A o
Lﬁi‘ﬂﬁiﬂiﬂiﬂﬂﬁﬁgﬂwwm



s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 155

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

RUaINUIHDYY
a A A g a [ [ o Y = Aa o =
Ruasnuievienduduasmulurannindlunudeinisvesnaia Fu5Ena do
I [ ] < A 9 1 a = 1 a (] I
urannindiieisudaialoyaig@ss sy FayamgasIsnvesigasiusianlsema

o A a A o o 9 = ' o
VINHDINU U ’Juﬂmmmmgmzmmu UIHNA i‘ugﬂﬁnJaﬂuuﬂamaﬂﬂum”li(mmqu)

< 3 A [ o A A A o ] a
mﬂmii]'e‘)uTﬂﬂﬂziugiuﬂ1'15%5@@111@uumaumimwmmuamu

a2 a a a @ @ a o 4 9 J
Numnu“lumy% EJEl@ﬂll\1‘]Jﬂ1iNLll,ﬂW1$ﬂi]ﬂ1iﬂuﬁﬂ‘ﬂﬂju%ﬁ1u’ﬁi1ﬂ1ﬂu‘ﬁﬂﬂ1lﬁ@ﬂﬁﬂf]ﬁl?ﬂ

a Y A
UBDINUANNU (")

NAUTOMITWAIU

AAa Y] = Aa A a o a g’/ ~ A ﬂld' L
NAUTEMIWAIL HUeDe NauNUIENTaNualanazde Imedlse Temilueuinauas
9

=4

I a ) [l ~ = [ Y A Y 1
uﬂﬂllazﬂuaumw&i{”lumgunau IﬂﬂllﬁﬂiﬂWNﬁWﬂW}u‘ﬂiﬁfﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂ'ﬂﬁlﬂnﬂﬂﬂ1i@f]ilﬂ?"ll@ﬁ

(3

A o & Y 9 da T QU A AAd g A gqoyny X Aa
Auning namuilsznoudlsdunuiauiazm 199 waunneveueld launasnan
Aa t4
nau 81A15 uazgnsal
{ A 1 @ { a t4 1
NAULEAAAININTIAMY & TUTNATIENS 21ATLA QN TalLAAYaR 1NN Y
o TUNNATIWMIHNR LA UTONTINTLAN LAZHNAVIANUDINMTADIATTZEN (811 LazA 1IN

A a9 ' Y 4 [ dy
ALFTONTIN IAeITITUATINUINU01gNT M)z Teanl Tasrlssanainall

dramlsuilganau 20 3
01A15 20 3l
' H =

13- luasHazasLINeNn 5 1l
inToalddninau 3uag s 3
d’ 1 o 01 =
1A309AALAIF 1IN 5 1l
UNTHUY 5uag 10 3l

] 3 J { 2 J o v (%
ﬁTﬁﬁQ‘}ﬂIﬂﬂ ?)Tﬂﬁﬁill?ﬁ AIUNYDN UV NAY ﬁﬁ%lmdiumumxiwuaummmiﬂ ATTT
A Aa = v W Y Aa o v K I 1 = A Aa d o I
NAU WA, 2543 WHAL A ‘]_Iﬂlflf U HN4 3T UN Y ud UM UIveIna Y 01013 Lla$Qﬂﬂ§m RN
] 3 J { 2 @ @ EZN @
ﬁTﬁTii}éﬂIﬂﬂ E’JTﬂTiﬁIllﬁi AIUNYDYN dUANIAY ﬁﬁ%}NﬁuﬁﬁQQTﬂWi$§1%UﬂJﬂJﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁ]ﬂﬁ'iﬁ
Aa ~ v o 9 Aa o < a A o v X I
NAU N.A. 2543 llWﬁ‘]J\‘IﬂUGlGIf AL HN Laaaai s Nl uus msanssae UsEng awdunndu

1 & a Y A (L I Y o 1 dy A ]
muwuWmﬁummmamLazilzmmmﬂumunumﬂmmmm’mwummnmmaﬂmﬁmi

! o

[ v Y a3 1 PRl 1 o A
ﬂ’](’]fi’)llll"]fllllﬁzTJ”IE\TiﬂH15‘]J§L‘1J°LH°]ﬂflfﬂTEJGLUET'JL!&U@Qﬂ115W§@m1@ﬂu1u5@‘].]53831'3?”

E)

v AaA a A v Y 1 & 1 v A a v A~
UYBNIDAUU 911!‘1@1!6]]’0\‘1ﬂTiLﬂaﬂuLLﬂuiUgLﬂuﬁ'JuWu@‘]Jﬂﬂiquaﬂ”I@]”IiJ‘]JﬂJ%‘]J@QﬁUVIﬁWfJL?J@?J
I v 1A A o o d Aa a 3’4
anuiluly laneudaninusing 12 18sulse TemiFaasugio luewianningon1stiu uas

9 g

ansadiaygamdunuuessemsuu ldedinyene Aunuussnmsulasuumuazgnaanuion

TImanaieIgns alse Towi Tasd sz



156 USBn ada wSowiwosh 9111A (UKBU) sngguls=9U 2562

3 o ' { A d o J 1
ﬂ'lll'iﬁ?i’flsll1@Huﬁ]1ﬂﬂ'lii]'l’ﬂu'lﬂ‘ﬁﬂu mmmamﬂmm ATUIUITNHAANITISUIN

[ a o J o v 9
wa@auLmuiuqmﬂuuammnnm%uaziugg uiwhlmfisaﬂﬂ%mﬂum‘lamamwummu

U

1ANAATIBNT
6.10 Funindlifidauazadasinine

a A 9 <

ansms 1 Tsunsudusogl
a A 9 d'dy A o v KX I a @ o
ansmslfldsunsudiSagingemlaetidsnuazmmeiuiniudunindlas fAuow

v Y o A ¥ o & 9 y v %

vindunulums ldvwazmsdutiunms W ldsunsuduiagiiundonldanld awiszad

HAAIYAAIATNTIANNU B TUTRATIIMSHNAIBAIAATIMIEAZ AU 1AZHAYIANLIINMTAOEA1
9 v o 1 Y 4 1 a

azau (hi) TavazdndmieaasneiglszmnamsIilse Temimeluszozna lihu s 3

6.11 AuNUMIAON

J A o

Y YA A yAq Y o A Yy a @ \
@]u‘ﬂuﬂWiQﬂi]“llf)\‘ll\‘luf‘]‘lflslﬁlfsluﬂ1i%ﬂﬁ'11’15@ﬂ@ﬁ'5NﬁuﬂﬁWﬂﬁiﬂW%uWIﬂiﬂﬂWiﬂN 9

Y =2

Ay Y v Y A A o o < 2
fanalwszeznaviulunismlasannlvnienlsvsovie UsHNa azaiunniluaenieniese
= A I 1 =& a Y = 1 =] A ]
aatin® tazdotludiunilauesduainurasyedudas 1a59ns lagazrgaiiunnie Wau,
3 4 a % 1 o A
TassmsaTanfouvensode Insamsiidynunamsvgaseinasauninglimsauiiunms
Y] 1 o [ dy 1 d' a YA d' I v é d'Q o d' o (=
Waaeld dmsueenideniehinaainmsdauie 19 lauasnausewmur Taends latinig
o A o a o =1 dy 1 [ 1 <3 1 PRl 1 o A
autiumsiaula q U3ENg wfuiineendeneanaritiualdneludiuvesilsvsonanu
[ a [ 4
6.12 MIADIAIVDIAUNTNE

Y
ﬂaljﬁﬂ”IW”IEJ‘}J’L]J%‘IJ@QﬁuVIiWEﬂﬁ}iﬂﬂﬁVIUﬂ’Ju ! ‘Vlﬂ’Juﬁuﬁﬂﬂﬁ”ﬂ”t’)ﬁ?i?ﬂﬁ?l&’)?ﬁsﬁ}@
A
AU

dddﬂl [} o

Y Y
m%mmmsﬁ’aammﬁuﬁa% 6l“lf‘!f‘lﬁ‘ELl“I/Illsll’t’)‘U\iGb' wimmsdse mmmm‘nmmm Ulﬂﬁ‘ﬂ

A AAa o o w A

a o 2% [l a o A a a
ﬂl@ﬂﬁ'u‘ﬂiwﬂuuﬁ%@ﬁuﬁﬂﬁuﬂiWﬂﬁﬂ@iﬁlmﬂN“L!ffﬂ‘ﬂ‘ﬂﬁu‘l’liWﬂﬂﬂ']aﬂWi]']iﬂ!']uuﬁ'JﬂJ@fJIﬂﬂ

[ = =)

iuiwamﬂnumﬂmsﬁ’aaﬁnﬁayjamﬁﬂmimz"lﬁ'ﬁ‘uﬂuﬁi’wmwjammmmweqaumwama

] a [ P Yya Aa 2’,
nuledgUNIndnne linaRuaaiy

v A

Y 1w Y 1 qYr : 0 &
Nﬂ‘l]"lﬂ‘t]l!iﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂi’)ﬂﬂﬁllg!,‘ﬂuﬂﬂ‘;lﬁ]”IEJGluﬁ’)uﬂlﬂﬂﬂfl’iﬁi@ﬂﬂﬂ‘lquﬂuﬂ

o ' d' J Yo A
ﬂ"ISﬂTLl’Jﬂli;l‘ﬁﬂTﬂﬂW]’Nﬁlgulﬂﬁ‘]JﬂLl

1 a

VA 1 Yo A = v 9 a [ 4
- Qﬁﬂ?ﬂﬂ?ﬂ’lﬁ]gqﬂiﬂﬂu NUIPYON Qﬁﬂ?ﬂ@]‘ﬁiiﬂﬁﬂ@]unuGlUﬂTim”lstU@QﬁuTliWﬂ

a

A

A 1 a o S Yya a 1 9 a @ e’g’z Y !
vIenuIsTuUNIngNne InaRuTa H39YanA1910N13 1FY0IFUNTNIUY uae
ularzgann

a ' a [ 4 a {

- umsidszidiugasininmsldvesdunind dsznumsnszuatudaluouinaf
1 Yo Aa v a I 1 o Y o a A g o

maneg lasunndunsndezgnanaatiuyamilegiivlagldonsanaamiuens

noumBiu lanazdouyamnonnilsziinldluamatgiugawls luawnawas

ANUTIINNAAUNSNE



s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 157

a [ st [ Yya a & 1 [ [] a a [ o’d‘
- Auniwon linelMinaduaadeaiulvaiiluminedaszuennindunindous az
a VoA 1 Yo A Y Y [ 1 a o P JyAa a ~
nsayamnaiae lasuauldaeandesnurireduningnne liinakuaan
A v Y A A Yy v
AUNTNIUUTLANNNIVOINIY
MINFUIIONTHAVIANUIINNITADOAT
9 1 a [ Ay 9 1 9
- HAYIANUDINMIABUAVOITUNTNINTVF TUIAN0UILYANAVTIBMT WINLTeanums
~Aq Y ° VoA ' Yo A Y o o 9
N lumsdmuayasmaaing lasuauldn@eunladlimendsnnivwananu
Y 1 g’; 1 9 ~ A Y 1 v A a I 1A 1 1
NNMIADYAINTIAITALA D NEUN a“l‘nyjaﬂmmumwmﬁumws]{”lmﬂumwjaﬂ 101
v aa I a VoA A 1 o o 1 1 v Y
ayFnaailu (@ nnatdousmazauns onnat i edzdw) vin lines ke
1 a o o’gl.: 1
AN UIINMTADIATUDITUNS NI LINA DU
[ 9 1 v Y [ o A v A
- miﬂamwmﬁwammuumﬂmi@aami]zgﬂiuguJum"lﬁ'"lumwumﬂ1"l‘iwiasumnuﬂuﬂ
o o
6.13 walse Towiveaniinau
P H
wadse Teasisyeos au
1 a o v KX Aa A T Y Y] a v W I 1 Y A
- NANUTENY TunnRuwaeu A1919 Tuiid uazRuaununosulsenudnuitualdneiie
NATIINTT
o o [
walsz Teriniinauradenna NI
- TassmsaunuiRdunsvua'ld
a o Y v g’/ o dy ~ = g A A a 1
V3tna lavaasnesnudisesdesinguiunesnuiiianintuaunolugiuves

a

@ a o a @ J a @ J a o
WHUNITUUASUIHEN Iﬂﬂﬁu‘ﬂﬁWﬂ‘Uﬂﬁﬂ@ﬁnu!!ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁ]ﬁu‘ﬂi‘WﬂéU’E]Q‘iJﬁ‘H nLazuInIg lag

v
=) 1 9 1

a a A a o [ ] ! Y1 v A 91
UIHITNNNUDATE NuallﬂUﬂﬂi‘]&lﬂ%’]ﬂ!'ﬂ’]ﬂﬂﬁnuéﬂﬁT]JEH_]uﬂ'lclslf{ﬂ']ﬂsluq,lﬂﬂﬂf]fmﬂflcﬁfﬂﬁJ

o

ee @

a 2
UINAVU

=

o Y]
- Iasanswatlsy Testvaieondnau
o 4 Y] = a 9 A =\ 9 o
Mszgniumailsz Teriminaunsainsansaniomnboaeigaiudommuaves
9}::' 9 a 4 o o 9 a
ngreus sl sEuIams laediFermnynuauasamdaasdsziune Tagldmaiianis
[ A o 1% [ o . 4 ]
Usznamsnuvanasiamaasszrusslumslszuamssiuiunalss Tominwiinauaig
[ a o a 1 ] H I yQ
v ld5unazanaanallsy Tewi lagldisanaauaazrnidendszananms 13 vazuaauiluniiau
] =) g}J dy 1 PR A A 9 [ 4 o v Y g 1 IR o A
Tivyudeu natialdneinerdesnunalse Tesiminauezsuiidualdielui lsuio
PANUINDNTZVPAUNUAINA1IAADATLOZAVBINITI U Taswai lsuianunnisia

[ 1 o o d o o v Yo A o <3 3 A
ialjaﬂ'lclﬁllﬁ’]ﬁillWﬁﬂ53186]51!1/”3\ii’)f’]ﬂﬁnﬂ\numf’]\iWUﬂQ']ufﬂgﬁ‘]Jgﬂumiuﬂ']ulﬁm']ﬂnulﬂﬂlﬁiflf’)u



158 USBn ada wSowiwosh 9111A (UKBU) sngguls=9U 2562

a

6.14 Uszanamsniiau

Y ]
A A

1 a o o 9 A a I P2 9 ] a
NRNUIYNA i]gsugﬂizmmmwuﬁumammwmﬂu”lﬂ”l@ﬂaummmmmmimﬂmiz

@ @ v 3 4 o
g Tuthyiumungminensennmseyunuswilunaduilounainmensei lueda n1sy

o [ '

1 1 Y Y a [ 4 1 o %
R‘J’ﬂwuﬂx‘iﬂaTJﬂW]’Nﬂ3?(\1Wﬁ11’i§]@\1lﬂﬂﬂ15ulﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ"ll'ﬁ')x‘i‘ﬂ‘i“l/‘lEﬂﬂ‘ilﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂi%ﬂﬁgRj‘ﬂwullﬁz

o A g ' Y oA A ' A Yo A v YI Aa v
Fiﬂuﬂuﬂﬁ'ﬁ']\‘ﬁ]'lﬂﬁ'm'liﬂﬂiglﬂmﬂ1§ulﬂf]fl'l\‘lu'll°]5@ﬂ@ 3'lfJ"l]'lEW]ﬂ$1ﬂ5ﬂﬂﬂiﬂilﬂuﬁuﬂiwmlﬂﬂ

U

1 =3 d‘ Yo A 1 Yo 1 1 d' Y o dya
G]W\THWﬂfW]’f]LiJ’f]ﬂWiUlﬂiﬂﬂuﬂW’]'J1%$Ulﬂ5U’f]Eﬂ\3Lluuﬂulhﬂllﬂ%Wﬂ"]f'li%ﬂi%iﬂmﬂ?i‘ﬂu’ﬁullﬂ

Yy 9 o

9
!Lﬂ’Jﬂ’JfJﬁ]TL.!’Jl.!llilLﬂuﬂ’)WﬁWU’Juﬂ‘i%NWﬂ!ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁu

6.15 FUUITILET)

g 9

=~

A v q Y
- ﬂ‘imU‘iHﬂLﬂu@Lm

o 4 1A v { { <3| Y 1
’ﬁﬂlﬂﬂigﬂgEl'l')!;ﬁ@!ﬂﬂﬁuvlﬁwﬂiﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂ'lulaﬂ%mgWﬁﬁ@ULlﬂuﬂl@\iﬂ']'m!ﬂulﬂﬁlﬂﬂﬁﬂu

L)

Tnay I8 Teu I sudunsadudyyuiinsitu dyanmnmstuesiudiiluneiefhonudae

L]

F
[ o J )

YaAgATITHYOITUNTNINIT T oy am 1T Ut I IURUTY

U

MADIT AT Ry 137

9) 1 1 9 1 1 d’la 1

o 1 o a { < o 1
L!ﬁ')tmyjﬁﬂWiﬂiWQWﬂ’N i]TLl’JuNu‘ﬁ@ﬂ\‘lﬁ]18%3Qﬂllﬂﬂlﬂuﬂ13%1i$ﬁuﬁullﬁ$ﬂ11ﬂg§}ﬂ1ﬂﬂ1ﬁﬂ1ﬁ

a Y ad o A Y a A Y I [ A dya Y [ 1 1
NummﬁammamammuﬂLm%NLwaimﬂu’ammqmwuﬁummmaaﬂmq YUY

a 1 o o o T o 1 a o I alQ
Tagnsauenuaazdyn) Mszygniuaudyyusina lgiensmstusgiuinituniiau
a [ o 9 o (] a a v A Y o
ﬁu‘ﬂﬁwﬂﬂhlﬂll"lﬁnllﬁﬂluﬂluﬂsl)'TﬂTiNu’ﬂ$ﬂﬂﬂ']Lﬁ’f]ﬂJﬁ']ﬂ'lﬁ']3J’E]'lfa|ﬂ1361‘ﬁ‘l]3818615141@81]33“111151]9\1
a [ a1 gj 1 =\ 1 1 a A I Y A o Qy a A
AUNINYNLBIUY Lm‘ﬁ']ﬂﬂJﬂ'J']iJthLLuu@usluﬁﬂ‘ﬁﬂ'lﬁL‘]JuWTﬂJﬂQLﬂﬂﬁﬂJﬂJWﬁUﬁ;ﬂ WARNUTDN

Y 4 a [ a1 A [ ] 9 1
ﬁ']ﬂ”Iﬂ"ll]@ﬁgﬂ?ﬁalﬁﬂigIﬂcﬁuiﬂﬂﬂﬁgﬂ']ﬂ!‘lJ’E)Qﬁ“Ll‘ﬂiWEWILGHTﬁﬁ@@?ﬂﬂl@\‘]ﬁﬂjﬂ]ﬂ%“ﬁ? Hae
9
sraznalavgaunn
o A 1A [ " A A I 9 1
ﬁ'iyﬂJ'ﬁ$ﬂ$ﬂW’JLW@LGH']fquI3WEJTﬂEJ‘VI‘ﬂ'NlILﬁENLLﬁ%Wa@]’ﬁ]‘ﬂu“lflu‘llﬂﬂﬂ')'mlﬂuLi]"l‘lJ'ENﬁ'J“N

1 Y [~ [ 1 o A a { 1 [ T o A a

Tngjanegiud sniudygumdutiuan Suidestenelddygumdutivau (gnson

faneunnuyelan ldsuonndliim) sziuiinludiuvesirlsniovnianulaglditiduass

9
1 v

AADAD YT Y YUY

2 a

v E4 1
aldTeiinarunInmsenandynund uivauneunuae1gNITIE 1Y el5un
9 ' Y v Y v KX 1 Y v A a gx a é]
aosnreIinug naziuiinidlum l99eluseussoznantindnnmsen@niunadu
6.16 M3su3iela

Y 9 Y  Aa
- i”IEJulﬂi]1ﬂﬂ1§51]18‘]J"lu‘Wii’J§J1ﬂﬂuLm%ﬂiﬂﬁijﬂ

A o [

v Y Y Y  dAa Ay ya o
UIHNA i‘ngﬁlelﬂi]"lﬂﬂ"Ii*ll"lEJ‘LHL!Wiﬂuﬂﬂu!tﬁ%i’)"lﬂﬁﬂjﬂm@"lﬂuﬂ"liTi’)ufﬂuﬁ]ﬂ’J‘]JﬂiJ
)

a 9 o ok Y A o 1A 9 A A v Yy  Aa 9
Gluﬁuﬂ’ﬂﬁﬂl]ﬁcﬁﬂllaj Iﬂﬂlﬁycﬂ"] lliJLﬂEJ’JGUﬂ\jbluﬂ’ﬁ1]5‘an‘ﬂjﬂﬂfJUﬂNUWUW§ﬂﬂJVIﬂuL!a$W@Q

A v & v & v Ao v v ) Aa X A
"]iﬂ‘VIEU”IfJUlf]JLLaﬁ]‘VN‘V]”N@]i@LLa%‘V]”N@@lI Gmllam‘niugi"lﬂ"lmmmunumﬂmmmmmmﬂ

U

Z = a Q' d‘

MU asadayanlldedunrene Juanisuusnuazaan ldsudisznds

9 P v 9Ya Y =] Y 3 a ¥ o w o [ ) ) Aa
mnl,ﬂmcvmi]ziugL‘]Jui”lflblﬂilzuumﬂuhlﬂumuumTiUi]”lﬂﬂ”lii]”lﬁu”lﬂU”luWSauwﬂuuaxmmiﬂgﬂ



s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 159

Y ' 1 =\ 9 A 1 FYR 1 Aaa
A YU ﬂ’l‘ﬁiiilluUﬂJﬂ’liI@uU'IUWfif]ﬂ'ﬂG]fﬂ'lUﬁﬁuﬂa’Nu@]

U

A A Y 1
’ﬁ\‘l@@“ﬂllﬂ‘”‘ﬂ%?ﬂiﬂl!ﬂ

[ v KX W 1 Y [ A o W Y
Hﬂﬂaﬂl@ﬂiﬂiﬂﬂWiWH’UTﬂ ‘L!‘I/]ﬂ“l’iﬂﬁ]1ﬂ3;l,ﬁﬂ1§1ﬂn],ﬂG]'liJﬁilluillu'l‘VW]'lﬂU@.ﬂﬂ1

=

- dunulums Idndedyan

a o ] J Y A A I ¥ 2 o Ao o Y I a o 4 @
VIHNA “]J‘HTIﬂﬂTL!181/?111‘1/]%1&1"1@11’7Vlﬂiﬂ“lﬁ’ﬁﬂlm1ﬂﬂ1ﬂﬂgﬂﬂ1lﬂuﬁuﬂﬁWﬂllﬂzﬁﬂ

g 9

S 1 q Y V3 Yy o o Y Y o o =2 a1 A
Lﬂuﬂﬂflﬁﬂﬂ@ﬁﬂ\ilﬂui%ﬂﬂ!m$ﬁ®ﬂﬂﬁf]\iﬂ‘]JE‘]JLl‘]J’UﬂﬁiUEiWﬂhlﬂﬁ'liJﬁﬂluﬂlu'llla$ﬂ$Uuﬂﬂﬂ1!NfJ

HAYIANUIINNITABIAIVOITUNING iloyasia iy Fvesdunindgandwmouunuiig
Yo o Y A g
lasurindeaununnete
Y dy o v Y a o dy ~ Y a
- wldeendei Suianitdnsnenienuiig
6.17 M3Tu3AUNUUY

9 ) Y S a Y Y Aa ' Aa '
AUNUNMTUIYUTUNIDUNAULATDIATTYR ‘]J’i%ﬂ’é)“ﬂﬂi]ﬁl AUNUNAU ATDUNAU AN
1 1 Y 1

ponuuY Anedi 19 massyllna wazaldneduimnedos

a [

Y9y ) Y  Aa ] A o Yo 1 ¥
UVIENA 5U§§]uﬂuﬂIWﬂU1uWi@NﬂﬂuLLaZW?NGIg'ﬂ Iﬂﬂ‘ﬂi‘ﬂ‘ﬂ"l "lﬂmmiﬂumuwu‘lqu
g ~ { E )

o 1 a ,-iz’ ] o R K 9 =Y 3 Y o
ﬂ15WﬁlluWI\11’1'ZJﬂ°VIﬂW]’JW&!ﬂﬂﬂJuﬂJ@\i!L@lﬁ%Iﬂiﬂﬂﬁ (TﬂﬂﬂWHQQQWHVJUﬂ!ﬂﬂmu%iQﬂ’Jﬂ) Tvny

9 9 Aa A o U dy A A ' v 9 9
muw'i'aumumwmuemmauwu‘vmsuwsumLmaziﬂﬂmﬁ tazsusiuaunuuIgniy

U Q

o - N s )
OATITIUNUNNVBVOUAAL TATINT

A

U a A 1% Ao o vy Y o Y IS =
ﬁ1ﬂﬂ15ﬁ\uﬁillﬂ13ﬂﬂﬂ°ﬂ‘i$ljﬁluﬁiUiUTl’WﬂﬂUaﬂﬂW Taglinugnanvelniseanzidou

g9 QU U

[ = a 1 a H 1 4 3
Touahu wu msldaudiTas hidayaa (oauoy) audin Ifivariigl

G

UAIUAIVUDIT U

=

3 v Ay ' v Y o v 2 & 9 a a 9
Lﬂuﬂ']3314ﬁﬂﬂﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁu@ﬂiﬁgﬂﬂ’]@TﬂJﬁﬂJﬂJ']‘Uu'ﬂﬂlf]_lu@]uﬂuﬂnmﬂﬂuﬂ’]ﬁﬁ]ﬂ‘ﬂglﬂﬂujﬂuﬂ']u

Thungndudy

4
a

! Y1 A A 9 [ 1 1 = a 1 = a
ﬂﬂ%’ﬁﬂﬂ“ﬂmﬂ’lﬂlﬂﬂﬂ‘ﬂﬂWﬁﬂﬂﬂ FEU AN TINAURNIS ﬂ?‘ﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬂﬂﬂﬂ?ii@uﬂiiﬂﬁﬂ‘ﬁ
v R g 1 Y A~
TJUVIﬂL‘]JUﬂﬂGD'%"IEJLiJE]‘JJﬂ"IS‘U"IEJ

6.18 MysuzalFie

Y o Y J Y
ﬂwisﬁﬂwﬂjﬂgﬂqulﬂmmﬂQﬂqﬂ

6.19 muiula

== 9 9 ==Y 9 o ==Y Y (% v A ==Y Yo Y
mmm”l@ sznounie mmm”lﬂﬂmg.uuuazmmm"lmamimmﬂ mymu”lmm

U

A

o 1 a { A @ { o o < < 4

Tumlsusenanu duuaniituldnnerdestusiensisuilui lsnanudamaiiounse
Y
5

=

1 [ ) < ] 4 [ 1
Tagassludiuvesddouasezsui lui lsnanudamdedunsoiulasasaluaiuves

ane

U

N

=) 9 ] = v
DO ULTUIAYINY

&=

Y]

muRuldTaaiu

1 A o =1 A Aa 9 ] ) A 1 ' Y o ' v 3
NANUIENA ‘]JL!‘V]ﬂanNuulﬂﬂﬁli]‘]_lu@nlli]"l‘LlfJLl“ﬂﬂWﬂ'J"ﬁ]gi]']fJﬁlﬁﬂ‘]JWHTJENTiH]ﬂLﬂ‘U

= [ o o = o 7 o = Y o
NHUDIIY IﬂElf"l”I‘Ll'Jﬂlﬁnﬂﬂ"llli‘VINﬂ"IHﬁWNWﬁﬂLﬂmW]ﬂﬂTW‘L!@]GI,‘L!ﬂg]ﬂll”lﬂﬂTH@TﬂiTﬂﬂslﬂf@@]ﬁ"l

Y
v A

A Y
ﬂ”IH‘VI‘]Jizﬂ”IﬂEl“H U AUTUITDUILYTLINITINU

v A

A Aa 9 (%
ﬂ”l‘]ellﬂunlﬂi@ﬂ"liﬁﬂllﬂﬂf

g



160 USBn ada wSowiwosh 9111A (UKBU) sngguls=9U 2562

' a o =1 S A k) v v A asy cgla A X o
NANUI YN “]J‘L!‘]/]ﬂﬂ'l‘HNuulﬂiflﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂ'}“]fiﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂuﬁ'uﬁ11]\‘1‘]J!,!ﬁ'@\‘1§§1u3ﬂﬁlx‘1uc]5\‘lﬂTL!’J‘EL!

' o ' ' Y] a @ 4 ya [ Qy
inﬂwaummwamnizmwyjaﬂmmumﬁmmaumwmmwﬁﬁu W IUTUITDUIEYLLIAN

v o

@ = a v J dya A A 9 g Y v AAA 9 o £
FTRANUNUTTUMBUNNTUNIWILAZUUTUNNYIVDIUY Tﬂﬂi%@@ﬁWﬂTﬂﬂMWﬁU\iﬂU{l"}f U IUTU
IDUTITYSLIATTINTU

a v o Aa Y v oA o R 1 A~ < P2 9 11 o A
ﬁumwamnNu”lmamm@mq;ﬂﬁ]zuuwfmam'emmmuJu"lﬂ"lﬂﬂaum1u!,u’;1ﬂ1”liu,wa

o

= ~ A o ~ v 9 4 a % 4 A A Y (g =
LfffEJﬂ11911461!1?]@%8“%TH’J‘HLWHQ‘W@ﬂUﬂﬁiGKﬂigiﬂ%uiﬂﬂ’du‘ﬂiW‘ElﬂTlelNllll@]i’fJﬂﬁﬁﬂ"Uﬂlu%

Y Y
1 v A

[ a o J A a Y v v A o A 4 ~ ~
NN MNU ﬁumw&myNullmammﬂmﬁ%zgﬂﬂiuaﬂmmmﬂiﬂwum@myimﬂamﬁ

Y a
an 9934

U

6.20 M'lsAeviu
Y k4
o v A o

' 9 o ) @ 9 o v { 1 3 o
m"lmmgiwuuwmmmmmiﬂﬂﬂ 191179 fnllﬁ ’Eﬂﬁ'ﬁﬂﬂﬂ'}ﬂﬂWHUHQULﬂaﬂQUQHWﬂUﬂ

) A Yo o Y oA

Gllf)\‘i‘ljuﬁ'TNﬂJu“VI’é]’é]ﬂ!Lazvlﬂ‘iﬂclfﬁ%uﬁ’)ﬁluigﬂ’ﬂﬂﬂ
2 o o ' Y @ A a9 Ly = 1
1%Mﬂ1iﬂ1u3mﬂ11iﬂ@1{juﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂLuﬂﬂﬁ]WﬂhliJﬂJﬁuﬁUJﬂJumﬂ‘Um1

6.21 MIdaassm lsezan

a o I3

@ o < @ a @ A o
ﬂ1§fﬂﬂﬁﬁiﬂ']lliﬁgﬁlllﬂuulﬂ@'l‘ﬂw3$3']“b' UUAUITHNUIFUINA WA, 2535 Iﬂﬂ‘].lﬁ‘kl“l/]"l

o ) A Yo A A A o = ya YN
wiadssdiseuie lasuoniannilszguamuznssumMs U EN Favzsrenulinlszgudoe
Hunswae 11

6.22 MIIAYANYATITY

1 @ J

a = d‘ Yo a A 1 4‘ dya
HANNYADITU HUIYDN iwﬂmﬁ)z”lm‘umﬂmﬁmwaumwwi@%mmwaiauwuau“lu

U Q

dy 1 a

A a a 1 Y v A o 9 4’4’
S'IEJﬂ'ISVILﬂWIJuGluﬁﬂ']‘W‘iJﬂ@331(?’3']\1[233’3%@@1']@1 a1 AUNITAYan USEN JEsianguegeuialu

G

9 [}
J a =

{ J o a @ J a
@]aTﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂTWﬂa@ﬁiuﬂTiﬁﬂHaﬂTﬂﬂﬁiiﬂﬂlﬂﬁﬁUVﬁWﬂLm%ﬁﬁﬁuGBQNWGIﬁjWUﬂ"Iiﬁ"IEN"IHﬂ"N

A Aa 9 o Yy o 4 ' a Y A = A 1
ﬂTiN‘Ll“VILﬂEJ’JGU?NﬂWWUQGlﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂy‘aﬂwnﬂyjaﬂ?q{;l‘.ﬁiiiJ EJﬂn‘L!Gl‘LlﬂimﬂuliJiJG]ﬁWQVliJﬁﬂ1WﬂaﬁN
(% A

o v A v o A dya A o = 1 dy Aa
mmuaumwamawuﬁu‘wmﬂym:mmﬂuma”lummmmswmmuwamWﬂ“lummwuﬁmw

1 a

Aadla U3 EM9 azlszunayanigasssu Tagldmaliansdseluyanfmuzauiunaay

4 X)) A o YA A Y o a v A Aa A o '
ADIUNITU !La$WfJ']fJ']3JGlGD'6UE]ﬁsljﬁﬂﬁﬁm'ﬁﬂﬁﬂlﬂﬂll@l‘V]LﬂEJ'JGU@QﬂUﬁuﬂﬁWﬂﬂﬁ@ﬂuﬁuﬂiﬂgjﬂHﬁﬂﬁl

a ¥ qu ~
gasssuiuldnniga

a v

Y v Y
nusuveyangasssui s iayan wazitlameyaa1gAss suvesdunswnaz nildu

1 a [

a ] 3 v 9 A o 1% dy
Glummmul,L‘Um@mﬂummzﬂ‘um&rﬂs:mmmmm@yjawumﬂ%’qlumimagamﬂmssm AU

a

Jd A

v 3 - { J a o ya ]
doyaszay 1iusnauesovisluamanlanmaaesvesdunindnsoniiauodis
9 1
Henu aznguUs Enaunsonsamaiu a1 Juidayan

o | 4 { o T 9 o
doyaszay 2 iudeyadunamnsadunald lidilasneasanse laenisdondmsy

9
o @& A =

9 k4 [}
ﬁumwauumavmﬁuuuueﬂmﬁ'e)i]"mi"m”utma%mﬂéﬁq*i’magslm’fagaim'u 1

9 @

I 9 A ] [ Yo v A o ¢ A dle kS
Vvoyaszal 3 L‘]JLlﬂl’f]i;llﬁ‘ﬂUliJﬁ"IlI"liﬂﬁ\uﬂ@]lﬂﬁ"l‘ﬁi‘Uﬁu‘V]iWEJuu‘Viﬁﬂ‘VmE‘T‘Ll‘Ll‘Ll



s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 161

De

[ a o a o & 1
NNIUAUIOVTZEZNATIBNU NgULTE NIz s zua I uTulums Tousiemasening

o v & 1A o w A o i 4 1 o & {
MAUTUYOIAAYATITNAMTDTUNT NIUaznl FuNdoeg & TUAUTOUTZIZNATIBNUNTNS
Y
TayaAgATI SNz
9 an o aa 9 v
6.23 M3 legasiilauazszanansmaiyisndingy
v o A Aa ] a o 9 9
TuM3 I IUMIRUAUNATTIUMITBNUNNINIRY fhensmssuiudesls gag
aa 4 Aa o 9 aa
wHwazmssznams luGeanianu limiveweaue msldgasnianazmsilszunanms

o a ~ 9 A

4
ﬁaﬂanﬁmwaﬂiwm@mmummLmﬂﬂuwmmuu,awmlmgammmcluﬂmam@

Re

a 1

a a o { Y 9 an
ﬂigﬂ@UQUﬂWﬂQ‘u Wﬁ‘ﬁlﬂﬂﬂlu’ﬂiﬁ@WﬂLLG]ﬂﬁN]lﬂ"lnﬂinu’JuﬁﬂﬁZNWmfnﬁ]l’J mﬂmaawummz

v A o

MsUseananmsnainniiag

9

Zhe

day U
a o ] @ 1 o a o [ a N
Tumsinsanlsznvesdyyrmnindludygunduiunursodygusins@u de
a 9 Aana a d' = [ d' a 1 a o 9
Uims Id dgasnt lumsisziivtou lunazsivazidoavesdygyuvonosannussna 1
o { L a v dA 1w 1 1
TounsosuTounanudeswazwailse Teasi Tudunsndnnasnaudivselu
A X 3
AudevHasdeazgayvesgnHil
A dy o dyl a o & Y 9 Aaa
Tumsiszananuiontiasdorzguesgnuil thevsmssuiludeldqgaenialuns
A 1 a X 2 o = =R t4 3 a
Uszmnamsnananuinainznadunngnuilugazse Tasdiladelszaumsaimsnutu
= AL 9 a A g ] & <3| tY
Tuedia orguesniinasmanazannzmsygnandiueg luvmziu itudu
U v v d
Uszanamsdunumsiannlassmsedarnisuming
Tumsmuradunuuistiunionnaunaznitelueinisganneds U5 doq
9 g A 9 o 1% a (% SR Y (% 1
UszmadunuinmuanezldlumswauiTaseanisedanisuning Fedunuaindan
Usznoudle dununauuaznsliulianau dAunuateenuuuuaznoa’e dunu
] ] o y 9
a1y Tna dunumsdouie 19 lumsneadnlnsinis uazaldnesouiinedos weil dhe
a 9 Y [ U dy 4 a =
V3115 Imlszuiamsdunuasnaniyunndszaumse lunmsidsznougsne Tagaziinis
o 1 I A A Y A a da! a 1
nunmumsdsznumsaanarniluszezvseiiodununaiues wanaenniszuiuns
Aunuegalimszdinny
Aa ¢ Aa Y oA
Nau 913 nazglnsal Hdusemsiaun nazAudenM
o ! 4 LAl a o & o
Tumsannuaudeuinvesmsuazglnsal heusmssutludeshmsiszanueiy
9 P ' A A a 9 4 v 9
m3 Wilse Teminazyamaunaoiodnldnuvesernsuazgunsal nazdeamunineigns 14
4 1 A [l = A a Lg
U5z Teminazyasnaunas lmimnimsndeunlauiaiu

a

dyl a o 9y Y ' A J Aa
Llf’]ﬂflﬂﬂuNWﬂUﬁﬂTiﬁ]TLﬂu@]ﬂﬂﬁﬂUVﬂuﬂ”liﬂi’)ﬁlﬂ"l"l]i’)\?ﬂﬂu REINP] Llﬂgf’gﬂﬂﬁm Hagneau

D.

somsau luudazsrnauaziuiinvianuannsasennmayaninain g la

€

an
=

v
Aaa A A 9 (Y

= o 1 1 v A a o @& e a o Y Y
AUAINNYANTITHUYTUDITUNTNIUY hlLlfﬂﬁLlNWﬂUﬁWTiﬂTLﬂuﬁ@ﬂiﬂfﬂﬁﬂwufl]‘V]LﬂfJTJEU'ENﬂ‘]J

4 ) 1 E LA d' v Aa [ e’g}.z
miﬂmmimiwllmmgﬂﬂﬂﬁ]waiuamﬂmqmmmmﬂuaumwauu



162 USBn ada wSowiwosh 9111A (UKBU) s1evuds=91U 2562

1 d‘ Y \ d‘Q %
AUNDNIINVUATVDINAHIDINTITINAHN

UTHNG N15AINMITADIAIVBINAUTONITWAILT DN YA GATITUUDINAUTONS

E]

@ ' I o W N a a @ ' a @ [ Y

WGJJH'I@@]@\?EJU'NL’]JUEﬁiZﬁ'IﬂﬂJU PJ'IEI‘]JTW'IiW%Wim'lﬂiﬂaﬂiallﬁﬂ'lsllf]ﬂ‘ﬁ@ui'E]ﬂ'l‘i‘W@Ju'lW]'lﬂU
oA 1 Yo A 1 < ~ o @ 1 v 1 2 Y

yjaﬂmmmﬁ]ﬂmm}u 'E]EJ'NU],iﬂG]'IiJ ﬂ')'lﬂJﬂJfT'liZﬁ"lﬂﬂJu ngﬂ'liﬂi‘lﬂal,aﬂ1ﬂ\1ﬂa'l'3"lluflgﬂ‘u

AaeNUVDIEUTHS

q

a U

2 v ' o o |
funsndlitidanu nazmdasimie
a @ 2 o v o ' a9 v o
dunsndlifidauszdaimitelaoitidunsnmeigmslilse Tomi Taodszanauazaz
a Y ' 9 g
W13ANMIABEAININUTDLI%
a v d 2 a 4 v v A
gunSugmitulasemsdaiad

9y a a o 9 9 aa a v ga (4 A Aa Y @
WUINITUDIUTENA ﬁﬂﬂi%ﬂaﬂwu%clufﬂﬁWFi]'liﬂ‘!'lﬁﬂgﬁucﬂ5WﬂﬂTHNuh1ﬂ§'@ﬂ'ﬁ@]ﬂ

v A ] dci' 1 a 1 1 a
¥ Tasnisdszuanmsdilsneaiiimeieznalueuinalunaazsranawaz sy
I Y1 9 (B a o o { 9 Y

anunilul 1dseuthaniidsnziid lsmendluewaaiioaneag 195 Toanila
Jd o &Y ¢ Y
wailszlerivaieandinauvasniinanumulasiniswalszlariwiinay
dya 4 [ o 49! o
nuauayInsimsnalsz Tomividieanainanuyesninauilssanamsyuaiuman
a 4 % o &R 9 a [ 1 9 [ a o
Aalamanslsziuay saveauualunisszuamsdenanisznenaie 9asiAnan 8091
a = ~ 1 A 49! @ @ v oA A Y a
RuipsunaaIziuyulueuIng 8n31n1saieon saTusue uaziadeninelvealuma
4 o [ a 1 a ya =S o dy ~ Y =
Uszmnsenans lunismiuadanaaaadionsnig lanvsandedasinendonas Reuds
J a @ 1 @ @ { o o
anmmsaimassygne lutagiiv diudaswsuz lddoyanseeaswsnznidlamen 11y
] < J o a 9 A a d? a g’/ 1 A k2
Uszmelne og19150am wailsz Teminaimadndsnuinayuas aiversuanaie lloni 1
Uszanums 13
Uszanamsmigedhmmsisg/lan
U3EN dszmnamstuaununesuiayananyiu Tasldoasamingrueimua

waglFyadnlszmamsvesiuansgl Inadlugimlumsding



s1e9uUs=91U 2562

USGN ada wSowIwosh 91AA (UNIBU)

163

7. Ruaauazsgmsigumauan

152nouae

_UAN

[udnsuIsssnnnszuas eIy

a [} 4
[uehasuaslssnnosuning
3 o A

1wa5uluie

33U

IUMINUIIY
i Ui
31 FUNAN 2562 31 TUNAN 2561
1IN 1IN

Flgaln)

7,113,848.83 3,936,494.31
10,041,301.41 1,170,016.29
5,875,689.25 9,629,323.77

- 95,150,635.00

AUNTRURNIZNING
U AU

31 FUNAN 2562 31 FUNAN 2561

UM UIN
7,082,101.33 3,900,434.31
10,041,301.41 1,170,016.29
5,541,817.34 9,197,339.61

- 95,150,635.00

23,030,839.49  109,886,469.37

22,665,220.08 109,418,425.21

o A [ 3 o A ¥ . < A I = v o &
W IUN 31 TUIAN 2561 !f’]fﬂﬁUﬁluN@ﬂ\‘lﬂ'lujulﬂul!ﬂ%l%ﬂil%ﬂ FINYUAIIUTUIIA

Aa o é’ a 9)5’1 o Y
UIHN muﬁmmuullﬂmmmuum

1 a A
8. annuniyugUaU

sEnovuae

1 Y 1 1 9

A 1991891882911
NUNATDID1Y

Aa [ [ Y 1A k)
NUYANHU AU
A

U

37U

JUNTRUTIVAUMIRURNILNING

i
31 FUNAN 2562
VN
71,509,144.23
8,926,943.15
5,409,238.82

2,833,815.25

a1 Ui
31 FUNAN 2561
VN
46,052,802.27
11,479,008.37
8,245,041.07

1,499,807.75

88,679,141.45

67,276,659.46




164

USGN ada wSowiwash 1A (UKIBU)

s189uUs=91U 2562

a Y A
9. AUMNIUYAD

1l52novude

a 0o &
dumdusogil
] o ' ] Aa A
Mudr0819nsouna Lo
v v Aa
Mundounau
UTEHINAU
d‘Q
nau
NUTEHINRBAIN

Y YA @

AunuMIfousednnlim
1 g d'Q g C3 =S
AAUINAUTIAR Y

v A

a3l Inasedaias

ANUTLHIIN — 1ATDIANLAY

39U

2 AU 31 SUNAY 2562 1ag 2561 Vs Idihnaunieudelgnade yammmlind

JUMSEUTIN

U
31 FUNAN 2562

UM

106,884,674.78

224,731,641.35

2,394,508,238.93
3,305,652,565.10
408,111,902.66
609,469,541.47
3,009,916,803.88

3,846,501.40

o
a Tun
31 FUAN 2561

UM

106,686,820.47

204,515,095.85

2,066,471,270.08
2,819,981,010.08
367,323,939.70
542,996,027.82
2,417,428,613.06

3,981,286.41

JUMTEURANIENINNT

auN
31 TUNAY 2562

UM

106,884,674.78
224,731,641.35

2,394,508,238.93
3,305,652,565.10
408,111,902.66
612,469,541.47
3,009,916,803.88

3,846,501.40

U
31 TUAN 2561

Um

106,686,820.47

204,515,095.85

2,066,471,270.08
2,819,981,010.08
367,323,939.70
545,996,027.82
2,417,428,613.06

3,981,286.41

10,063,121,869.57

8,529,384,063.47

10,066,121,869.57

8,532,384,063.47

=

[ J

o a o a o o < (Y
TUIUNU 4,299.48 '(,%IWUUTVI UAagUIUNU 3,757.79 ’s%ITLlUWI G]HJﬁWﬂ‘UUlIIﬁ]ﬂﬂWH@\‘ilﬂuﬁaﬂﬂiWﬂ

H a 4 { 3 v a
Anlsznududon 1d5unnanniumsiiu awminevg 16

° = 2 v A o A o 9 Y YA Y I
ﬂ"]ﬁiﬂﬂﬁuf}ﬂjuﬂ 31 SUNAN 2562 Lag 2561 VTN llﬂ5'JNG]UVJUﬂ’]ﬁQfﬂJW']HJUTIﬂ'IHu

1 o o a2 o =) o w : I
VDINUTEHINNA U ITUIUNU 96.75 '(,%’TU‘U'W] HAagIUIULNEU 79.00 éjﬂlu‘Uﬁﬂ AN CTNHJ‘LJ

v YA A a A yAy A q 9o o a o @
?’]UT;IUﬂ'lﬁi;]fJﬂJVILﬂﬂﬂTﬂLQUQWQNWLWQi%WWUWIﬂiQﬂWﬁﬂﬁ\iﬁ'ﬁiﬂﬂﬁWEJ

10. SuaINUINeIY

sznoude

NBINUITINANFTUNI-TIANY

@

1 a

NeINUITAIIMANTUNI-Yar1gaTITY

a

oy Aoyra X o o !
i} m”li‘vmﬂmnmmNmﬂmi'mu“am

JUMSHUTIN

o Sudi
31 5UNAN 2562
1IN
101,396,594.74
27,304.90

o Sudi
31 5UNAN 2561
1IN
426,285,329.36
463,124.14

AUMTHURNIENINST

a1 Sudi
31 5UNAN 2562
1IN
100,677,087.32

1,779.74

o Sudi
31 5UNAN 2561
TR
425,565,821.94
446,553.08

101,423,899.64

426,748,453.50

100,678,867.06

426,012,375.02




s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 165
v A % d' U a &I = &I U dy
ﬁ?ﬂiﬂﬂﬁu’&jﬂjuﬂ 31 THUIAN 2562 L1ag 2561 Nu'(,"Nnum@ﬂl’lﬂﬂi’lﬂﬂ’lﬂﬂa@uuh’n PANU
JUMTRUTIY JUMTRUBNIENINT
dmsud CALERI Fmsud CAVERIR

T A Y o
YamgATITNALY
k4

F¥0321791)

VBTTHI9Y

31 FTUNAN 2562
1M

426,748,453.50

1,065,000,000.00

(1,392,000,000.00)

~ VA
manfasuulaayangasssy

o

TIN5

Ao

FIUN5U

Y
d
Y
d

yamgasIsulaiel

Tumlsdmsuil

° < 3 A
“lum"ls(mmnu)mmﬁﬁﬁu

2,111,265.38

(435,819.24)

31 SUNAN 2561
UM

31,267,283.06

1,885,000,000.00

(1,491,000,000.00)

1,027,872.93

453,297.51

31 5UAN 2562
UM

426,012,375.02

1,065,000,000.00

(1,392,000,000.00)

2,111,265.38

(444,773.34)

31 5UNAN 2561
STRYY
30,537,912.28
1,885,000,000.00

(1,491,000,000.00)

1,027,872.93

446,589.81

101,423,899.64

426,748,453.50

100,678,867.06

426,012,375.02

o 1 a o o A A g a2 2 9 1A v J a
M3dayamgasIsuvesrannsnaHovenuduamuluneamuilalyyamaunindgns

= o A A & 3 g >
V]ﬂ‘i%ﬂ']ﬁ’l]'lﬂﬂﬂ\ﬂ"]u W auwclmmmmgm:mmu mgﬂumey,aimu 1

11. Suasnuluuisndos

k)
1lsznaunie
JUMTRURNIZAING
A a a o 1 ant ya
¥onans Usziangsne nu dadu Fawmu 519 ldkuiTuma
A o Y] v A v A o o L v A
Nhszudys msaanu w0 dun a U dmSullaugaiu
31 FUNAN 315UNAN 31 5UNAN 31 TUNAY
2562 2561 2562 2561
UM Fouay 1M 1M 1M 1M
@su3alnw)
138 nsemiles Wannedam B unswe
Y T
Wonmesa A e 20,000,000.00  99.98 19,996,000.00  19,996,000.00 - -
138 nsemiles Wannedam s unswe
W%ﬂWﬁGTﬂoWﬁlﬂ Lﬁ’ﬂ‘lﬂﬂ 5,000,000.00  99.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 - -
24,996,000.00  24,996,000.00




166 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111A (UKBU) s1u0uUs=91U 2562

a

= o
12. NAUIINITNNUN

[

] v A d' U dIQ % =) &I dy
ﬁWWiUﬂﬁu’Qf@’Juﬂ 31 SUINAY 2562 g 2561 ‘1/]ﬂ°L!i't’]ﬂ'liWGM‘l&'liJi'lﬂﬂ'liLﬂa@u]lW’) ANU

JUMTHEUTINAUMTHURNIZNING

o Suil o Sudl
31 SUNAN 2562 31 SUNAN 2561
STRYY STRYY
goanundoAul 830,686,035.03 839,869,385.03
Soriiusz v 138,492,350.00 561,571,102.00
NUUITEHIN - -
TousonszHiNil (201,094,250.00) (570,754,452.00)

goanuranlaiyl) 768,084,135.03 830,686,035.03




167

(UnBU)

MR

osh 9

=

USUN aaa WSowIw

91U 2562

S1ev1uls

LET6TPEOTLE 9€°S8T‘8STOF LEPLLESS EL 79°S8TTIT‘EI $8°€9 86'PEETHO0L 6T LYS LIS VLY
(P9°€8¥°€61°LSE) (¥9°690°109°%8) (60°STE60€°191) (€8°9L9°61S%S) ($S°000°LSH01) (€S 1TH90€°9Y) -
10°SLLLTT6TL 00°SSE6SL YT 9t'680°€91°6€T SH'T96°189°L9 0t +90°LSH 0T 1S°9SL8FE9T T 61 LYS LIS VLI
LET6TPEOTLE 9¢€°S8T RS0V LEVLLESS EL 79°S8TTIIEL $8°€9 86'FEETHO 0L 6L LYS LIS'PLI
95" 0P€8H9°S - 61°088°€9t°S LE09Y 8T - - -
(LY YLY'SST19) (0S°T00°69L°TT) (L986E V6T LE) (S6'161°0€5°9) - (SE188°195°Y) -
(L8'+99°6€6°L) - (L8'SEL'LELL) (00'926°107) - - -
68°9TH TES'LE 00°00%°065°S 96'LY6°TY6°LT CIPIISLY C - 08'716°€TS -
97°€99°816°L6E 98°L88‘9EE LY 9L°€80°6LY S8 LO'6LLPETOT $8°€9 €S T0E°080VL 6T LYS LIS VLY
(€£L°6¥€°989°10€) (P1°L90°TESTL) (19°96L°8L¥°6TT) (STSP6'ELI8Y) ($S°000°LSH01) B1°0FS VYL TH) -
66'C10°5€9°669 00°SS6'891°611 LE088°LS6 V1T TEYTL80 Y9 0v'¥90°LSH 01 1L T¥8YT8°ST1 61 LYS LIS VLT
WL WLt WLIT WLIT WLIT WLIT WLIT
:;c‘ﬂr% rmﬁmrwnmun@:
nee SIULMILR v.g:cgw@wg :;c\ﬂr%m&ﬁ_uw@wg mczwc-m_.@_.@ gLULG :m_\nr

NEEFRIELUITD

af3rireLsLee
=4 n 1

Rcmnrarwﬁn@m:.@ [y

)

nitLuLe

T9ST MULERS [€ WHE 8

[LRLE[LLMLIELLBLI

ALILULE

BBW/UCCHA] UWAELBILEULBNRLBZIBLULE ;@m:.a

rguL

o

nitsLneEn wd\_rc:,ﬁmpwsvﬁﬁ.@r@rw;@.grc
= o bE RE o

BMEUMBRLIULEBY/UBRTR]

BMEUTERL
P S

©

195T redLeng 1 K;MG@;%_WZWSNWWFCQFW

af3rireLsLee
=4 n 1

Rcmwrcrm_ﬁ@m:@ [y

n

nitLuLe

09ST IEULERS TE WHE 10

w@\_m_.r@cww_ﬁ

Ewc_._,.@naz gLyLe v €1
? SE



=910 2562

S1evuls

(UnBU)

gy

oSh 9

USBN ada wSowiw:

168

LY YLV SST 19

9€909°L86°0S
€P'SILP06°v9E €TOILLPTEE S 679°6SE 6L IL°LIL T80T $8'€9 00°L66°96¥°S9 6L LPS'LIS'PLY
(L8°ST6°8E8°66€) (LL'T116°81T°S6) (69°19€°1€9°€81) (S€'T68°6L9°65) ($S°000°LSH0T) (1S°65L158°0S) -
0€° 169 CHL V9L 00°7L9°99€°8T1 P1166°066°T9T 90°099°T9L°1L 0t +90°LSH 0T 1S°9SL8FE9TT 61 LYS LIS VLT
€V"SILY06'P9E €TOILLYTIEE S 6T9°6SE 6L IL°L9LT0TT $8°€9 00°L66°96¥°S9 6T LYS LIS PLY
CIY9ITHE'S 1S 6¥7°9LLT 01°067°958°S SHTY60L - - -
(9€°909°L86°05) F9°16Tv6£°TT) (0L°9€€°8L1°87) (0°0%9°698°S) - (86°LEE'SHS D) -
(€TTEE8SETT) (00°000°TLOT) (9€°016°9€5°8) (L80TH 6¥L) - - -
S LYT LS 9Y 00°LTE6L9°S $0'TI8Y9€°9¢ 8P 8I1°0E8‘Y - - -
LET6TVEN TLE 9€°S8T 8S T 0 LEVPLL'ESSEL 79'S8TTII‘EL S8'€9 86" VEE THO 0L 6L LPS'LISPLY
(P9°€8+°€61°LS€) (¥9°690°109°%8) (60°STE60€°191) (€8°9L9°615%S) ($S°000°LSH0T) (€' 1T 90€°9t) -
10°SLLLTT6TL 00°SSE6SL YT 9t°680°€91°5€T S T96°189°L9 0t +90°LSH 0T 1S°9SL8FE9TT 61 LYS LIS VLI
WL WLIT WLIT WL WLt WLIT WLIT
:gc\ﬂvro@ &Sr.nnmun@:
nee SIULMILR v.s.___cgw@mﬂg :;cﬁ,rm\ma_uw@wg mczwc-m_.@_.@ gLULR :w_\vr

MLLHNELUMY

MERZLBLULEMRLILY U
i

As.r:.:,r% 6761 wrSWPWrCSﬁmrm\muwrﬁﬁwwmRﬁww@:_\rrpz.r\w L1V mr:w:m\_u:\_%?w.m@;ﬁmv 19T ULEng 1¢ Wrﬁxm\@,cﬁm_.w;\m?r%rcrwn@w:t
i h b

(WLILALE 98'9T ELUEMELUR]RLES|LUM|REMLLZLIULIILY €1°PE ALMMILIBI|REITLE) TIST MULLAE 1€ WHLBRALLLEULELULLIRRILY
. ® T

afarreLsLeet
=4 n 1

=

3

LULE

~

T9ST reuLemnd 1€ Uit

[LRLE[LLLIELLBLI

ALALULE

BB/UGRHE] WALLIEULEIEEBLULENERILY

nitsLneen wd\_rc:n_um
4 o bw

(159

o

[LrEEULE

o o

WHECRBLULLMERRILY
e o

BMEURBRLIULLBB/URRIE]

MRZLBLULEMRLILY [y

0
19ST IEVLEHS T€ UWHE 10

BMEUMEBRL
Pl < F

T9ST neuLeitg 1€ W:MGG;%ermx;nwacmrw

afarreLsLeet
=4 n 1

)

LULE

~



169

(UnBU)

galg

osh 9

<

USuEN aaa wSowIwi

91U 2562

S1ev1uls

LT08+ 181°89€ 9€°S8T'RST OF LEPLLESSEL 79'S8TTIIET S8°€9 86'VEETHOOL 609ELPIT LY
(F9°€87°€61°LSE) (#9°690°109°+8) (60°STE60ET91) (€8°9L9°615°VS) (SS°000°LSH°01) (€S 12F°90€°9%) -
16°€96'7L9°STL 00°SSE°6SL YT 9t'680°€91°6€T SH'T96°189°L9 0" +90°LSH 01 16°9G6L°8¥E911 609€L V9T LI
LT 08V 181°89€ 9€°S8T ‘ST 0F LEVLL'ESSEL 79°S8TT9IEI S8°€9 86'FEETHO 0L 60°9EL V9T ILI
95" 0¥E°8%9°S - 61°088°€9t°S LE09HH8T - - -
(LY YLy SST°19) (0S°700°69L°CT) (L986EV6T°LE) (S6'161°0€5°9) - (SE188°19S ) -
(L8'799°6£6°L) - (LS'SELLEL'L) (00926°102) - - -
68°9TH TES'LE 00°00%°065°S 96'LY6 TH6 LT SIPITSLY E - 08'¥16°€TS -
91'7S8°S6EP6E 98°L88°9EE LY 9L°€80°6LY S8 LO6LLYETIT $8'€9 €S TOE080 L 60'9ELVYITILY
(€L°6¥€989°10€) (P1°L90°TES TL) (19°96L°8LY"6T1) (STSHE'ELT'SY) ($S°000°LSH°0T) (81°0VS YL 1H) -
68'102°C80°969 00°$S6°89T°6TT LE08S°LS6YIT TEYTL 80V H9 0t $90°LSH 0T 1L TH8YT8°STT 60°9ELYITTLT
WLIT WLIT WLIT WLIT WLIT WLIT WLIT
:;c\ﬁr% rﬂmrwnmunaj
reee SHULMILR v.g:cgv@wg ercﬁr%\%ww@wcd mczwc-mgr@ gLULB :m_w\m

ELUCURLMBIMDIELUE

afBrreLBLLBe
1= n [

Rtncrarm_ﬂ@m:t @

nitLuLe

19ST MULERT T€ WHE 18

n n
[LRLE[LLMBIEIELLLLTE

ALAULE

G\%\CQQZQH_h;ﬁ%:\m_\rrmzhncr@rm;@m:@

FLLBLALREH wr_sc:vw

LnEuLp

ErmeumesLuLe negiy

€

BMEURLERLILLLBB/UBEHER]

BMEUILBRTS
FATISEE

19ST re¥Lers 1€ F;ﬂaw;@?vrﬂxwwwrcmﬁw
n .ﬂ n aqv 1

aBrreLBLLeR
1=4 n I

MUZLLLLENRILY UL

nitLuLe

09ST EULERS T€ WHE 10



=910 2562

S1evuls

LY YLy SST 19 (WLITHLE 6761 ELMEMLELUMRLAA]LUM|REMELZBIULILILE L8' Ty RLLAIMWI|BEMLE) 195T MULLHE 1€ WNLBBMELLEULELULENBRILY
. 43 T

9€'909°L86°0S AF_(::.{@ 9891 mr:qu;wrc_,Suar_@‘mawrtﬂw.m@_ﬁﬁmw@::rrﬁﬂfw €I've mrFSFS\w@SﬁW@:PC C9ST MULEMSE 1€ ﬁ#%@U:mFPMSr%r@rm:@m:E

(UnBU)

MR

oSh 9

USGn ada wSowiw

170

£EPS6 ISETIE ETOILLYTEE SP'679°6SE 6L IL°L9L'T8O'TT $8'€9 00°L66°96+°S9 60°9EL YT ILI sfarreLuLueft
(L8'576'8£8°66€) (LL'T16'81T°56) (69'19€°1€9°€81) (S€'T68°6L9°65) (§5°000°LS¥°0T) (15°6SL°158°08) - BEBLLLENGRILY U
07088°061°19L 00'TL9'99€'8T1 1°166°066'T9C 90'099°T9L 1L 0¥'¥90°LSH01 1S'9SL'8YE'9T1 60°9€LY9TILI nitLuLe
T9ST RULEHS T€ WHE 18
£EPS6 ISETIE ETOILLYTEE SP'679°6SE6L IL°L9L'T8O'TT $8'€9 00°L66°96+°S9 60°9ELPITILY [LRLe[LLfBLItLBLYLT
€IPIITHE'S 1S6VY9LLT 01°067°958°S TSYTr'60L - - - ALILULE
BB/UCCHR] UWHELLMEULBMRBILBLULENRCLILY
(9€'909°L86°0S) (#9'16T%6£°T1) (0L'9€€°8L1°80) (¥0°079°698°S) - (86'LEESHSY) - [LrsuLp
:Qgr_rwwx wrrmﬁwmﬁmw:ﬁ%r@rw;@%;@
(ET1E€8SETT) (00°000°TL0T) (9€°016°9€5°8) (L30T 6vL) - - - BMEURERLIULLBB/URRHR]
IS'LYT LYY 00°LTE'6L9°S YOTISYIE9E 87 8I1°0€8"Y - - - prcunges
T9ST NULEHT 1€ WEUVBHB[LELENTEELURLE
LT08Y I8189€ 9E'SBT'SST 0¥ LEVLLESSEL 19'S8TTIIEL $8'€9 86'FEETHO0L 60°9ELPIT LI gfsnreLsLyeit
(19 €8¥°€61°LSE) (#9'690°109°%8) (60°STE'60€°191) (£8'9L9°615"%S) (§5°000°LS¥*01) (£5°12¥°90€°9) - MRZLLULLNERILY TR
16'€96'7L9'STL 00°SSE'6SL YT 9¥'680°€91°5€T SY'T96'189°L9 0¥ ¥90°LSH 01 1S°9SL'8YE9T1 60'9EL' YT TLL nitLuLe
T19ST RULEHS TE WHE T0
WLIT WLIT WLIT WLIE WLIE WLIE WLIE
fLBURLE rmrmr.ﬂ\nmcn@:
reee SHULMHLR v_a:cgv@.wg 3rvc\¢r%‘mm_wv®m\§ BRI B-ELULE tLuLe 8w

ELUCURLMEBIFDIELUITD



s1e9uUs=91U 2562

USEn ada wSowiwash 91AR (Un1BU) 171

14.

v { o A o Yo Aa o W ] 1

mﬁ 31 SUNAN 2562 La 2561 VIHN hlﬂ‘l'l'l‘ﬁﬂullﬁgf)'lﬂ'li"ll@\?ﬁ'luﬂ\ﬂuslﬂmu Haniny
v A o a Y R o I [ o 23 v A A A
YUY VTUIUNY 41.33 aTUUIN IMAUNITDININ Ulﬂ%ﬂﬂWu@ﬂ!ﬂuﬂﬁﬂﬂiWfJﬂ'l‘lJ‘i$ﬂ1!ﬁ'UL°b’@‘Vl

la5unnantiumsidu awninems 16

N A Y v v A
ﬂ"l‘]el!x‘l‘lﬂﬂﬁi’)ﬂﬁﬂﬂ 3751}
o '

v Y E4
ﬂWﬁNuhlﬁli@ﬂﬁﬁﬂ‘UﬂJ“b' ﬂ11!’3m%1ﬂW’mmﬂGlN“H’JﬂiTJVN%WH’JuGHN’J%WﬁﬁHIﬂﬂclclsfjﬂﬁi1

9

ay A a 9y v v Aad 1 < [ ] v A
NYIYaL 20 ﬂTHNuhlﬂi@ﬂWiﬂﬂUﬂJleﬂuﬁ1ﬂﬂ1iNalmﬂﬂ1ﬁ°ﬁ?ﬂi13§$ﬁ31ﬁyjaﬂ1ﬂ1ﬂﬂﬂJuG]flmg

4

= a [ 4 dya a o Yo A
FTUNBUNTUNTNIUASTHUTUUDIUITHN ﬁ?ﬂul@ N

QUMIRUTIY
w fud duisug duisug  fuil
31 FUNAY 2561 “1uﬁ1"ls(mmnu) “luﬁﬂi(ﬁlnmqu) 31 TUNAY 2562
d sl faadadu
STRIY 10 1M TN
Aunindmiitiuldsemsdai®
dudnanie 16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
Uszanumsmsousy - 1,400,000.00 - 1,400,000.00
ﬂizmmmswﬁﬁu"languﬁﬂu
ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬂﬂi%Tﬂ%ﬁWﬁﬂﬂu 7,195,980.88 3,544,610.60 (33,478.40) 10,707,113.08
77U 7,212,543.00 4,944,610.60 (33,478.40) 12,123,675.20
wilaumian Idsensda iy
Quasnuiiovs (92,624.82) - 87,163.85 (5,460.97)
U (92,624.82) - 87,163.85 (5,460.97)
ans 7,119,918.18 4,944,610.60 53,685.45 12,118,214.23




172

USGN ada wSowiwash 1A (UKIBU)

s189uUs=91U 2562

a o o = a 9y Y v A
AunswdmbQuldsemsdntin
a 9 =
Aumnunie
RUAINUINDVIY
PN , =
Uszmnamsniau luvyudou
9 [ o @
dmsumailse Tesiminau
59U
E§IQ A a Y v o A
niaumnulasomsdaid
RUAINUINDVTY

33U

and

a [ 4 A a Y v o A
guninaniduldsenmsdatind
a Y A
FuMAUKAD
UszanansaIseNLas
Ja g -
dszanamsniiau limyuieu
o [ s o
dwmsuwatlse Towindinau
593
ga A a 9 v o A
widumibiduldsemsaatin®
RUAINUIND Y

37U

AWMU
a Tud dauinsu daunsuj a Tui
31 5umAN 2560 luils@ianu) Tufls@iaqu) 31 Funaw 2561
o v = < 3 A
GRVCETR! IEIGERTT
1M 1M 1M TN
16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
7.35 - (7.35) -
6,113,962.88 1,073,097.00 8,921.00 7,195,980.88
6,130,532.35 1,073,097.00 8,913.65 7,212,543.00
(1,972.67) - (90,652.15) (92,624.82)
(1,972.67) - (90,652.15) (92,624.82)
6,128,559.68 1,073,097.00 (81,738.50) 7,119,918.18
AWMIFUANIZNINS
Ui dmnsus dmnsud o Ui
31 TUNAN 2561 Gluﬁﬂs(sumnu) <;l,‘wysfi’ﬂ:i(suwwyu) 31 TUNAY 2562
o w A ] 3 A
dmiud a3 au
1M 1M 1M STRYY
16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
- 1,400,000.00 - 1,400,000.00
7,195,980.88 3,544,610.60 (33,478.40) 10,707,113.08
7,212,543.00 4,944,610.60 (33,478.40) 12,123,675.20
(89,310.61) - 88,954.67 (355.94)
(89,310.61) - 88,954.67 (355.94)
7,123,232.39 4,944,610.60 55,476.27 12,123,319.26




s1e9uUs=91U 2562

USGN ada wSowIwosh 91AA (UNIBU)

173

guningmiinuldsemsantiys
a Y A
Aumnaunao
RUAWUNDVTY
dyQ 1 =
Uszinamaniidu limyudou
o [ o o
dmsuwaise Teaniminan
39U
d’la A a Y v @ A
whgumbduldsomsdnin®
RUAIN NV Y
59U

qns

15. FunindlinpIauou

15znoUAY

[ULAN
_UIANAINAY
Rualszauldih

A Y YA o
Rulndouniinan
A

auq

37U

a A H Y
16. aurerazmsmlsznu

JUMTEURNIZNINS

o Tud daunsuj dunsu o Juh
31 funan 2560 lumls@nanu) lufls@iangu) 31 5unaw 2561
° o ] 3 A
amsull Wataseu
STRN STRN STRN STRN
16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
735 - (7.35) -
6,113,962.88 1,073,097.00 8,921.00 7,195,980.88
6,130,532.35 1,073,097.00 8,913.65 7,212,543.00
- - (89,310.61) (89,310.61)
- - (89,310.61) (89,310.61)
6,130,532.35 1,073,097.00 (80,396.96) 7,123,232.39
JUMTHEUT I JUMTHEURNIZNING
o 4 o A o 4 o 4
U U U AU

31 FUNAY 2562

31 FUNAN 2561

31 FUNAN 2562

31 FUNAN 2561

UM UIN UIN Umn
4,397,601.47 6,096,790.23 4,397,601.47 6,096,790.23
66,600,000.00 74.650,000.00 66,600,000.00 74.650,000.00
6,925,730.27 5,072,604.70 6,925,730.27 5,072,604.70
2,000,000.00 - 2,000,000.00 -

590,152.41 504,067.41 590,125.05 504,040.05
80,513,484.15 86,323,462.34 80,513,456.79 86,323,434.98

{ Qo a v % U o =)
a0 IUN 31 TUNAY 2562 UTHN ﬁﬁﬂ!ﬁuﬂuﬂﬁﬂﬂ1ﬂ§$ﬂu TUIUNU 2,890.90 ﬁ'mm‘n

a a d‘ ; 1 IJa o a Y a a 4‘ a a
’NNHZ‘THL%@GI,HE‘]J@’J?IEUUEUUﬂGIfNLl UIUNU 1,072.30 a1UDIN ’NNHE‘THLGHBGLHE‘]JNHL'UN

TR 85.00 1N 1B NRUNINTTEZE1 IR 1,015.50 S TaeriEna 1a

2 o <3| o o 3% o
wiendalgnaie awrineme 9 uaz 13 Teadweailundnniwdaisziu

%

=
AU Y

da
mau



174 USGN ada wSowiwash 1A (UKIBU)

s189uUs=91U 2562

{ a o =) % % U o =)
a1 UM 31 FUNAY 2561 BIENA T1RUMITIT A2 Y F1UIURY 1,368.00 A1UVIN

o

NRudwFe luglardgyy19@u S1uaulu 980.10 dAmum wRuduFe lugURud nAuliys

o

o A Y a9 o A Y A o Y {a
ATUIUNU 85.00 A1ULN me\mquuizﬂﬁln MUIUNU 925.00 A1ULUIN T@ﬂﬂii&l‘ﬂ‘q Ul@u']‘ﬁ@u

y A 9 ° 3 v o 3 )
wioudalgnadie mmwineig 9 uaz 13 Tsadweailunanniwdanlsziu

a a A v A A YA g’; % a2
17. N‘H!‘Uﬂ!ﬂﬂ‘uty‘mmZNHQSJNiZfJZ%T‘Mi]]ﬂﬂﬂTUHﬂﬁNH

JUMTHEUTINAUMTEURNIZNINS

 UN
31 5UAN 2561
STRY ]

19,415,326.57

Uszneudie
a i
31 FUNAN 2562
1IN
Rudnnuay 411,790.21
Fuaniin 450,000,000.00
39U 450,411,790.21

19,415,326.57

Y ! @ a H @ a o <
u 31!171 31 TUNAY 2562 Nuﬁgwjgﬂgﬁu%']ﬂﬁﬂ'lﬂlzlﬂ'ﬁl\‘]uﬂ']uju 450.00 Z%IWUUTV] 1w

YA & a o o [ A o dy Y
ﬂTiQﬂﬂﬁlugﬂllﬂﬂﬁ'Jllaﬂlx‘]uﬂﬁmﬂWﬂﬁﬂﬂ?ﬁl&ﬂﬂﬂﬁ% 124-182 74 Iaelonsiaenlosouns

1.83-1.85 A1)

£ dq’ Y v dw = 4’
18. [ 1HUMINUASINH UK U UDY

Uszneume
IUMIEUTIN
a1 i a1 i
31 FUNAN 2562 31 FUNAV 2561
TRt 1IN

@Fvlyal)

s 136,329,869.01 89,514,488.41
niivudoudu 327,809,038.14  296,766,421.21

JUMITRURNIZAING
o 4 o A
U IUN  IUN
31 FUNAN 2562 31 TUNAN 2561

UM U

136,329,869.01 89,514,488.41
328,428,270.97 297,025,391.56

ERREY 464,138,907.15 386,280,909.62

464,758,139.98 386,539,879.97




s1e9uUs=91U 2562

USGN ada wSowIwosh 91AA (UNIBU)

175

o A @ Y dy = A Y
U IUN 31 FTUNAY 2562 1AL 2561 U UNHYULIGUDU 1sznovunie

1 Y 9 1

alaanenianie
Y

ADNIIIA1IIY

9 dya 1Y

miRulsyiunay
Yo l 9

519185 ua29mN

< 9 1

IFAMIY

A

21 9

33U

19. szanamsriau

1l5znoudiey

4 Vv
szanumaniiduszezau
1 1 9
mneadnassyllan
Aa
Ysznamsniianszezen?
ahyasnueansisgyillan

37U

JUMTIEUIIY

o d'
U IUN

31 FUNNY 2562

UIN

273,583,705.72
13,213,436.67
14,982,322.93
2,685,000.00
1,120,725.63
22,223,847.19

o Sudi
31 FUNAN 2561
UM

@sulgalnm)
205,429,724.22
14,952,712.32
21,938,335.51
7,473,799.00
29,759,595.08
17,212,255.08

JUMTEURNIZNING

% d‘
U N
31 FUNAY 2562

UM

273,571,705.72
13,844,669.50
14,982,322.93
2,685,000.00
1,120,725.63
22,223,847.19

AU
31 FUAY 2561

UM

205,417,461.72
15,223,945.17
21,938,335.51
7,473,799.00
29,759,595.08
17,212,255.08

327,809,038.14

296,766,421.21

328,428,270.97

297,025,391.56

JUMTRUTINAUMTRURNIZAINS

% d‘
a4 UN
31 FUNAN 2562
STREY

764,891,084.23

166,604,222.68

o d‘
U IUN

31 FUNAN 2561

U

540,147,615.39

140,111,260.46

931,495,306.91

680,258,875.85

ga 1 o o I LdyQ A &
Ussmnamsniiauszezenannhgesnmmssyl Inadlulssnamsvidumetlunms

H ) 3 'Q
ﬂ?ﬂi%ﬂﬂﬂﬁ‘ﬂ??fiiﬂ']el"lﬁTﬁTiiE}ﬂIﬂﬂIﬂi\‘iﬂ”liﬂ"liJWiziﬂ)”LIﬂJuﬂJ@ﬂﬁi]ﬂﬁii‘ﬁﬂu w.el. 2543 Tu

’5’@51%’@%3 7v0915zmns

1 1 9

Aneas1ea51sgl Tnalasans FaUsHma szlinisaiedise

dya [ U Yo aa "9 [ d’ 9 o [
‘]Ji%ll"lmﬂ"liﬁuﬁuﬂﬂﬂﬁWﬁﬂlWﬂﬂu@]uﬂﬂﬁWEUTu%ﬂﬁiiLW@ﬂl%%Tﬂﬂluﬂ?iﬂ??ﬁiﬂi&l?ﬁ?‘ﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬂﬂ

a

Tnsams Wellayanamiiusadsslasa

U

Yy ¥ v
AQUUANNTEIFUYANTIAATINAU WA, 2543



176 USBn ada wSowiwosh 9111A (UKBU) s1evuds=91U 2562

20. Fiui)
Usgnovudae
AUNMIRUIIMAVMIRURWIZAING
o Sud  Suft
31 FUNAN 2562 31 FUNAY 2561
UMN UM

Fudwiiahidosdns uas lifindnusziu adadt 1/2559 - 300,000,000.00
Fudwiiahidesdnd uaz Wifndnisziu adadi 212559 - 200,000,000.00
Fudviiahidesdng uaz Wifindnisziu afadi 312559 - 300,000,000.00
Fudviiahidosdns uay ifndnusziu adait 1/2560 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
Fudwiialidesdng was Wifindnuseiu afedt 22560 70,000,000.00 70,000,000.00
Fudwiialidesdng was Wifindnuseiu adedt 3/2560 370,000,000.00 370,000,000.00
Fudwiialidesdng uas Wifivanusziu afed 12561 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
Fudwiialidevins uazhifivanysziu afed 22561 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00
Fudviialidosdnt uazhifindndseiu adaii 312561 400,000,000.00 400,000,000.00
Fudwiialidosdnd uaz Wiflndnusziu adaii 42561 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00

Fudviialidosdnd uaz Wifindnusziu adaii 12562 200,000,000.00 -

Fudviialidosdnd uaz Wifindnusziu adaii 22562 300,000,000.00 -
59 2,940,000,000.00 3,240,000,000.00
#in aldnelumseeniulsedein® (2,952.689.98) (3,661,820.41)
yamanin® 2,937,047,310.02 3,236,338,179.59
¥ dufssfvuathszaielunilel (939,871,754.54) (799,803,120.25)

a

ansd 1,997,175,555.48 2,436,535,059.34

&)




s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 177

9 v A 2 A o Y YA A [ dy
dmSuaugaiui 31 Sunaw 2562 1ag 2561 Funuswnsnaon lui Al

JUMTEUTINAUMTEURNIZ IS

sl g3l
éuqﬁuﬁ éuqﬁuﬁ
31 FUNAY 2562 31 FUNAY 2561
UM UM
gOANINADAUIIN 3,236,338,179.59 2,698,271,116.08
o uAiNTZHIIA 500,000,000.00 1,500,000,000.00
1WFITAUTLHINGA (800,000,000.00) (960,000,000.00)
ml¥selumsesniudsedniin® (802,500.00) (3,369,999.99)
davmiea1g1e lunmsesniug 1,511,630.43 1,437,063.50
voanuranilaeen 2,937,047,310.02 3,236,338,179.59

' F
a1 Tuh 31 SuAY 2562 Az 2561 Fudannsouenamivuatise laoou ldaail

JUMTRUTINAUMTRURNIZAINS

o i a Fud
31 FUNAN 2562 31 FUNAN 2561
Umn UM
TaiAv 17 940,000,000.00 800,000,000.00
PN 17 ue lainu 59 2,000,000,000.00 2,440,000,000.00
59U 2,940,000,000.00 3,240,000,000.00

v v Y Y oa

o A o o I (= o o 1y A Aa
U IUN 31 TUNAN 2562 LA 2561 ﬁuqmmmmﬂuwuﬂ%uﬂ"luuwaﬂﬂizﬂu ulllﬂ'ﬁ]flﬂ“l/l‘ﬁ

Q Y

A3

]
v IS

Tagdudiong 27 8957 Wunindunesniug oasneniliensnsovas 2.954.50 aoll yad
y Y
a =

gATITN TIWIURY 2,983.24 UL LA TIWIURY 3,248.87 S1ULIN AWEIAD NIV HN T3

-

e

1 a 9y A dy v A a =
ﬂﬂ;llﬁﬂﬁal@‘ﬁﬁﬁﬂJIﬂfJale'iallaﬂTﬂ‘]JﬁgﬂTﬂﬁnﬂﬁ'iﬂﬂll@§1ﬁ'15Wull‘VIEJ ] UHVIGlHQULLﬁﬂ\ij"IugﬂWﬁNH BN

Y [}
HUYAITEA 2

=

A o 9 o (% dng YA Y [ U (Y T W g// ~
UIHN ﬁ]z@mqmia@mmuﬁumammm@a@ﬁu“lu@mwmu”lmﬂu 2:1 IMNUNIge9l



178 USBn ada wSowiwosh 9111A (UKBU) s1evuds=91U 2562

Ia ° (v ¢
21. dszanamsniiavlivaudsudmSosalszlayimiina

v

dyta ] = o [ 4 o =\ = g
Uszinamsnildu limyuieudmiunadss Temiminnuliseazideaasil
JUMTRUTINAUMTRURNIZNING

d w51l d sl
Y H 9 v

aUFAIUN aUFAIUN

a a

31 5UNMAN 2562 31 FUNAN 2561

1IN 1M

Uszinamswilau livyudeudmiuwaiss Temiminauduil 35,979,904.30 30,569,814.30
1 Ao Y o A
daisui lum lsvsenanu:

Aunuuimsluoda 10,504,426.00 -
AunuuimsTuthmiv 7,256,853.00 5,088,901.00
Aunuaenie 1,205,474.00 809,584.00
U Av Y ) < 3 A
damnsvdTuslsnanudaadoou:

(f15) Vienuanmstsznamsmuvanadiasmaniiziust

duifannmslsulsannisyaumsal (167,392.00) 44,605.00
watlse Teminoelusening (1,243,700.00) (533,000.00)
Uszinamswilau livyudeudmiunads: Tesiminaulaed  53,535,565.30 35,979,904.30

{ { ! % o ! o
a0 IUN 31 FUNAY 2562 1AL 2561 STEEAUREn U IMEN IUNITIetsedsEmms
Y

= =S ) [ 4 o Aa o = =
wilau hivyuBeudimsunalsz Teviminauvesusing dszuim 83 wazilszuim 99
AuaAL
9 a o a 4 v oA °
PoduuAgunmsizinansauranagiameaasisziunen 1 umssnnalszanams

dy Jd w ~ dy
‘Viuﬁuwaﬂiﬂwuwumm UANU

JUMTEUTINAUMTRURNIZ NN

RLESIR RLESIE

2 .4 2 .4

gugaiumn augaium

31 TUNAN 2562 31 FUAN 2561
STRY 1N

PRGN $ouay 2.65 Aol $ouay 2.65 A0l
1Y t%’ a A d' Y = Y 1A
AT IMsVURUADU Inamae FooaY 6 L1AL7 AD1) $o0aY 6 L1AZ7 AD1)
& A = Y =
9M31M3521000 Jooay 15 uaz30 aoil $ooay 15 130 9ol

inbewpIY 55 1ag 60 1) 55 uaz 60 1)



s1e9uUs=91U 2562

USGN ada wSowIwosh 91AA (UNIBU)

179

a 4 '
mmmmwmmaau"lm

a

= 1 9 A A 9 [ a 14
ﬂﬁlﬂaﬂuuﬂaﬂiulmﬁgﬂlﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂ!ﬂﬂﬂﬂlflﬂiuﬂ1§ﬂ§$ll1mﬂ1i@1uﬂﬁﬂﬂm@]ﬁ1ﬁ@]i

[

v o oA I Y { I ad {
dszrudsioniullldedaumaauna o Tufisieau Tasdondoaunaou 9 asd vzl
1 @ 7 o 9y o a v 2
Hansznuaomszrniunalse Tesindmua Iiluduutuasae lii
AUMIRUITWAUMIRUANIEZNING
a Jun aJun

31 FUNAN 2562 31 SUAN 2561

YN VN

NI INTUL

A da! @ 9

INUUUBDNTTDURS 1 (490,180.00) (400,488.00)

ANaIoNI 1T PUAY | 446,451.00 365,196.00
9n31ANAA

A 49! [ 9

INNVUDANTITDIAL 1 (2,990,220.00) (2,109,069.00)

ANaIONI 1T PUAY | 3,358,710.00 2,352,589.00
o 2 o
9951MTVUNULADY

.

NUIUBNI1FDEAL 1 4,133,670.00 2,561,729.00

AnaIvNIT oAz 1 (4,583,248.00) (2,813,064.00)
9915101501900

A X o )

NAUDNTITOAL 10 (1,650,261.00) (978,728.00)

AnaIvNIT AT 10 1,384,108.00 821,313.00

Y Aa a’dy Yo X o 1 a A o
udnmsansizi i ldmiamsnsenedunumugluuvvesnszuaRuaanniania
[ U 1 9 1 9 a
Mol lnsamsaanan ua lduaaalszmnamsanusou Inivesdoduuaniee
WeTui 5 wmeu 2562 Uszmaingladsemaldngruieduaseas s lni Tagaziing
v o [ d‘ é o Y Aa o 9 1 a a' a 9 9y 1 [}
Waauldluiui s ngpmew 2562 Fafmualdusing deswRusaraiiodnsialiunmingu
[ Y
norgaruasy 20 Jaul hidesndiadedasigaie s1uau 400 Tu Tasusena laud la
4 [ { U o L4 [ {
Tasansliedui 31 Tuiaw 2562 demaldnrszyniuainTaseniswass Towal o Tuf

v Y
31 TUNAY 2562 LAY IR 10.50 ﬁ’mm‘n



180 USBn ada wSowiwosh 9111A (UKBU) sngguls=9U 2562
A v
22. NUITOUYU
Y
1Jseneunie
5t augaiui 31 sunaw 2562 FmTudlaugaiui 31 sunay 2561
3101 . ) . - 3101 . ) . -
, Y IUIUEY , IR TIUIUEY
A AYan
v Hu STRNY TN Wu VN
nuaaNzIdiey
ﬁuﬁmmmuﬂ 1.00 925,000,000 925,000,000.00 1.00 925,000,000 925,000,000.00
ﬁuﬁmmﬂmaﬂ 1.00 925,000,000 925,000,000.00 1.00 925,000,000 925,000,000.00
nuiieanuaz iz
Huanigduil 1.00 924,999,441 924,999,441.00 1.00 924,999 441 924.999,441.00
Huaninaed) 1.00 924,999,441 924,999,441.00 1.00 924,999 441 924,999,441.00

23.

24.

ﬂuﬁ]iﬂﬂﬂ]uﬂ{]‘ﬂu]ﬂ

AUNTLIY T YAVTENUITUTINN W.A. 2535 VT HN wwdewiadssilsgnilsesill

q

o v 9

1 & Y 3 ) 19y 1Y Y o a =
daunild 1 unudrsesnwnguuielidesnidesazdrvesi lsgnidseilindrevanu

Y A 1 o dy A o 19y 19 a =
FEAUYINUT (DY) ﬂummumﬁmmzmm’;u"lnuaﬂmﬁaaammammﬂmmﬂu

Ruilurae

a v

a o d’ [ d' a d' Yy
24.1 i?“]1113']ENTLJﬂ'lﬁ‘IJﬁ”%NﬂmgﬂiiuﬂWiUiEﬂluﬂﬂuﬂ 14 3Nl 2562 “I/I‘]Ji%“lfi]llﬂilll@]@uuﬁ

q

Glﬁ} wmuﬂuwammuwamimmmmﬂﬁ@ﬂmﬂ (TL!‘V] 1 UNIINY 2562 ﬂuﬂﬂ’lu‘l/] 30

a

Uguieu 2562) Tagrauetteiuilumaiuag 0.175 UM FluRu 161.87 S Iasfviua
Deidutumameluui 13 fuseu 2562

o YA Y o = A o oA A Y
242 musenumsiszyuanindoofuilseiiil 2562 iWeTui 24 wwieu 2562 Nilszayn1ad

o

vaoydadaassi lsisedidl 2561 enreduiluwalinuddodulusasfuaz 0.34 v
I ) a g’/ g Aa o [ a [ [
Wudmauidu 314.50 dmun nedl U5Eng 1aneRuusaszninenaliuds lusas
| o a i o = o 1 a
ez 0.165 1 (Hud ity 152.62 Sum Wedui 7 dueneu 2561 taziiekulugin
Y o 9 I ° a Y ° ! a
gahedn Tudasfuaz 0.175 v iusmauty 161.88 Suum fmuaneuiiuwaly

TUN 10 NOHNIAN 2562

v

A o A o oA a A Iy A
24.3 mmwsmumﬁ‘ﬂswmmzﬂssumsmvmumuw 10 gAY 2561 wﬂizﬁm"lﬂumauu

=

G]fl/gi} WEJN‘IJ‘ﬂ‘LlNﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬂﬂﬁﬂWiﬂ%HUﬁuﬂﬁx‘i‘ﬂlliﬂ (’J‘Ll‘l/l 1 UNIINY 2561 wamu‘n 30

A

VYUY 2561) Tﬂmﬁuammuﬂuwawuaw 0.165 U !f]J‘LlNLl 152.62 ﬁTLHJTVI Tagmnua

et umameluTui 7 fuseu 2561



s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 181

[

YA o

o ) = | = Y=
244 awsenumsiszguaiydooiulsziil 2561 WoTui 25 wrreu 2561 Nilszaulal
=}

]
o

a oA o o 1 a o I o a
yApyAtAas 33 15152911 2560 tiesreRuumaliiudneuiusuauiEy 277.50
9 9
a1uum fNefusEng 1491etudunasznitenialdudrludasifuaz 0.135 v
<3| o a Y A o oA [ ' a Y A
AUTIUIUEY 124.87 AUV W TUN 8 ANueIsU 2560 tazazileduluraganieanluy
@ 9 I o a Y o ' a o A
AT UAL 0.165 VN (T UTIWIUEY 152.63 a1UV M MruadgRuiumaluiun

11 We¥NIAY 2561

25. MIUIMNIAMINY

o 4 A o a a A o 9}4'@

ﬂﬁi}ﬂigﬁﬁﬂﬂlﬂﬂﬂiﬂﬂ"lUluﬂ?iﬂiﬂ’lﬁ/]’l\‘lﬂ'lﬂﬂu o fﬂi@'li\‘]hl’l‘;]f\?ﬂ'g'mﬁ'liﬂiﬂcl,uﬂ'li
o A 1 1 A o YR 9 P~
ANUUNUDYWNADIUDY Llﬁ$ﬂ1iﬂWix‘lhl’JGINTﬂi\‘lﬁﬂ\‘lﬂl@\‘l‘l@ﬂﬂl?‘ih%ﬁh

[ { o a [ J A ' I
2 TUN 31 FUNAY 2562 1AL 2561 wm‘mui’Jmmﬂwmm’mwﬁﬁumnmﬂu 0.72:1
E4
o w a a @ J a ' <

uag 0.74:1 @uanay uam‘ummumwwm]mmtmwmm’mwﬁﬁumnmﬂu 0.76:1 g 0.74:1

AWAINL

26. elaanmsne

Usznouaie
IUMTRUTIWAUMTRURNIZAINMS
dmisud dmsudl
f?;uqﬂﬁ”u'ﬁ f??ufjﬂﬁ’uﬁ
31 FUNAN 2562 31 FUNAN 2561
U UM

579'1d91nMsne 4,653,805,529.90 4,099,888,884.83
AIUaNY (30,769,241.90) (17,824,668.83)

ans 4,623,036,288.00 4,082,064,216.00




182

USGN ada wSowiwash 1A (UKIBU)

s189uUs=91U 2562

1'%

27. (¥ elambidula

27.1 miRulansuiluils@eanu)d vl dsznoudae

mibRu gt giiu

mlFne)510lambtuldvedllrgiiu

aAa Y v v oA
ﬂWBLQuqﬂiﬂﬂ1§ﬂﬂ1ﬁg%

@

@lde)5eldmuituldsemsda

mlF1e)510 1dmERu 1dnsuilu

i'lsvanudmsuil

v A
WY

JUMSIEUTIV
o A o v A
RLER RLLER
2 o4 2 o4
Fuaaiun Fuaaiun

Q

31 TUNAY 2562

UM

(235,525,467.78)

4,944,610.60

Um

31 TUIAY 2561

(196,323,807.37)

1,073,097.00

JUMSEURNIZNINS

a 4 td'
AUFAIUN

a

31 FUAN 2562

U

(235,460,290.80)

4,944,610.60

31 FUIAN 2561

U

(196,257,218.11)

1,073,097.00

(230,580,857.18)

(195,250,710.37)

(230,515,680.20)

(195,184,121.11)

' ' 1 q Y Y Aa YA o o v Ay o AAq Y
WﬁﬁNigﬁﬂlN(ﬂ161‘1551Wﬂ)iWﬂulﬂQWHLQuhlﬂﬂﬂWN'Jm%WﬂﬂWUliV]N‘]Jiy%ﬂ'JfJ@ﬁiWﬂT]el‘VlGlGIf

) [ = Qy (% d' [ 9 [ Y g’/ = 9Y o dy
mmuﬂaugmu‘n 31 TUNAN 2562 1AL 2561 398a% 20 IMNUNITOIY Llﬁﬂﬁllﬂﬂﬁu

Mlsreumiituld

@1 nelamsinulamuiudie
a1 Eidu1d Feway 20

Ao liansainmiiiu1g

@lde)51eldm st 187

m'lsdmsudl

IUNMTEUTIN

N
31 FUNAY 2562

UM

1,122,095,691.64

o Sui
31 FUNAN 2561
STRN
@sulyaln)

972,397,582.75

JUMI[URNIZAING

& N
31 FUAN 2562

um

1,121,769,806.73

& un
31 FUAN 2561

U

972,067,643.18

(224,419,138.33)
(6,161,718.85)

(194,479,516.55)
(771,193.82)

(224,353,961.35)
(6,161,718.85)

(194,413,528.64)

(770,592.47)

(230,580,857.18)

(195,250,710.37)

(230,515,680.20)

(195,184,121.11)




s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 183

1 1 a {o o < <3 4
272 (MlFw)selamitulansuiTumls@ianudamaiiou

Usgnovudae
AUNMIRUIIY
swuneumid  31e'ld@ 1991e) TuIUgNT
Mbduld 1NMB
UM VN VN
dwsilaugaudi 31 Fuanau 2562
warmls@annnnmsiayamiiuasmuiens (435,819.24) 87,163.85 (348,655.39)
parh ls@nanunamsiayanilndveanailss Towd
Wﬁmmﬁ'ﬁmuﬂ”ﬁ’ 167,392.00 (33,478.40) 133,913.60
3 (268,427.24) 53,685.45 214,741.79
dwsuilaugatidi 31 Funau 2561
wamls@annnnmsiayamiuasmuiions 453,297.51 (90,659.50) 362,638.01
warm ls@anumnnmsiayadlmiveanailss Toand
minnuiidmunly (44,605.00) 8,921.00 (35,684.00)
59 408,692.51 (81,738.50) 326,954.01

JUMSEURNIZAING

swuneumd  51e'ld@ 1d0e) Tuugnd
miRula NN
UM UM STRYY
dmuilaugaduii 31 $uaau 2562
waﬁw'ls(mmnu)mﬂmsi’ﬂgafi1(3uammﬁ'aéuw (444,773.34) 88,954.67 (355,818.67)
waﬁwllﬁ(mﬂnu)mﬂmsi’ﬂyjaﬁﬂmimmwaﬂizTmﬂi
winnuiidmua’ls 167,392.00 (33,478.40) 133,913.60
I (277,381.34) 55,476.27 (221,905.07)
dwuilaugaiud 31 $uman 2561
waf‘h"ls(ﬂnmqu)mﬂmﬁﬂyamﬁuammﬁama 446,589.81 (89,317.96) 357,271.85
wafﬁ'lﬁ(ﬂnﬂfvgu)inﬂmﬁﬁ"ﬂyafiﬂ,mjmaqwaﬂﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ
wﬁmm‘ﬁﬁmuﬂ"ﬁ (44,605.00) 8,921.00 (35,684.00)

33U 401,984.81 80,396.96 321,587.85




184

USGN ada wSowiwash 1A (UKIBU)

s189uUs=91U 2562

28. NBINUAITOAUYITN

9
(% 9

1 A o Yo é’ = Y o
NANUIYN llﬂi]ﬂG]Qﬂf]\?‘ﬂﬂﬁ?iﬂﬂmﬂﬂﬂfWﬂ181@]Wi$515]ﬁJ

q

g

'
o

AANDI

9

q

£ A
NUFAITDUAYITN

& Y A A @ J (% 2 9 v v A A
N.¢. 2530 G]N’]Ji%ﬂ’E]‘]Jﬂ’JEJN‘L!“Vl‘Wuﬂﬂ1uﬂ1ﬂﬁ3ﬁhlu@ﬁ‘iﬁluﬁ1‘i@Elag SUBNATIVN UASINUN

A o 1 9 [ Y ) 4 a ) 4
VIHN NeaunuiInenulueniiosas s noIUdIT0URITNUTHIT TagnoanUd170Ua1

= J Y v v A =
YN uamzma”lwwwummcluﬂsm‘waaﬂmmmmmgmﬂummﬂamu

Y v
dm5uilaugaiui 31 Suay 2562 uag 2561 NQUUIEN eaunUIN0INUd1To

Y
AOITN I1UIU 4.56 AIUVIN HAZTIUIY 4.10 TUVIN AINAIAL

v ¥
v A

29. lsdediuaunugv

99
Y
A

) [ [ { % A o o o 1 Y 3’, ¥
mww'ﬂﬁuqmuﬁ 31 DUIAY 2562 LA 2561 UTHN ATHIUN Uli@lﬂﬂuﬂluﬁquUTﬂﬂ
o o v A Y o Y o [ d' 1 g o d' (] 1 a2 o dy
ﬂ']ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂ']llﬁﬁ1ﬁiﬂﬂﬂ'JfJﬁnu’JLlﬂUﬁnJiUuﬂ']!ﬂﬁﬂﬂ?ﬂﬂWWUﬂﬂ@@ﬂ@giUi%ﬁﬂWﬂﬂ PNU
JUMIRUTIY IUMTRURNIZHING
dmsud dmsud Fmsud AVERIR)
?;qui”u‘ﬁ ?;uqﬂi”uﬁ ?;uqﬂﬁ“uﬁ f?;uqm"u‘ﬁ

31 FUNAN 2562

31 FUNAN 2561

31 $UNAY 2562

um

891,254,126.53

924,999,441

0.96

31 $UNAY 2561

UM
776,883,522.07
924,999,441

0.84

JUMSHUTIVAUMTEUBRNIEAINIG

1IN N

mls@anudmsudl 891,511,834.46 777,146,872.38

Snnuiuaniydundearuiminignied (fu) 924,999,441 924,999,441

° vy &

mlsderfuiuiugiu 0.96 0.84

\ v U
30. ﬂﬂ“lfﬂ‘lﬂﬂ‘lilaﬂ‘ﬂﬂ!g
Y
Usznouniy

dmiudl
2 .
Augaiui

{ a8 Y o g oo 9
manlasumladluduiduiogi naznuseninneadng
o ' Y v q Y ' y A
Jaanoaialdliuazarldiielumsneadiedu
1 EA g
mlg9eninau
ANFouTIAMAZMAATIHUIY
AMADUUNUADINS

=~ a 1 =\
mygsnammzuazasssuionlumslou
1 a ¥y
Annaaaaihe Tawan

MAUATUAITUY

31 FUAY 2562

UM

(506,085,954.83)
3,158,651,580.98
296,120,730.24
50,987,606.36
50,975,502.55
174,471,387.50
75,291,448.55
141,911,677.71

d sl
Y

31 5UNAN 2561
UM
@svgaln)
(77,358,553.66)
2,392,022,798.90
264,560,982.92
61,155,474.47
38,564,999.85
156,978,269.00
66,730,419.12
158,967,154.93



s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 185

31. MIEHRTORAN M ITUSMUDMNETINNY
a o a o [} 0o A [ a a o [ a [ 4
VILNA LLEW“]JT]&I‘VIEJE]EJ@HL‘HHQTL!GI)H’H'JUQWHﬁiﬂﬂlaﬂ’) ﬁﬁ) FININAUIDFAINITUNITNY
9 o A o 1 o A a a I A A v & Y
ﬂﬁglﬂ‘ﬂ‘]ﬂlﬁ]ﬂ’dﬁ3L‘W’f]ﬁ]1WLHEJLL'@5@11Luu‘Ijﬁﬂi]bluL"llﬁQNﬁWﬁﬁﬁLﬂﬂ?ﬂﬂﬂﬁ%Lﬂﬁqﬂﬂ ANUHU fﬂflhlﬂ
o a o & { a { @ 1 a 1 a 4
m”lmazﬁumwamwmﬁuﬁﬂﬂuwﬂmm %QLﬁﬂ?ﬂUﬁ’JUQWU‘I}ﬁﬂﬁ]LLﬁZﬁ’JUﬂUﬂNQMﬁWﬁGli

A v o w A A o = Y Y A A o A
G]']il(ﬂﬂa’ljllj LLazﬁW‘i‘i‘Uﬂ 2562 Liag 2561 U N4 Ulllllﬁ']ﬂllﬂﬁ]’lﬂ’gﬂﬂ’]i’]ﬂiﬂﬂNuaﬂ’]lﬂ’]ﬂUWjﬂ

U

L a
W1nNIIBYRL 10 ‘-umiwllmuwmmmm

d‘ A a
32. 1ATDINDNIINITNY
32.1 HTEJUWEJﬂWT]J%Wﬁ'ﬂ'J'lﬂJL?’fEJ\TVlNﬂTﬁGH
] A o = = o a A 3 o
NANUVIHNA UlJJlJuIﬂUWﬂIuﬂWiﬂigﬂﬂﬂﬁiﬂiiﬂmfJ'Jﬂ‘U@]'ﬂﬂ'TﬁﬂTﬁNULWfJﬂTilﬂ\‘iﬂWllﬁ
A A Y
NIDNBNITANN
' P
322 ANNEENNOATIABNLLIY
' ' P ' P
ﬂﬂ?ﬂlﬁﬂﬂlﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁjﬁﬁWﬂﬂﬂlﬂJfJLﬂﬂﬁ]Wﬂﬂﬁ'ﬂjﬂﬂuuﬂﬂ\i"llf]\iﬁlﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂlﬂstlufJHWﬂﬂ N7

! y v
LﬂaEJL!LLﬂﬁ\iﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁ]$ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁ$ﬂﬂﬁ’f)ﬂ']ﬁﬁ'lluux‘]'lulmgﬂﬁﬁLLﬁNuﬁﬂﬂlﬁNﬂQNUi‘Hﬂﬂ NIUNQY

9

VTN UANUEFSUNYINVDAITIADNIVY AIUIT YLD YIAAIU
JUMTRUTIN

4 UN 31 FUNAY 2562

Tsasmenis  Hanaeniie Sasneniie
CRLLE! Adft Niiaonie 59U ($ovay)
Funsngnamsity
RuaauagsemMseumItuan 5,875,689.25 - 17,155,150.24 23,030,839.49  0.05-2.25
W AUMIMIRY
RudnRuiad 411,790.21 - - 411,790.21 6.95
Fuaniiy - 450,000,000.00 - 450,000,000.00 1.83-1.85
Hug - 2,940,000,000.00 - 2,940,000,000.00  2.95-4.50
JUMTRUTIY
a1 0 31 Funaw 2561
Tsanmenits  Heanaoniie Sasnoniie
087 Adft Niiaonie 59U ($ovay)
Funsndn1amsituy
Rudauaz e aNeumkuan 9,629,323.77 - 100,257,145.60  109,886,469.37 0.50-2.25
W AU
Rudininuiyd 19,415,326.57 - - 19,415,326.57 7.12-7.20
ug - 3,240,000,000.00 - 3,240,000,000.00 3.25-4.50



186

USGN ada wSowiwash 1A (UKIBU)

s189uUs=91U 2562

o

= dy
RPN IL]

QUMSRURNIZNINT

U 31 TUNAN 2562

o

S dy
RPN IL]

v
onsmeniile

ADUAD Adih Nifiaonie 59U ($ovay)
Funswdnamsiy
Rudauazs1eMsReuMEudn 5,541,817.34 - 17,123,402.74 22,665,220.08 0.05-2.25
Wi AUMIMS Ry
Rudninuiad 411,790.21 - - 411,790.21 6.95
Fuanin - 450,000,000.00 - 450,000,000.00 1.83-1.85
Ruftuszezen - 18,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 23,000,000.00 2.00
Hug - 2,940,000,000.00 - 2,940,000,000.00  3.25-4.50
IWMIRURWIZAIMS
0 i 31 Funaw 2561
isasmenits  Heanaeniie Sasnenity
GELLR Agft Nisiaonie 59U ($ovag)
Funsngnamsity
Rudauazs1emMsfoumMEudan 9,197,339.61 - 100,221,085.60  109,418,425.21 0.05-2.25
W AUNMIMS Y
RudniRuiad 19,415,326.57 - - 19,415,326.57 7.12-7.20
Rufouszezen - 18,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 23,000,000.00 2.00
yug - 3,240,000,000.00 - 3,240,000,000.00 3.25-4.50

= Y ya A
323 mmmmmumﬂwauwa

1 Aa o 1 a 4 :: 4 [ a % o 1
NANUI YN flﬂ'NN!%EN%']ﬂﬂ'liﬁlﬁ}ﬁulG‘Iﬂf@@nlﬁE]\i’iﬂﬂﬂ']ﬁeu'IfJ’E)ﬁQ“HWi?JVIﬁWEJ‘UENﬂQ?J

9

A o I A o YA o = 9 9 9 X 1 [ a [ 4
VIYNA L‘ﬂuﬂ”lislﬂfl‘ﬂﬂTﬁu@iﬁﬂJﬂTﬁ%Tﬁgﬁu%TﬂQﬂﬂT%Uﬂﬁﬂﬂ’luuﬁ’mQﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁlmﬁw&

32.4 YaAgATITY

YN 1

4 a o d ya a 1 B ] H a
Lﬁ’t’NﬁﬂﬂﬁLl‘V]ﬁWﬂlla%ﬁaﬁu%ﬁﬂﬁlﬁUﬁ'lualﬁﬂluﬁ]ﬂﬂgiuﬂi%mﬂﬁ%ﬂgﬁuuaglﬁUﬂﬂll@NG]

EY

o 4

Y )
ioamenitieIndifeswnsiaann feus msvess Bna Jusedyan1gasI suveIdUNT Ny

Y
a a o J ] 1 ] I 0o v W J o
‘Vif!ﬁ'u’ﬂNﬂ"ﬁNLlﬂ\Tﬂﬁ"I’J’i]%llllu@ﬂ@"Ni’)EJNL‘]Juﬁ"lﬁgﬁ"lﬂﬂluﬂﬂiil‘ﬁﬂ"m"mﬂﬂlu%



s1g0uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 187
o U ?}ll 1 =)
32.5 amuwummgamqmam
o A [ 1 Aa o A Aa [ 4 a A o Y 9
M AUN 31 TUINAY 2562 1Ay 2561 ﬂQMUiB‘Iﬂ"I uﬁumwa‘wnmmumiugma
Y Y
yjaﬂ'lq@ﬁiin&!ﬂﬂl!ﬁﬂﬂ@'lﬂﬁ'l@ﬂ“]fu"ll’E'Nisllﬁﬂ'lqgmiill @\‘lﬁ
JUMIRUTIY
YaMgAsITY
Y Y Y
voya Toya voya
YWy AU 1 LA 2 LA 3
STRL UM Um UM STRL]

a i 31 Funaw 2562

a v d a | =

Fun3ndmamsdulaivagndeou
RUAIUIND 1Y 101,423,899.64

a0 U 31 SunAN 2561

a v d a 1 =

Aun3ndmamsdulainagndeou

RUAINUIND 1Y 426,748,453.50

3
2
=0

yamay
STRY
a Ui 31 SunaN 2562
a o d a ] =)
FunIndmamsdulainagndou
RUAINUIND Y 100,678,867.06
a Ui 31 Sunaw 2561
a v d a ] =)
aunswamansidulaivyuide

RUAINUIND Y 426,012,375.02

101,423,899.64

426,748,453.50

IUMTRUANIZHING

101,423,899.64

426,748,453.50

YaMgATITY
Y Y Y
Toya Toya Voya
S2AU 1 JEAU 2 FEAU 57U
STRN STRN UM 1IN

100,678,867.06

426,012,375.02

100,678,867.06

426,012,375.02



188 USBn ada wSowiwosh 9111A (UKBU) sngguls=9U 2562

a o

v 9 v
UM 31 FUNAY 2562 uaz 2561 NGNLTENG InlaunnsRuszezeIndameiyan

[

9 9
gATITULENUAAIATINAIAUTUYDIYAAIGATITN AL

JUMIRUTIWAUMTRURNIENINS

YAMYATITY
9 9 9
doya doya Joya
yama iy AU 1 A 2 5¥AY 3 59U
UM UM um um UM
o Ul 31 Funan 2562
HHAHMINsRUrU e
AMANIIY 450,000,000.00 - 447,578,865.50 - 447,578,865.50
2a A g =
wHaumansdulaivamdon
ith) 2,940,000,000.00 - 2,983,240,330.50 - 2,983,240,330.50
& Jui 31 1A 2561
;A a T =
wHaumansdulaivamdon
Wug 3,240,000,000.00 - 3,248,874,696.20 - 3,248,874,696.20

v
a v a U = Y U

33. ’i181ﬂ1’§§’iﬂ%ﬂﬂﬂi‘ﬂﬂ!!ﬁ%uﬂﬂﬁﬂ!ﬁﬂ)ﬂl@ﬁﬂ

V3N fis1enisgsnandinyiuyaaauazfinsinedeenu $19n155309890A17

9 q

1 (% 1

I A Y 4 A a o @ a o a
L‘]_]ullﬂ@l']ileJuu],‘llﬂ'l\‘]ﬂ1iﬂ1llazlﬂﬂ!W]ﬁ13J1/]§lﬂﬁ\15'31|ﬂ1!5$ﬂ'3’]\1‘].]3‘]&11ﬂ”] NUUITHNUASNHINIT

9

] '
mianiudaiiuldamlndgsna Tasaunsaagallaeail

@ v o a o
33.1 anNHUSANUTUNUTVUDIUITHEN

o

ANHULANUTUNUT

|a;;.
©

a o o a o 1 Y

s o X o A
UYIEN Wi@fﬂ,ﬂﬂi NWIDWWDIA 31NA Uﬁﬂﬂﬂ@ﬂiﬂﬂﬂ1iﬂﬂ1{‘iuw1iﬁi\1
a o d A d o w a o 1 A 9
UIEN ‘Wi@ﬁ!,‘]_lﬂi WIATH 1DA Uﬁ‘]&l%ﬂ@ﬂiﬂﬂﬂ'liﬂﬂ“kju‘i/l'l\?@i\i

yanaine teenu NITUMIUTENA

332 F1MIMITTHINNU

JUMSEURNIZNING
g5l RLERIR
2 o A 2 o A4
uleine qugaIun fqugaiun
31 FUNAN 2562 31 FUNAN 2561
AMHUATIAN STRLY STREY

F1MIFININVUTHNG0Y

aenitiee 89313 0az 2 70l 359,999.98 367,945.18



s1e9uUs=91U 2562

USGN ada wSowIwosh 91AA (UNIBU)

189

333 g9ANIAINTEHINNY

a YA
RUABNIZHZ81)
U5HNd0Y
A Y
YOANUNADAUIIA
v Y
INAUTENIA
ANAITTHINNIN
A
gaanuvanialgaia
d' d' k) [
yanaineIveany
A Y
YOANUNADAUIIN
s 4 :
NNUUTZHINNIA
ANANTEHINNA

A
gaanuvanlalgia

a

9

aqnsd
Ly
ADNILEA1991Y
U3HNE0Y

[

334 MAeuunUGUIMIdInTY

9

Y
wadlse Toamiseos du
4 [
wa1lse Torvaioonanau
- TasamsaunuRunmvua 13
- Tasamswailse Tewinmvua’ls

77U

JUMSRUTIN

o A
U IUN

N

31 FUNMAN 2562 31 FUNAN 2561

JUMSEURNILNINS

& Un

o &
WU IUN

31 FUMAN 2562 31 FUIAN 2561

o Y Y A A Y o
Hn uﬂl‘ﬂgﬂlﬁgfJngTJ‘]JlﬂﬂaVlLﬂfJ'Jsllf‘Nﬂu

RN RN TRN STRN
- - 18,000,000.00 19,000,000.00
. ) - (1,000,000.00)
- - 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00
5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
(4,900,000.00) (4,900,000.00) - -
100,000.00 100,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
- - 631,232.83 271,232.85
JUMSRUTIVAUMTRURNIZAINS
RLESIR dmsul
v H 9 '
augaium qugaiun
31 FUNAN 2562 31 5UAN 2561
1N STRY
39,507,380.00 34,245,452.00
1,722,568.55 1,601,277.85
9,745,554.00 2,718,270.00

50,975,502.55 38,564,999.85




190 USBn ada wSowiwosh 9111A (UKBU) sngguls=9U 2562

Y d' U a2
34. vaanyINUNITUAIIUAN

341 F19MIN lUNTENUATZUARUAR

szneudie
IUMIEUIIY IWUMIRURNIZAING
dmisull dmisull dmisull dmisull
Fugaiud Tugasud Tugasu Tugasud

31 FUMAN 2562 31 FUNAN 2561 31 FUNAN 2562 31 FUIAN 2561

um um U U

{a o I a
Tounausomawann lidludumaunae 201,094,250.00  570,754,452.00  201,094,250.00  570,754,452.00

TouRuiasnau iilududnanas

74,650,000.00 1,200,000.00 74,650,000.00 1,200,000.00
Toudunswd duduinanie 2,680,620.26 2,273,858.68 2,680,620.26 2,273,858.68
dasiemlielumsesniud liilu
FUAAUNAD 1,511,630.43 1,437,063.50 1,511,630.43 1,437,063.50
narh ls(nanu)anmsiayaniiuaanuNes (435,819.24) 453,297.51 (444,773.34) 446,589.81
narh ls@anguanmsiayam Ivives
patlse Tomiminauidual3nsud
Tumhls@nanudiaaiidu 167,392.00 (44,605.00) 167,392.00 (44,605.00)
34.2 ﬂ']ﬁLﬂﬁﬂuuﬂa\ﬁli’)\‘iﬂl&ﬁl&ﬂlﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ]ﬂﬁ33Jﬁ]ﬂ°ﬁ']!>\1u
o 4 = Qy % ti' % tﬂ' tﬂya t:' a
ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁuq@?u% 31 SUIAY 2562 1ay 2561 ﬂ']ilﬂaflullﬂa\?"ll@\?ﬁuﬁuﬂlﬂﬂ%']ﬂ
ﬂﬁ]ﬂ'ﬁ33Jfl]ﬂﬁ'lNuﬂJﬁ']fJﬂ'ﬁLﬂaﬂuulﬁ'Jﬂﬁu
JUMIRUTIN
dnsuaugaiui 31 sunaw 2562
#0ANIYAD msnlasuualag mslasunlasdu #0ANAUNAD
a uh NANTLUTRUAR & A
1 ¥NSIAY 2561 91NNIFTIANIAY 31 SUAN 2562
1M 110 STRN STRN

a a a v A a YA
NUUMDUUYBUATRUNINTSYS

9

FUNADIUNTEY 19,415,326.57 430,996,463.64 - 450,411,790.21
Y Y
Huq
- HiyuIeu 799,803,120.25 (800,000,000.00) 940,068,634.29 939,871,754.54
- hingudou 2,436,535,059.34 499,197,500.00 (938,557,003.86) 1,997,175,555.48
AoNILeMa9Y 14,952,712.32 (25,989,343.33) 24,250,067.68 13,213,436.67
Ruilurafaae 776,236.09 (323,376,999.77) 323,749,458.76 1,148,695.08
393 3,271,482,454.57 (219,172,379.46) 349,511,156.87 3,401,821,231.98




s1e9uUs=91U 2562

USGN ada wSowIwosh 91AA (UNIBU)

191

Ruibnduigyduastudousves

9
@

AUNNADIT UMY
Y 9
wun
-
- yUNBU
[ =
- linmyuieu

Fa
nuFUMFYYUFINTRY
S
- HUNEY
Loy
ADNILIEA1991Y
a P ]
Rufunan1ae

33U

a a a v A a YA
NUUNNUUYBUASNUNINTS S
P
AUNTDIUUNTNU

RudtuszezennnUsENdey

=~
- viyudou
1} =~
- linyudeu
2 v
Aonlian19918
A Y
Ruilunane9e

37U

#0ANINAD
v A
 un
1 ¥ATIAY 2561

Um

476,072,188.06

959,628,760.26
1,738,642,355.82

12,840.00
13,293,315.12

419,954.14

JUMITRUITIY

dms1Alaugaiui 31 Funay 2561

msulaguutlag
NANTTUFRUAR
NNTIANINY

UM

(456,656,361.49)

(960,000,000.00)
1,496,630,000.01

(12,840.00)
(19,892,227.25)
(304,892,118.96)

m3asulasdu

UM

800,174,359.99

(798,737,296.49)

21,551,624.45

305,248,400.91

A
YOANILYIAD
& un
31 $UNAN 2561

UM

19,415,326.57

799,803,120.25

2,436,535,059.34

14,952,712.32

776,236.09

3,188,069,413.40

(244,824,047.69)

328,237,088.86

3,271,482,454.57

#0ANIKAD
v A
U
1 UATIAY 2562

UM

19,415,326.57
18,000,000.00

799,803,120.25
2,436,535,059.34
15,223,945.17
776,236.09

JUMITRURWIZNINS

dmsulaugaiui 31 sunay 2562

msulaguuilag
NANTTUFRUTR
INNTIANINY

UM

430,996,463.64

(800,000,000.00)
499,197,500.00
(25,989,343 33)

(323,376,999.77)

m3nlasunlasdu

Um

940,068,634.29
(938,557,003.86)
24,610,067.66
323,749,458.76

A
RLGNGE)
o A
o IUN
31 FUNAY 2562

UM

450,411,790.21

18,000,000.00

939,871,754.54
1,997,175,555.48
13,844,669.50
1,148,695.08

3,289,753,687.42

(219,172,379.46)

349,871,156.85

3,420,452,464.81




192

USGN ada wSowiwash 1A (UKIBU)

s189uUs=91U 2562

Ruibnduigyduastudousves
9
FuNNTVUMIAY

P

RUQINTZE28110INUTHNG0Y

U

Yy Y
U

“
- HiyudeY
] =
- lunyuiBeu
4
nuFUMWFYYUFINTRY
=
- viyudey
Loy
ApNIDEA1991Y
a P ]
Ruifumameae

33y

U

1%

) [ de
amsvlavaniun

Q

[

v Y
1wasuulag a9l

'
A o A

U TATINTNANHUNITO

o Ay Y
%1u3u1ﬂﬁﬂmi‘ﬂﬂmma

NuuTasamsidlaln

#0ANINAD
v A
a un
1 ¥ATIAY 2561

Um

476,072,188.06

19,000,000.00

959,628,760.26

1,738,642,355.82

12,840.00
13,303,726.07

419,954.14

JUMTRURWIZNINS

dms1Alaugaiui 31 funay 2561

msulaguutlag
NANTTUFRUAA
INNTIANINY

UM

(456,656,361.49)
(1,000,000.00)

(960,000,000.00)

1,496,630,000.01

(12,840.00)
(19,999,350.53)
(304,892,118.96)

m3asulasdu

UM

800,174,359.99

(798,737,296.49)

21,919,569.63
305,248,400.91

A
YOANILYIAD
& un
31 $UNAN 2561

UM

19,415,326.57
18,000,000.00

799,803,120.25
2,436,535,059.34

15,223,945.17

776,236.09

3,207,079,824.35

(245,931,170.97)

328,605,034.04

3,289,753,687.42

v

35. MazgnunInMsianlasamsiautumsed

31 5UIAN 2562 tag 2561 314U TATINITNAUUTUNITRYNNS

Al

U

o d' o a L} =
ulasimsnautiumsegiaisl

JUNTRUTIVADMTRURNIZNING

9 (%

amsy

Y
a [

aUgAIUN

Q

31 FUIAY 2562

an

9 v
augaiun

31 FUIAN 2561

50 48
(5) ()
10 7
55 50




s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USGN ada wSowIwosh 91AA (UNIBU)

193

[

Ul 31 FUIAY 2562 LAz 2561 UIHNA InszynuNIzaoaneds wawdynn Insins

: o 2
A4 ) Aatd
JUMTHRUTIVATMTRURNIZNING
AU A un
31 FUIAN 2562 31 FUIAN 2561

Y F)

AUVIN AUVIN
YaAIAUNADYDINUNDES AN 1,382.30 920.88

36. MITHNIY
4 H

wennHUduNU Ny lusuuaaagIue TRy o Juh 31 TUAY 2562 Lag 2561

2

e

VITENA UMITLHNU A1)

o

y 2
36.1 iadeAlseAuYeIsuIAT Heall

JUNTRUTIVALMIRURNIZNINIG

A UN a un
31 FUNAN 2562 31 FUAN 2561
Y 9
A1ULIN AULIN
WTaaeM 5P UYBITUIAT 1,606.19 1,236.99

[} T 9 [}

362 & U 31 TUNAY 2562 1AL 2561 VIHND UATLHNNUINNTNTYY1I19197135NY1
J

g

o w

anutasadolinudninauluguaz Tnasemsneadwed iz unindvesuitng lag

v
= 1 )

VIHN Tn1sgrnuNdostediseaudyy1i1uIu 31.86 81UV M uaziuIu 27.84

MuuIn ey



194 USGN ada wSowiwash 1A (UKIBU)

s189uUs=91U 2562

37. iemsunlvderanaamsliyivessranou

v3Ena 1atinmsud ludeAanaranieinTuewumstusiuuaziumMsiummznansIa

4 [ a

]
=

1 i @ @ ") Yo Y a a o 1
ﬂ’f]‘ul?]ﬂ’Jﬂ“UﬂWi*ﬂ@‘ﬂN"UﬂTiNu‘i’Jlle%iﬁJﬂTﬁ/]El\iulllllﬂ‘i‘]Jgi?ﬂﬂﬁNuﬁ\iﬂuiuﬂi}Jﬂﬂ@ﬂ

1 H 9
L!ﬂ\?ﬂﬁ\‘l‘ﬁ‘ﬂi‘]&l“ﬂ"l amumgm‘ﬂ 2555 IﬂElﬂ15’1Ji‘]J\‘l“]JﬂTiN‘Ll‘i']ll!m%ﬂ’ﬂﬂ1iNum‘W'I$ﬂi]ﬂ1§

9 LY A é Y a LY 1 [} a 49! é =1 1 a [ dy
ﬂﬂuﬂaﬁlﬁhf]u‘ﬂuﬂﬂlflN@]‘Wﬁ?ﬂ@\‘lﬂﬁTﬂMﬂﬂmﬂmu“ﬁ\iNNﬁﬂ‘i%ﬂ‘ﬂ@]@\iﬂﬂﬁl\iuﬂﬂu

UMFAIGIUZMSRY & Tuh 1 unsIAN 2561
RUAALAZIIENMINGUINIRU A
v A v v A a A
IMNUMIA AN U UIBUDY
a g A4 9 o a
RUNBNIZEZ1I91NYAAANINEITRINY — gNT

Mlsazau-galildsaass

IVNAAIFIUZNISRY Bt Iud 31 FuNAN 2561
Ruaauags1eMsienIuan
y A ) vy A a A
@IMUMIAA MUY UIeUDY
A yA A A ) Y a
RUNBNIZEZ1291NYAAANINEITOINY — gNT

Mlsazau-81li1dvaass

UMAAIGIHENMISRY & TUN 1 uN3IAN 2561
Ruasu vy sndes

a g A A Y o
NUQElili38381'3%1ﬂuﬂﬂﬁﬂmﬂﬁ]"u®\‘lﬂu

VMG IHEZMSRY o TuN 31 F11AN 2561
RuasuluysEndes

Rudduszezenninyanaiinedrveanu

AUNMIRUTIY
awiiswa3en swmsdiuge Usualgalui
VN VN VN

49,666,427.03 37,000.00 49,703,427.03
344,990,455.49 3,000.00 344,993,455.49
- 100,000.00 100,000.00
4,007,313,852.15 (66,000.00)  4,007,247,852.15
109,852,469.37 34,000.00 109,886,469.37
386,277,909.62 3,000.00 386,280,909.62
- 100,000.00 100,000.00
4,479,179,639.62 (69,000.00)  4,479,110,639.62

IUMITRURNIZNING

awnswauldan  s1emsdSuilss ST ERYIPRY
UM UM UM
19,996,000.00 5,000,000.00 24,996,000.00
- 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
19,996,000.00 5,000,000.00 24,996,000.00
- 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00



s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 195

38. simsdailsznnlu

a o Y. [ [} a a
UVTENA Ulﬂﬁfﬂﬁi]@’I“lJ5$!ﬂ‘VIiTEJﬂ1i“UNi1EJﬂ'Iilﬁll11!\1‘]Jﬂ1ilﬁuiﬁﬂJLLagﬂﬂﬂWiNum‘W1$

a ' A o <3| 9 a A 9 Y Y o
ﬂ%ﬂﬁ\‘l’)ﬂﬂﬁ)uﬂunﬂuﬁﬂﬂlﬂuﬂlﬂy’mlﬁﬂULﬂﬂULW@iﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ@ﬁﬂUﬂWiﬂﬂﬂﬁmﬂ‘ﬂiWﬂﬂTﬂu

WMIsRuTmLazsumMItummnznimsatigiud lulinaded lsdmivananiediuueg

1 £
Hoorumui ldsean udr Taeagilldeail

WHAAIGIUZMIRY Bt Tuh 31 FunAN 2561
a 9 =)

UKD

Aunsnd linyutoudu

awdlsnanmuiaaie
o v A in U d‘ U
dmn3ull FugaTud 31 Fuannu 2561
Y
Aunug

Y

aunulumssaiming

WBAAIFPIUZMIRU Y U 31 AN 2561
a Y A

AUAAUND

Aunsnd livyutoudu

o < <
awmlsnanuiaeie
vl Gugadui 31 Sunan 2561
Y
AunUNY

aunulumsdasimite

JUMTHUTIN

a

A Y o ] A Il
ﬁ]NVIi”IfNWHU],’JL@M vadsznnlnl el

UM UM UM
8,527,923,513.47 1,460,550.00 8,529,384,063.47
87,784,012.34 (1,460,550.00) 86,323,462.34
(2,464,197,011.86) (9,719,979.17)  (2,473,916,991.03)
(275,246,385.40) 9,719,979.17 (265,526,406.23)

JUMSEURNIZAING

a

d‘ Y [ 1 d' 1
aunenu ey dadszonlud ewnsieaulny

uUm uUm UM
8,530,923,513.47 1,460,550.00 8,532,384,063.47
87,783,984.98 (1,460,550.00) 86,323,434.98
(2,464,197,011.86) (9,719,979.17)  (2,473,916,991.03)
(275,246,385.40) 9,719,979.17 (265,526,406.23)



196 USBn ada wSowiwosh 9111A (UKBU) sngguls=9U 2562

J v
39. HANIIUNBHAITOVIZYSIIAIYNY

a

. | o @ A Yt
G]13J518\11uﬂ1§ﬂ§$°]g’hﬂm$ﬂiiiJﬂWiUi‘Hﬂl‘ll’E]’Juﬂ 26 QUATWUT 2563 ﬂﬂigcqullulﬂllilﬂ

A

o o o 4 1 a Yo 9 Y g o a Y
uavaasin lsdsgdiil 2562 imetreRuiluwalinuddeuiludiuiutu 356,12 S
! a o Y a ' Y o Y < o a
HusEna 18vetuiuraszninmaldudrlusasiduaz 0.175 v Husiuiutu 161.87

A o A

o ' a 9 1Y Y <3|
ATUUIN LUBDIUN 13 NUYIYU 2562 LLﬁZ%%WNﬂHG’J@qwma%ﬂuemmuaz 0.21 U Lﬂu

o a Y o 1 a @ { g‘; g a o
TUIUNU 194.25 A1UHUTN mwumwmuﬂuwaimuﬁ 8 NHHNIAY 2563 “Vl\iﬁiJGl@NﬂﬂYJ%%

WnauedenszyuInajdneruilszdll 2563 ensaneysinae i

40. MIBYNAIUMTAU

4
IS o

N Yo ) A o Yy A o A o &
\‘1‘]_1fﬂiNuuhlﬂﬁﬂ@uwﬁﬁlﬁﬂﬂﬂjﬂﬂﬂﬁ!%ﬂﬁﬁhﬂﬁﬂﬁ‘]&l‘ﬂ"lL!ﬁ') UDIUN 26 fliJﬂTWU‘ﬁ 2563

3




s1e9uUs=91U 2562 USBn ada wSowiwos# 9111R (UKBU) 197

UANALEVAUS)

WaouUtyBaKSusauUysU 2562
UNAIIITITY WNELADES
Laﬂummﬂunmuum%euaumm 4387
Lﬂumﬂuumwummmuﬂmw memmamummimumm@mm
Lay Lﬂummuwimaﬁummmumumﬂmumm n.4.51.
131 3 mm‘um mmuaﬂ A [iim
128/180-181 mm?wmﬂmwmm du17
DUUWEY I WAITING NN 10400
N3N @ (02) 216 — 2265 Tn3a17 : (02) 216 — 2286
AUSAUINAKUNY
U3EW AT waus Wisniuada Aulnafiutuuus AauTawAuid s1in
$14 12 01N IUNEIEA MaLes 214
nuUANY qRRE Unudl ngamne 10330
3w : (02) 267 - 8931 Tngang : (02) 267 - 8942

WANKANNSWE
usuwuanwewa 1aLde waﬂ ﬂ‘iﬂ Taamﬂ ANA (WD)
175 ‘J’J‘u (N @Wﬂﬂ?@ﬂﬁj‘sﬁ[}m‘]’lmﬂi auumwﬂm
LL‘]J']\WNN“VI’]LN‘JJ AAINT ﬂ’g‘\‘iL'Vl‘W% 10120
3. (02) 680 - 1111
n9419. (02) 285 — 1901

SUIANTNINATRESET ANNA (NUTU)

1222 DUUNTZINN 3 WINLWINNWS 1 BALNURIN
NFAUNNY 10120

9. (02) 296 - 2000

Inga13. (02) 683 — 1000

FUIAITNTILNN ANA (WD)
333 nUUAAN WIAAN LIALNETN
NgaMN1 10500

9. (02) 231 — 4333

Inga19. (02) 231 — 4890

suAsaladndling 4im (NunTw)
44 DUUMAIAIU WID9QNAT Lomludu
NFAMN 10330

9. (02) 626 - 7329

Ingas. (02) 657 — 3333

FUIASLNLTAUIAY I10A (NUTU)
500 ANANFANTUNS NN1IDT DULIWAUAR
WA LmLly N

NFIMN 10330

3. (02) 165 — 5555

Ingans. (02) 256 — 9933



198 USBn ada wSowiwosh 9111A (UKBU) sngguls=9U 2562

SUNANT INaWITE IR (NANTY)

9 UUTTANNEN WINARANT LIAAEANT
N4 10900

3. (02) 544 - 1111

n9a19. (02) 937 - 7931

FUNANTEUTIR A0 (NUITU)

1101 DUNTILEAR TN wasainnzdu
WIRFITLNR NFUNN 10400

9. (02) 208 — 5000

9819 (02) 253 - 6332

suinsglall (Uszindlng) 41ia (uwnmu)
191 auuamsle

WUDVRNMLNR LIARINS NJINN 10120
9. (02) 343 - 4996 - 8

Ingans. (02) 343 — 4993

ungn:dguKannNsSwe
FUIAITNTIUANN ANA (NUTU)
333 nuUUAAN WINAAN [ALNEN
NIIMN 10500
n9. (02) 231 — 4333
nga3. (02) 231 — 4890

SUIANTTLALANT INE I10R (NUAITU)
44 DUUVAIAU WUD9QNAT Lmlyudu
N94MNY 10330

9. (02) 626 - 7329

Ingas. (02) 657 — 3333

uiEngudsuehnuanmsng (Uszinalng) 41in

62 a1AsaaauannineL sl sznalng auudianfen
WINARBILAE LIAAABILAL NFUNNT 10110

3. (02) 229 — 2800

n3a19. : (02) 359 — 1259

TSD Call center: (02) 229 — 2888



Annual Report 2019 Lalin Property Public Company Limited 199

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Opinion

I have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of LALIN PROPERTY
PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) and of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC
COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the consolidated and separate statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated and separate statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated and separate statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and the consolidated
and separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated and separate
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated and separate financial position of the Group and the Company as
at 31 December 2019, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and its consolidated and
separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards

(TFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidate and Separate Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the
Group and the Company in accordance with the Federation of Accounting Professions, Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most
significance in my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as
a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Valuation of Inventories

Inventories, mentioned in notes to the financial statements No.9, are significant to the financial
statements. They comprised of the real estate development project-awaiting-sale and development
project-in-construction. The Company’s method of inventories valuation is the lower of cost or net
realizable value as in the note to the financial statements No.6.5, which involved management judgement
to determining the net realizable value for the real estate development project-awaiting-sale and
development project-in-construction. My audit is concentrated on this area.

Therefore, my audit methods have included inquiring, obtaining an understanding and testing
the internal control system of the inventories value, and assessing to process of the management in
consideration the net realizable value of the real estate development project-awaiting-sale and
development project-in-construction. Assessment the appropriateness of the net realizable value with the
actual selling price after the end of the year and also the approved selling price and the related selling
expenses. The methods also included the assessment of the sufficiency of the information disclosed

under the financial reporting standards.

Emphasis of Matter

I draw attention to note 37 to the financial statements describing the effects about the
preparation of consolidated and the transactions are not recognized investment in subsidiary. I have
audited these adjustments, and in my opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly

applied. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated and separate financial
statements and my auditor’s report thereon, which is expected to be made available to me after the date

of this auditor’s report.
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My opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other
information and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, my
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or my knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When I read the annual report, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the correction be

made.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and
separate financial statements in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs), and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matter relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group and the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group and the Company’s

the financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
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the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs), I exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

® [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group and the Company’s internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group and the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report by attention to the disclosures in the related consolidated and separate financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

® Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
and business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. I
am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. I remain solely

responsible for my audit opinion.
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I communicate with those charged with governance in various importance matters, including
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control if I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, I determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

information.
(Miss Wanraya Puttasatiean)
Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 4387
CWWP Company Limited
Bangkok,

26 February 2020
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2019

Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018
Bath Bath Bath
(Restated) (Restated)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 23,030,839.49 109,886,469.37 49,703,427.03

Other Current Receivables 8 88,679,141.45 67,276,659.46 82,812,521.56

Inventories 9 10,063,121,869.57 8,529,384,063.47 8,478,636,281.96
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 10,174,831,850.51 8,706,547,192.30 8,611,152,230.55
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investments Held as Available-for-Sale 10 101,423,899.64 426,748,453.50 31,267,283.06

Land Held to Development 12 768,084,135.03 830,686,035.03 839,869,385.03

Property, Plant and Equipment 13 364,904,765.43 372,034,291.37 397,948,663.26

Other Intangible Assets - Net 2.00 2.00 2.00

Deferred Tax Assets 14 12,123,675.20 7,212,543.00 6,130,532.35

Other Non-Current Assets 15 80,513,484.15 86,323,462.34 7,586,962.60
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,327,049,961.45 1,723,004,787.24 1,282,802,828.30
TOTAL ASSETS 11,501,881,811.96 10,429,551,979.54 9,893,955,058.85

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2019

Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018
Bath Bath Bath
(Restated) (Restated)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from

Financial Institutions 17 450,411,790.21 19,415,326.57 476,072,188.06

Trade and Other Current Payables 18 464,138,907.15 386,280,909.62 344,993,455.49

Current Portion of Debenture 20 939,871,754.54 799,803,120.25 959,628,760.26

Current Portion of Liabilities under Finance

Lease Agreements - - 12,840.00

Accrued Income Taxes 101,403,730.61 74,890,051.91 80,482,373.04

Estimate Short-Term of Liabilities 19 764,891,084.23 540,147,615.39 606,166,953.65
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,720,717,266.74 1,820,537,023.74 2,467,356,570.50
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-Term Borrowings from Related Person 33.3,37 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

Debenture 20 1,997,175,555.48 2,436,535,059.34 1,738,642,355.82

Non-Current Provisions of Employee Benefits 21 53,535,565.30 35,979,904.30 30,569,814.30

Deferred Tax Liabilities 14 5,460.97 92,624.82 1,972.67

Estimate Long-Term of Liabilities 19 166,604,222.68 140,111,260.46 133,313,664.16
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,217,420,804.43 2,612,818,848.92 1,902,627,806.95
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,938,138,071.17 4,433,355,872.66 4,369,984,377.45

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2019

Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018
Bath Bath Bath
(Restated) (Restated)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share Capital 22
Authorized Share Capital
925,000,000 Ordinary Shares, at Baht 1.00 each 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00
Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital
924,999,441 Ordinary Shares, at Baht 1.00 each 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00
Shares Premium on Ordinary 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94
Retained Earnings
Appropriated
Legal Reserve 23 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00
Unappropriated 5,047,006,928.92 4,479,110,639.62 4,007,247,852.15
Other Components of Shareholders' Equity 21,843.93 370,499.32 7,861.31
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 6,563,743,740.79 5,996,196,106.88 5,523,970,681.40
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 11,501,881,811.96 10,429,551,979.54 9,893,955,058.85

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.



Annual Report 2019

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

207

LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2019

Separate Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018
Bath Bath Bath
(Restated) (Restated)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 22,665,220.08 109,418,425.21 49,591,903.04
Other Current Receivables 8 88,679,141.45 67,276,659.46 82,812,521.56
Inventories 9 10,066,121,869.57 8,532,384,063.47 8,481,636,281.96
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 10,177,466,231.10 8,709,079,148.14 8,614,040,706.56
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments Held as Available-for-Sale 10 100,678,867.06 426,012,375.02 30,537,912.28
Investment in Subsidiary 11,37 24,996,000.00 24,996,000.00 24,996,000.00
Land Held to Development 12 768,084,135.03 830,686,035.03 839,869,385.03
Property, Plant and Equipment 13 361,351,954.33 368,481,480.27 394,395,852.16
Other Intangible Assets - Net 2.00 2.00 2.00
Deferred Tax Assets 14 12,123,675.20 7,212,543.00 6,130,532.35
Other Non-Current Assets 15 80,513,456.79 86,323,434.98 7,586,935.24
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,347,748,090.41 1,743,711,870.30 1,303,516,619.06
TOTAL ASSETS 11,525,214,321.51 10,452,791,018.44 9,917,557,325.62

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2019

Separate Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018
Bath Bath Bath
(Restated) (Restated)
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from
Financial Institutions 17 450,411,790.21 19,415,326.57 476,072,188.06
Trade and Other Current Payables 18 464,758,139.98 386,539,879.97 344,993,450.44
Current Portion of Debenture 20 939,871,754.54 799,803,120.25 959,628,760.26
Current Portion of Liabilities under Finance
Lease Agreements - - 12,840.00
Accrued Income Taxes 101,370,817.16 74,857,268.26 79,801,734.65
Estimate Short-Term of Liabilities 19 764,891,084.23 540,147,615.39 606,166,953.65
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,721,303,586.12 1,820,763,210.44 2,466,675,927.06
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-Term Borrowings from Subsidiary 333 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00 19,000,000.00
Long-Term Borrowings from Related Person 33.3,37 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
Debenture 20 1,997,175,555.48 2,436,535,059.34 1,738,642,355.82
Non-Current Provisions of Employee Benefits 21 53,535,565.30 35,979,904.30 30,569,814.30
Deferred Tax Liabilities 14 355.94 89,310.61 -
Estimate Long-Term of Liabilities 19 166,604,222.68 140,111,260.46 133,313,664.16
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,240,315,699.40 2,635,715,534.71 1,926,525,834.28
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,961,619,285.52 4,456,478,745.15 4,393,201,761.34

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2019

Separate Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018

Bath Bath U
(Restated) (Restated)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share Capital 22
Authorized Share Capital
925,000,000 Ordinary Shares, at Baht 1.00 each 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00
Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital
924,999,441 Ordinary Shares, at Baht 1.00 each 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00
Shares Premium on Ordinary 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94
Retained Earnings
Appropriated
Legal Reserve 23 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00
Unappropriated 5,046,878,644.25 4,479,240,062.88 4,007,640,625.72
Other Components of Shareholders' Equity 1,423.80 357,242.47 (29.38)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 6,563,595,035.99 5,996,312,273.29 5,524,355,564.28
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 11,525,214,321.51 10,452,791,018.44 9,917,557,325.62

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
Statements Of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Consolidated Financial Statements

Separate Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Baht Baht Baht Baht
(Restated)
Revenue from Sale 4,623,036,288.00 4,082,064,216.00 4,623,036,288.00 4,082,064,216.00

Cost of Sales

GROSS PROFIT

Other Incomes

Specific Business Tax and Transfer Fee
Distribution Costs

Administrative Expenses

Finance Costs

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
Income Tax (Expenses) Revenue

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE)
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring Investments Held as Available-for-Sale

(2,812,262,777.03)

(2,473,916,991.03)

(2,812,262,777.03)

(2,473,916,991.03)

1,810,773,510.97

17,889,615.15
(174,471,387.50)
(265,454,670.93)
(244,991,173.80)

(21,653,202.25)

1,608,147,224.97

16,590,979.91
(156,978,269.00)
(265,526,406.23)
(207,122,318.95)

(22,713,627.95)

1,810,773,510.97
17,888,140.22
(174,471,387.50)
(265,454,670.93)
(244,952,583.80)
(22,013,202.23)

1,608,147,224.97

16,589,856.31
(156,978,269.00)
(265,526,406.23)
(207,083,189.74)

(23,081,573.13)

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined Benefit Plans 133,913.60

Total Other Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the Year - Net of Tax

Total Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the Year - Net of Tax

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

1,122,092,691.64 972,397,582.75 1,121,769,806.73 972,067,643.18
27.1 (230,580,857.18) (195,250,710.37) (230,515,680.20) (195,184,121.11)
891,511,834.46 777,146,872.38 891,254,126.53 776,883,522.07
27.2
(348,655.39) 362,638.01 (355,818.67) 357,271.85
(35,684.00) 133,913.60 (35,684.00)
(214,741.79) 326,954.01 (221,905.07) 321,587.85
891,297,092.67 777,473,826.39 891,032,221.46 777,205,109.92
29 0.96 0.84 0.96 0.84

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements Of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Separate Financial Statements

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before IncomeTax
Adjustment to Reconcile Profit Before Income Tax with
Cash Provided (Used) from Operating
Depreciation
Gain on Sale of Investments Held as Available-for-Sale
Loss on Written-off of Property, Plant and Equipment
Estimated of Liabilities (Reversal)
Employee Benefit Expenses
Reversal for Allowance on Advances Payment
Witten-off of Accrued Expenses as Other Income
Interest Income
Interest Expenses
Profit from Operating Before Changes in
Operating Assets and Liabilities
(Increase) Decrease in Operation Assets
Other Current Receivables
Inventories
Other Non-Current Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Operation Liabilities

Trade and Other Current Payables

Non-Current Provisions of Employee Benefits
Cash Received (Paid) from Operating Activites
Cash Paid for Interest Expenses Recorded as Cost of Inventories

Cash Received from Interest Income

Cash Payment form Income Tax

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Baht

1,122,092,691.64

50,987,606.36
(2,111,265.38)

335,546.84

251,236,431.06

18,966,753.00

(231,559.41)

21,653,202.25

Baht

(Restated)

972,397,582.75

61,155,474.47
(1,027,872.93)
17,465.63
(59,221,741.96)
5,898,485.00
(14,812.24)
(7,140,451.84)
(214,995.38)

21,551,624.45

Baht

1,121,769,806.73

50,987,606.36
(2,111,265.38)

335,546.84

251,236,431.06

18,966,753.00

(230,084.48)

22,013,202.23

Baht

972,067,643.18

61,155,474.47
(1,027,872.93)

17,465.63
(59,221,741.96)

5,898,485.00
(14,812.24)
(7,140,451.84)
(213,871.75)

21,919,569.63

1,462,929,406.36

(18,805,616.56)
(1,157,048,942.78)

(2,240,021.81)

79,224,814.19

(1,243,700.00)

993,400,757.95

15,550,674.34
605,378,796.29

(6,747,049.74)

46,412,226.82

(533,000.00)

1,462,967,996.36

(18,805,616.56)
(1,157,048,942.78)

(2,240,021.81)

79,225,076.69

(1,243,700.00)

993,439,887.19

15,550,674.34
605,378,796.29

(6,747,049.74)

46,410,380.32

(533,000.00)

362,815,939.40
(96,752,362.63)

231,559.41

(209,011,789.08)

1,653,462,405.66
(79,000,653.62)

214,995.38

(201,916,128.50)

362,854,791.90
(96,752,362.63)

230,084.48

(208,946,741.90)

1,653,499,688.40
(79,000,653.62)

213,871.75

(201,201,684.50)

57,283,347.10

1,372,760,618.92

57,385,771.85

1,373,511,222.03

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements Of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes

Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Separate Financial Statements

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Paid for Purchase of Investments Held as Available-for-Sale

Cash Received from Sale of Investments Held as Available-for-Sale

Cash Paid for Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment

Cash Paid for Land Held to Development

Cash Paid on Deposit for Land
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase (Decrease) in Overdrafts

Cash Received from Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions

Cash Paid for Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions

Cash Paid for Liabilities under Finance Lease Agreements

Cash Paid for Long-Term Borrowings from Subsidiary

Cash Received from Issuance of Debenture

Cash Paid for Settle of Debenture

Cash Paid for Debenture Issued Expenses

Cash Paid for Interest Expenses

Cash Paid for Dividends
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS INCREASE (DECREASE)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ENDING OF THE YEAR

Baht

(1,065,000,000.00)
1,392,000,000.00
(46,874,247.52)

(138,492,350.00)

Baht

(Restated)

(1,885,000,000.00)
1,491,000,000.00
(37,532,426.89)

(561,571,102.00)

Baht

(1,065,000,000.00)
1,392,000,000.00
(46,874,247.52)

(138,492,350.00)

Baht

(1,885,000,000.00)
1,491,000,000.00
(37,532,426.89)

(561,571,102.00)

(66,600,000.00) (74,650,000.00) (66,600,000.00) (74,650,000.00)

75,033,402.48  (1,067,753,528.89) 75,033,402.48  (1,067,753,528.89)
(19,003,536.36) 13,343,138.51 (19,003,536.36) 13,343,138.51
2,248,000,000.00 760,000,000.00  2,248,000,000.00 760,000,000.00

(1,798,000,000.00)

500,000,000.00
(800,000,000.00)
(802,500.00)

(25,989,343.33)

(1,230,000,000.00)
(12,840.00)
1,500,000,000.00
(960,000,000.00)
(3,369,999.99)

(19,892,227.25)

(1,798,000,000.00)

500,000,000.00
(800,000,000.00)
(802,500.00)

(25,989,343.33)

(1,230,000,000.00)
(12,840.00)
(1,000,000.00)
1,500,000,000.00
(960,000,000.00)
(3,369,999.99)

(19,999,350.53)

(323,376,999.77) (304,892,118.96) (323,376,999.77) (304,892,118.96)
(219,172,379.46) (244,824,047.69) (219,172,379.46) (245,931,170.97)
(86,855,629.88) 60,183,042.34 (86,753,205.13) 59,826,522.17
109,886,469.37 49,703,427.03 109,418,425.21 49,591,903.04

23,030,839.49 109,886,469.37 22,665,220.08 109,418,425.21

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.

General Information

The Company was registered under the Civil and Commercial Code as a corporate entity on 8

November 1988, registration number 8781/2531 and convert to The Public Company Limited held on 3

September 2002, new registration number 0107545000233. It is registered office located at 222/2

Srinakharin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi, Bangkok, Thailand. The Company’s major shareholder is

Chakarakul family and Watcharakawong family in 35.58% and 34.24%, repectively.

The Company is principally engaged in property development.

Basis in Preparation of Financial Statements

2.1

2.2

23

24

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards including related interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of
Accounting Professions, applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The financial statements were presented in compliance with the notification of Department of
Business Development relating to determination of abbreviated items in the financial statements.

In order to prepare the financial statements to comply with Thai Financial Reporting Standards,
the management of the Company has to make some estimates and assumptions which may have
an effect on the amount shown for revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and also on the
disclosures concerning to assets and contingent liabilities, therefore the actual result may differ
from the estimated amount.

The financial report in Thai language is the official statutory financial report of the Company.
The financial report in English language has been translated from the Thai language financial

report.
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3. Basis in Preparation of the Consolidation Financial Statement
3.1  Inpreparation of the consolidated financial statements, the Company will only take its subsidiary
which are under the control of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED into account,
after having eliminated the remaining balances and transactions among themselves, with the

percentage of shareholdings in subsidiary as follows:

Percentage of Percentage of
Shareholdings Shareholdings
Company’s Name Type of Business
As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018
% %
Prosper Property Co., Ltd. Property development 99.98 99.98
Prosper Precast Co., Ltd. Property development 99.00 99.00

3.2 The accounting period of the subsidiary is end on the same date as LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC
COMPANY LIMITED.

3.3 In preparation of the consolidated financial statements, significant inter-assets and liabilities and
inter-transactions were already eliminated.

3.4 Accounting policy for subsidiary for the same type of transactions will utilize the same policy as
the Company.

3.5 In preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the Company is treated shareholding at

99.00% of the subsidiaries, as holding of 100%.

4. Applied New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards
The Company has adopted the new and revised financial reporting standards which are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The adoption of these financial
reporting standards does not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements. The
adoption TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the Company has adopted new accounting
policies as follows:

4.1 Commission paid to obtain a contract - The management of the Company have determined that
commission paid to obtain a customer contract should be recorded as an asset and amortised to
expenses on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of revenue recognition. Provided
that the amortisation period of the asset that the Company otherwise would have used is one year

or less, costs to obtain a contract are immediately recognised as expenses.
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4.2 Promotion expenses specified in the contracts with customers are given to customers when they
register the transfer of houses, including free of charge items. The Company has considered that
the free of charge items are component parts of houses, which are the main performance
obligations under the contracts. Therefore, the Company is to record these costs as costs of
property sales, not distribution costs as previously recorded.

In addition, the Company has reclassified curtain items that impact to items in the statement of

comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019, as follows:

Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements

Previous accounting Increase TFRS 15
policy (decrease)
Baht Baht Baht

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2019
Cost of Sales (2,797,317,706.72) (14,945,070.31) (2,812,262,777.03)

Distribution Costs (280,399,741.24) 14,945,070.31 (265,454,670.93)

5. New Financial Reporting Standards Not Yet Effective
The Federation of Accounting Professions issued new financial reporting standards, accounting
standards and financial reporting standard interpretations, which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or
after 1 January 2020. These new standards involve changes to key principles, which are summarised below.

Group of Financial Instruments Standards

TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments

TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

TFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

TFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

These TFRSs related to financial instruments make stipulations relating to the classification of
financial instruments and their measurement at fair value or amortised cost (taking into account the type
of instrument, the characteristics of the contractual cash flows and the Company’s business model),
calculation of impairment using the expected credit loss method, and hedge accounting. These include
stipulations regarding the presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. When the TFRSs related
to financial instruments are effective, some accounting standards, interpretations and guidance which

are currently effective will be cancelled.
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TFRS 16 Leases

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and

disclosure of leases, and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of

more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is low value.

The management of the Company and its subsidiaries are currently evaluating the impact of

these financial reporting standards on the financial statements.

6. Significant Accounting Policies

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Measurements bases used in the Preparation of Financial Statements

Measurement bases used in the preparation of financial statements are historical cost
measurement basis and combination of variety measurement bases used. Some assets and liabilities
that use other measurement bases have been disclosed the measurement bases used in the particular
accounting policies.
Financial Instruments

Financial assets which recognized in the statement of financial position include cash and
cash equivalents, investments and trade and other current receivables. Financial liabilities which
recognized in the statement of financial position include trade and other current payables and
liabilities under financial lease agreements. The specific accounting policies for each item are
disclosed in the respective accounting policies.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include bank deposit in type of current accounts, savings
accounts, and 3 months fixed accounts without guarantee obligation.
Other Current Receivables

Other Current receivables are stated at net realizable value.
Inventories

Finished Goods is reflected according to the cost price or net realizable value whichever
is lower. Cost price is composed of cost of land acquisition, land development, project
construction cost and public utility system and direct other expenses.

Development in Progress is reflected according to the cost price or net realizable value
whichever is lower. Cost price is composed of cost of land acquisition, land development, project
construction cost and public utility system is recognized under the percentage of completion method

which determined by the project engineers, and direct other expenses of the project and interest
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expenses. Interest expenses will be stopped to recognize as cost whenever the construction project
have been completed or ceased.
6.6  Available-for-Sale Investments
Available-for-Sale investments which is investments in marketable securities that the
Company classified as available-for-sale investments are stated at the fair value. The fair value of
unit trust is the price announced from the fund as at the date of the statement of financial
position. The Company recognized the change of value as separate caption in shareholders’
equity and will be recognized in profit or loss when the Company has disposed such investments
or the investments is impaired.
6.7 Investments in subsidiary according to the separate financial statements are recorded in cost
method deducted by allowance for impairment of investments (if any).
6.8 Land Held to Development
Land held for development means the land the Company aims to hold for the future benefit
and recorded as non-current asset by reflecting according to the cost price which may adjust by
allowance for asset impairment. The cost price is composed by land cost and other related expense so
as to acquire the land.
6.9  Property, Plant and Equipment
Land are stated at cost on date the transaction occur, plant and equipment are stated at cost on
date the transaction occur less accumulated depreciation and accumulated loss on impairment (if any).

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis on their estimated useful life as follows:

Land Improvements 20 Years
Buildings 20 Years
Buildings-Clubhouses and Swimming Pool 5 Years
Office Equipment 3and5 Years
Office Furniture 5 Years
Vehicles 5and 10 Years

For central utility, clubhouses buildings, garden and playgrounds which were built before the
Land Allotment Act B.E. 2000 was enforceable, the Company will record as part of property, plant
and equipment. For central utility, clubhouses buildings, garden and playgrounds which were built
after the Land Allotment Act B.E. 2000 was enforceable and the Company intended as public service,
the Company will record as part of inventory and will amortize as cost of sales in proportion to

saleable areas of each project.
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6.10

6.11

6.12

Repair and maintenance is recognized as expense in profit or loss during the period that
it is incurred. Replacement cost is recognized as a part of carrying amount of assets when it is
probable that the Company will obtain the future economic benefits from that transaction and
able to measure the cost of that transaction reliably. Replacement cost will be depreciated by the
basis of estimated useful life.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is computed from discrepancy
between net proceed and carrying amount and recognized as revenue or expense in the profit or
loss when incurred.

Intangible Assets and Amortization
Computer Software Licenses

Acquired specific computer software licenses are recognized as assets, are stated at
initial cost deducted by accumulated amortization and accumulated loss on impairment (if any).
Amortization is calculated by straight-line method over the estimated useful life for the period of
5 years.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production or
development of each project an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale. The Company will record to deferred interest and present as a part of
inventories of each project. The Company will cease the record when the project is complete for
sale or faced with problem of delay while the proceeding of further development incurs. For the
interest incurred from loan to acquire land held to development but not yet developed. The
Company will record such interest expense as expense in the profit or loss.

Impairment of Assets

The carrying amounts of assets are assessed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’
recoverable amounts are estimated of asset or its cash-generating unit to which the asset is
included in the recognition of an impairment loss when the recoverable amount less than the
carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit.

Impairment loss is recognized as expenses in profit or loss immediately.

Calculation of Recoverable Amount
- The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less cost to sell of asset or the

cash- generating unit or its value in use.
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- In assessing value in use of an asset by estimating the present value of future cash flows
generated by the asset, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate which reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

- The asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversals of Impairment Loss

- The loss on impairment of assets recognized in the prior period will be reversed if the
estimation for indicated net realizable value changes since the last impairment loss was
recognized. The carrying amount of the asset not exceed just to be the carrying amount that
would have been (net of accumulated depreciation or amortization), if no impairment loss
had been recognized.

- Reversals of impairment loss will be recognized as income in profit or loss immediately.

6.13 Employees Benefit

Short-term Employee Benefits

- The Group is recognized salary, wage, bonus and social security fund are expenses on the
date that the transaction occur.

Post-employment Benefits

- Defined Contribution Plan

The Company operates a provident fund which is funded by payments from employees and
by the Company. The assets for which are held in a separate trust fund. Contributions to the
provident fund are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

- Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has the employee benefit obligation in case of retirement or termination
under the labor law by an actuary to calculate on an actuarial technique the said employee benefit
obligation. The said employee benefit obligation is discounted using the projected unit credit
method and presents as non-current liabilities. Hereby, the costs associated with employee benefits
will be recognized as expense in profit or loss so as to spread the cost over the employment period.

All actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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6.14 Provision
The Company recognized provision when it is probable that there is a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events and an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. The reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset when, and only when, the reimbursement is virtually certain after
the provision is settled.

6.15 Leases
- The Company is the lessee

Long-term leases which substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated to the principal and to the finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The outstanding lease obligations less finance
charges are recorded as liabilities. The assets acquired under finance leases will be depreciated
throughout the estimated useful life of that leased asset. However, if there is uncertainty in the
right of ownership when the contract is terminated, depreciation will be calculated on the
estimated useful life of leased assets or the lease term whichever the period is lower.

Long-term leases not transferring a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lesser) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease term has expired, any payment
required to be made to the lesser such as of penalty will be recognized as expense in the period
that the termination incurs.

6.16 Recognition of Revenues
- Revenues from sales of land and houses and condominium

The Company is recognized revenues from sales of land and houses and condominium as
income when control of the real estate is transferred to the buyer that the Company retains
neither continuing managerial involvement nor effective control over the land and house and
condominium sold, directly and indirectly. The recognized amount revenue and cost incurred
in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. The initial down payment and the
installment received that have not yet fit the criteria for revenue recognition shall be record

under deposits received from sales of land and houses condominium.
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Consideration paid to customers, the Company is recongnized registration fee for the
transfer of houses or paids common area fee to the juristic person of house projects on behalf of
customers as net offsetting with revenue from sales.

- Costs to obtain a contract

The Company is recognized commission paid to obtain a customer contract as an asset
and amortised to expenses on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of revenue
recognition. An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of an asset
recognized exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that the entity expects to receive
less direct costs.

- Interest income is recognized on the effective interest rate.
6.17 Recognition of Cost of Sales

Cost of land and houses and condominium sold consist of cost of land, land improvement,
design fees, construction, public utilities and other related cost.

The Company is recognized cost of land and houses and condominium sold, the Company
allocates cost of the entire development anticipated to incur of each project (considering actual cost) to
land and houses add in accordance with selling area of each project and recognized as cost of sales in
percentage of sold area of each project.

Promotion expenses specified in the contracts with customers are given to customers when
they register the transfer of houses, including free of charge items are component parts of houses,
which are the main performance obligations under the contracts. Therefore, the Company is to record
these costs as costs of sales when the customers register the transfer of houses.

Selling expenses directly associated with projects, such as specific business tax and transfer
fee are recognized when sale incurred.

6.18 Recognition of Expenses
Expenses are recognized on accrual basis.
6.19 Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax Income tax expense is recognized
in profit or loss except to the extent that related to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
recognized directly in equity which will recognize in other comprehensive income or recognized

directly in equity as same as that items.
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Current Tax

Current tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation
authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation, using the tax
rates enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates
enacted at the end of reporting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the
extent that the related tax benefit will be realized.

6.20 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares held by outside shareholders outstanding during the year.

There is no calculation of the fully diluted earnings per share since it has no ordinary share
equivalents.

6.21 Appropriation of Retained Earnings

The appropriation of retained earnings is attributable to the Public Company Act B.E.
2535. The Company will appropriate the retained earnings when it is approved at the board of
directors meeting which will be reported to the shareholders’ meeting.

6.22 Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Company applies a
quoted market price in an active market to measure the assets and liabilities that are required to be
measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting standards. Except in case of no active market of
an identical asset or liability or when a quoted market price is not available, the Company will
measure fair value using valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and maximizes
the use of relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at
fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on categories of input

to be used in fair value measurement as follows:
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Level 1 in put are quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 in put are other observable inputs either directly or indirectly, for the assets or
liabilities other than quoted price included within Level 1 inputs.

Level 3 in put are unobservable inputs for the assets and liabilities.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group will determine the necessary of any transfers
between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting
period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

6.23 Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

In order to prepare the financial statements to comply with financial reporting standards,
the Company’s management had to make some judgment and estimates which may have an effect
on the amount shown in financial statements and notes to financial statements, therefore the
actual result may differ from the estimated amount. Significant estimates and provisions are as
follows:

Lease

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease,
the management is required to use judgment regarding whether significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the leased asset have been transferred, taking into consideration terms and
conditions of the arrangement.

Allowance for Doubtful Debts — Trade Account Receivables

In determining an allowance for doubtful debts, the management needs to make
judgment and estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of
outstanding debts and the prevailing economic condition.
Project Development Costs Estimation

In calculating cost of land and houses residential condominium units sold, the Company
have to estimate all project development costs, comprising land and land improvement costs,
design and construction costs, public utility costs and other related costs. The management
estimates these costs based on their business experience and revisit the estimations on a
periodical basis or when the actual costs incurred significantly vary from the estimated costs.
Property, Plant and Equipment, Land Held to Development and Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make
estimated useful lives and residual values of the Company’s plant and equipment and to review

estimated useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.
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In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment and
land held to development for impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses in
the period when it is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount.
This requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets
subject to the review.

Allowance for Impairment of Land Held for Development

The Company treat land held for development as impaired when the management judges
that there has been a significant decline in the fair value below their cost. The management
determines the devaluation of land held for development based on net recognized value. The
determination of what is “significant” and such devaluation requires the management to exercise
judgement.

Intangible Assets and Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, and are subject to
impairment if there is an indication they may be impaired.
Deferred Tax Assets

The management has to use judgment in the consideration to recognize deferred tax
assets by estimating the future taxable profit in each period and assess the probable that the
Company will have sufficient future taxable profit which can be utilized.

Post-Employment Benefits

The obligation under defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuations.
Inherent within these calculations are assumptions as to discount rates, future salary increases,
turnover rate, mortality rate and other demographic factors. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the management selects an interest rate that reflects the current economic situation,
and the mortality rate from mortality rate table which is publicized in Thailand. Actual post-
retirement costs may ultimately differ from these estimates.

Provision for Maintenance of Project Utilities
The Company estimates the contribution to the housing juristic persons using the rate

specified by the regulator and the budgeted public utilities costs as a basis for the calculation.
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7. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Consist of:
Consolidated Separate
Financial Statements Financial Statements
As at As at As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Baht Baht Baht Baht
(Restated)
Cash 7,113,848.83 3,936,494.31 7,082,101.33 3,900,434.31
Current Accounts Deposit 10,041,301.41 1,170,016.29 10,041,301.41 1,170,016.29
Savings Accounts Deposit 5,875,689.25 9,629,323.77 5,541,817.34 9,197,339.61
Cheque on Hand - 95,150,635.00 - 95,150,635.00
Total 23,030,839.49 109,886,469.37 22,665,220.08 109,418,425.21
As at 31 December 2018 the whole amount of cheque on hand were cashier cheque which the
Company is able to draw the money in full amount after the reporting date.
8. Other Current Receivables

Consist of:
Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements
As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Baht Baht
Prepaid Expenses 71,509,144.23 46,052,802.27
Advance Payment 8,926,943.15 11,479,008.37
Advance Payment for Goods 5,409,238.82 8,245,041.07
Others 2,833,815.25 1,499,807.75

Total 88,679,141.45 67,276,659.46
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9. Inventories

Consist of:

Finished Goods

Demonstration Land and
Houses for Sale

Land and Houses
Development in Progress
Land
Work in Construction
Deferred Borrowing Costs
Deferred Land Development Cost
Deferred Utilities
Work in Process — Furniture

Total

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at
31 December 2019

Baht

106,884,674.78
224,731,641.35

2,394,508,238.93
3,305,652,565.10
408,111,902.66
609,469,541.47
3,009,916,803.88

3,846,501.40

As at
31 December 2018

Baht

106,686,820.47
204,515,095.85

2,066,471,270.08
2,819,981,010.08
367,323,939.70
542,996,027.82
2,417,428,613.06

3,981,286.41

Separate Financial Statements

As at
31 December 2019

Baht

106,884,674.78
224,731,641.35

2,394,508,238.93
3,305,652,565.10
408,111,902.66
612,469,541.47
3,009,916,803.88

3,846,501.40

As at
31 December 2018

Baht

106,686,820.47
204,515,095.85

2,066,471,270.08
2,819,981,010.08
367,323,939.70
545,996,027.82
2,417,428,613.06

3,981,286.41

10,063,121,869.57

8,529,384,063.47

10,066,121,869.57

8,532,384,063.47

As at 31 December2019 and 2018, the Company had mortgaged land and construction, the carrying

amount in amount of Baht 4,299.48 million and in amount of Baht 3,757.79 million respectively, as collateral

against credit from financial institution as in Note 16.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company has capitalized the borrowing costs as

development in progress in amount of Baht 96.75 million and Baht 79.00 million, respectively, which it is the

borrowing costs that are incurred from the borrowing for the project development.

10. Investments Held as Available-for-Sale

Consist of®

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2019

Baht

As at

Baht

31 December 2018

Separate Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2019

Baht

Bualuang Thanatavee Open Fund — Cost 101,396,594.74

Add Unrealized Gain on Remeasuring 27,304.90

426,285,329.36
463,124.14

100,677,087.32

1,779.74

As at
31 December 2018
Baht
425,565,821.94
446,553.08

Bualuang Thanatavee Open Fund — Fair Value ~ 101,423,899.64

426,748,453.50

100,678,867.06

426,012,375.02
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, investments held as available-for-sale has

movement as follows:

Beginning Carrying Amount
Purchase During the Year
Disposal During the Year
Changes in Fair Value
Recognized in Profit for the Year
Recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income (Expense)

Ending Carrying Amount

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended
31 December 2019
Baht

426,748,453.50
1,065,000,000.00

(1,392,000,000.00)

2,111,265.38

(435,819.24)

For the year ended
31 December 2018
Baht

31,267,283.06
1,885,000,000.00

(1,491,000,000.00)

1,027,872.93

453,297.51

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended
31 December 2019
Baht

426,012,375.02
1,065,000,000.00

(1,392,000,000.00)

2,111,265.38

(444,773.34)

For the year ended
31 December 2018
Baht

30,537,912.28
1,885,000,000.00

(1,491,000,000.00)

1,027,872.93

446,589.81

101,423,899.64

426,748,453.50

100,678,867.06

426,012,375.02

The fair value measurement of investments held as available-for-sale which are investments in

opened-end mutual fund using the net asset value that disseminated by the fund as at the date of statement

of financial position which are Level 1 inputs.

11. Investments in Subsidiary

Consist of*

Separate Financial Statements

Name of Entities ~ Nature of business Paid-up Investment Cost Method Dividend Income
Share Capital ratio As at As at For the year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
Million Baht % Baht Baht Baht Baht
(Restated)
Prosper Property Property development
Co., Ltd. for sales 20,000,000.00 99.98 19,996,000.00 19,996,000.00 - -
Prosper Pecast Property development
Co., Ltd. for sales 5,000,000.00 99.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 - -

24,996,000.00 24,996,000.00 - -
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12. Land Held to Development

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, Land held to development has movement as

follows:
Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements
As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Baht Baht
Beginning Balance 830,686,035.03 839,869,385.03
Purchase during the year 138,492,350.00 561,571,102.00
Sale during the year - -
Transfer during the year (201,094,250.00) (570,754,452.00)

Ending Balance 768,084,135.03 830,686,035.03
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As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had mortgaged land and building of head
office, the carrying amount in amount of Baht 41.33 million equally for both periods, as collateral

against credit from financial institutions as in Note 16.

14. Deferred Income Tax
Deferred income taxes are calculated in full on temporary differences, using the liability
method and applying a principal tax rate of 20%. The deferred taxation related to the temporary
differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities of the Company

are summarised belows:

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at Recognized Recognized As at
31 December 2018 in Profit (Loss) in Other 31 December 2019
for the year Comprehensive

Income (Expense)

Baht Baht Baht Baht
Deferred Tax Assets
Inventories 16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
Estimate Repair Cost - 1,400,000.00 - 1,400,000.00
Non- Current Provisions of
Employee Benefit 7,195,980.88 3,544,610.60 (33,478.40) 10,707,113.08
Total 7,212,543.00 4,944,610.60 (33,478.40) 12,123,675.20
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Investments Held as Available-for-Sale (92,624.82) - 87,163.85 (5,460.97)
Total (92,624.82) - 87,163.85 (5,460.97)

Net 7,119,918.18 4,944,610.60 53,685.45 12,118,214.23
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As at

31 December 2017

Consolidated Financial Statements

Recognized
in Profit (Loss)

for the year

Recognized
in Other
Comprehensive

Income (Expense)

As at

31 December 2018

Baht Baht Baht Baht
Deferred Tax Assets
Inventories 16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
Investments Held as Available-for-Sale 7.35 - (7.35) -
Non- Current Provisions of
Employee Benefit 6,113,962.88 1,073,097.00 8,921.00 7,195,980.88
Total 6,130,532.35 1,073,097.00 8,913.65 7,212,543.00
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Investments Held as Available-for-Sale (1,972.67) - (90,652.15) (92,624.82)
Total (1,972.67) - (90,652.15) (92,624.82)
Net 6,128,559.68 1,073,097.00 (81,738.50) 7,119,918.18
Separate Financial Statements
As at Recognized Recognized As at
31 December 2018 in Profit (Loss) in Other 31 December 2019
for the year Comprehensive

Income (Expense)

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Deferred Tax Assets

Inventories 16,562.12 - - 16,562.12

Estimate Repair Cost - 1,400,000.00 - 1,400,000.00

Non- Current Provisions of

Employee Benefit 7,195,980.88 3,544,610.60 (33,478.40) 10,707,113.08

Total 7,212,543.00 4,944,610.60 (33,478.40) 12,123,675.20
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Investments Held as Available-for-Sale (89,310.61) - 88,954.67 (355.94)

Total (89,310.61) - 88,954.67 (355.94)

Net 7,123,232.39 4,944,610.60 55,476.27 12,123,319.26
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Separate Financial Statements

As at Recognized

31 December 2017 in Profit (Loss)

for the year

Recognized As at
in Other 31 December 2018
Comprehensive

Income (Expense)

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Deferred Tax Assets

Inventories 16,562.12 - - 16,562.12

Investments Held as Available-for-Sale 7.35 - (7.35) -

Non- Current Provisions of

Employee Benefit 6,113,962.88 1,073,097.00 8,921.00 7,195,980.88

Total 6,130,532.35 1,073,097.00 8,913.65 7,212,543.00
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Investments Held as Available-for-Sale - - (89,310.61) (89,310.61)

Total - - (89,310.61) (89,310.61)

Net 6,130,532.35 1,073,097.00 (80,396.96) 7,123,232.39

15. Other Non-Current Assets

Consist of:
Consolidated Financial Statements
As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Baht Baht
Deposit 4,397,601.47 6,096,790.23
Deposit for Land 66,600,000.00 74,650,000.00
Electric Insurance 6,925,730.27 5,072,604.70
Employee loans 2,000,000.00 -
Other 590,152.41 504,067.41

Separate Financial Statements
As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Baht Baht
4,397,601.47 6,096,790.23

66,600,000.00 74,650,000.00

6,925,730.27 5,072,604.70
2,000,000.00 -
590,125.05 504,040.05

Total 80,513,484.15 86,323,462.34

80,513,456.79 86,323,434.98

16. Credit Facility and Guarantee

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has credits in form of letter of guarantee in amount

of Baht 2,890.90 million, credits in form of the promissory note in amount of Baht 1,072.30 million,

credits in form of overdrafts in amount of Baht 85.00 million and credits in form of long-term

borrowings in amount of Baht 1,015.50 million, the Company had mortgaged land and construction as

in Note 9 and 13 as collateral.
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As at 31 December 2018, the Company has credits in form of letter of guarantee in amount of

Baht 1,368.00 million, credits in form of the promissory note in amount o

f Baht 980.10 million, credits

in form of overdrafts in amount of Baht 85.00 million and credits in form of long-term borrowings in

amount of Baht 925.00 million, the Company had mortgaged land and construction as in Note 9 and 13

as collateral.

17. Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

As at
31 December 2018
Baht

19,415,326.57

Consist of:
As at
31 December 2019
Baht
Overdrafts 411,790.21
Bill of Exchange 450,000,000.00
Total 450,411,790.21

19,415,326.57

As at 31 December 2019, short-term borrowings from the financial institution in amount of

Baht 450.00 million, respectively as in form of bill of exchange which has maturity in 124-182 days

respectively, carried the interest rate of 1.83-1.85 percent per year

18. Trade and Other Current Payables

Consist of:
Consolidated Financial Statements
As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Baht Baht
(Restated)
Trade Payables 136,329,869.01 89,514,488.41
Other Current Payables 327,809,038.14 296,766,421.21

Separate Financial Statements
As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Baht Baht

136,329,869.01 89,514,488.41
328,428,270.97 297,025,391.56

Total 464,138,907.15 386,280,909.62

464,758,139.98 386,539,879.97
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As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, other current payables as follows:

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2019

Accrued Expenses
Accrued Interest
Retention Payable
Deferred Revenues
Cheque Payables
Others

Baht

273,583,705.72
13,213,436.67
14,982,322.93
2,685,000.00
1,120,725.63
22,223,847.19

As at

31 December 2018

Baht

(Restated)
205,429,724.22
14,952,712.32
21,938,335.51
7,473,799.00
29,759,595.08
17,212,255.08

Separate Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2019

Baht

273,571,705.72
13,844,669.50
14,982,322.93
2,685,000.00
1,120,725.63
22,223,847.19

As at

31 December 2018

Baht

205,417,461.72
15,223,945.17
21,938,335.51
7,473,799.00
29,759,595.08
17,212,255.08

Total

327,809,038.14

296,766,421.21

328,428,270.97

297,025,391.56

19. Provision of Liabilities

Consist of:

Short-Term Provisions for

Construction Cost of Project Utilities

Long-Term Provisions for
Maintenance of Project Utilities

Total

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2019

Baht

764,891,084.23

166,604,222.68

31 December 2018

540,147,615.39

140,111,260.46

931,495,306.91

680,258,875.85

Long-term provisions for maintenance of project utilities are provisions for guarantee the

maintenance of project utilities according to the Land Allocation Act B.E. 2000 in the rate of 7% from

estimated construction cost of project utilities which the Company will settle such provision to

housing juristic person to spend in the maintenance of project utilities when the housing juristic

person has been established according to the Land Allocation Act B.E. 2000.
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20. Debenture

Consist of:

Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures

Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures
Total

Less Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses

Carrying Amount

Less Current Portion

Net

No.

No.

No.

No.

No.

No.

No.

No.

No.

No.

No.

No.

1/2016
2/2016
3/2016
1/2017
2/2017
3/2017
1/2018
2/2018
3/2018
4/2018
1/2019

2/2019

Consolidated/ Separate

Financial Statements

As at
31 December 2019

Baht

500,000,000.00

70,000,000.00
370,000,000.00
500,000,000.00

As at
31 December 2018

Baht
300,000,000.00
200,000,000.00
300,000,000.00
500,000,000.00

70,000,000.00
370,000,000.00
500,000,000.00

100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00
400,000,000.00 400,000,000.00
500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
200,000,000.00 -
300,000,000.00 -
2,940,000,000.00 3,240,000,000.00
(2,952,689.98) (3,661,820.41)
2,937,047,310.02 3,236,338,179.59

(939,871,754.54)

(799,803,120.25)

1,997,175,555.48

2,436,535,059.34
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, Debenture has movement as follows:
Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Baht Baht
Beginning Balance 3,236,338,179.59 2,698,271,116.08
Issued Debenture During for the Period 500,000,000.00 1,500,000,000.00
Repayment During for the Period (800,000,000.00) (960,000,000.00)
Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses (802,500.00) (3,369,999.99)
Amortization of Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses 1,511,630.43 1,437,063.50
Ending Balance 2,937,047,310.02 3,236,338,179.59

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, debentures are classified by redemption maturity as

follows:

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Baht Baht
Less than 1 year 940,000,000.00 800,000,000.00
More than 1 year but less than 5 years 2,000,000,000.00 2,440,000,000.00
Total 2,940,000,000.00 3,240,000,000.00

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, totally debentures was unsubordinated secured and holder name
definable debentures. The maturity of debentures for 2 years to 5 years from issued date with interest rate
is 2.95-4.50 per year, the fair value in amount of Baht 2,983.24 million and Baht 3,248.87 million
respectively, Hereby, the fair value measurement of debentures using the value that disseminated by the
Thai Bond Market Association as at the date of statement of financial position which are Level 2 inputs.

The Company have to maintain the debt to equity ratio not exceeding 2:1 equally for two the year.
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21. Non-Current Provisions for Employee Benefits

Non-Current Provisions for Employee Benefits has detail as follows:

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Non-Current Provisions for Employee Benefits at Beginning

of Year
Included in Profit or Loss:
Past Service Costs
Current Service Cost

Interest Expenses

Included in Other Comprehensive Income:

Gain (Loss) on Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans

Experience Adjustments

Paid Employee Benefits During the Year

243

Non-Current Provisions for Employee Benefits at

End of Year

Baht Baht
35,979,904.30 30,569,814.30
10,504,426.00 -

7,256,853.00 5,088,901.00
1,205,474.00 809,584.00

(167,392.00) 44,605.00
(1,243,700.00) (533,000.00)

53,535,565.30 35,979,904.30

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the weighted average duration of the non-current

provisions for employee benefits is 8 years and 9 years respectively.

The key assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuation are summarized as

follows:

Discount rate
Average salary increase rate
Turnover rate

Retirement age

Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
2.65% per annum 2.65% per annum
6.00% - 7.00% per annum 6.00% - 7.00% per annum

15.00 - 30.00% per annum 15.00 — 30.00% per annum

55 and 60 year 55 and 60 year
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Sensitivity Analysis
Reasonably possible changes to each relevant actuarial assumption, holding other assumptions

constant, would have affected non-current provisions for employee benefit which are summarized as

follows:
Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements
As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Baht Baht
Mortality rate
Rate increase 1.00% (490,180.00) (400,488.00)
Rate decrease 1.00% 446,451.00 365,196.00
Discount rate
Rate increase 1.00% (2,990,220.00) (2,109,069.00)
Rate decrease 1.00% 3,358,710.00 2,352,589.00
Average salary increase rate
Rate increase 1.00% 4,133,670.00 2,561,729.00
Rate decrease 1.00% (4,583,248.00) (2,813,064.00)
Turnover Rate
Rate increase 10.00% (1,650,261.00) (978,728.00)
Rate decrease 10.00% 1,384,108.00 821,313.00

Although this analysis does not take into account the full distribution of expected cash flows
under the said project But showing estimates of sensitivity of various assumptions

On 5 April 2019, Thailand has enacted the new labour protection law which will be effective

on 5 May 2019 that requires the Company has to make the severance pay to the employee with the

completion to 20 years or more of employment, which not less than 400 days of last wage rate. The

Company have amend the plan on 31 March 2019 which affect the defined benefit obligations as at

31 December 2019 increase in amount of Baht 10.50 million.
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22. Share Capital

Consist of:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Par Value Number of Share Amount Par Value Number of Share Amount
Baht Share Baht Baht Share Baht

Authorized Share Capital

Beginning Ordinary Shares 1.00 925,000,000 925,000,000.00 1.00 925,000,000 925,000,000.00
Ending Ordinary Shares 1.00 925,000,000 925,000,000.00 1.00 925,000,000 925,000,000.00
Issued and Paid-up Share Capital

Beginning Ordinary Shares 1.00 924,999,441 924,999,441.00 1.00 924,999,441 924,999,441.00
Ending Ordinary Share 1.00 924,999,441 924,999,441.00 1.00 924,999,441 924,999,441.00

23. Legal Reserve

24.

In accordance with the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the company must allocate a

portion of its annual net profit as legal reserve not less than five percent of the annual net profit less

any accumulated losses brought forward (if any) until this reserve has Not less than ten percent of the

registered capital

Dividends Payment

241

242

243

In accordance with the Minute of the Board of Directors Meeting, held on 14 August 2019, it had
passed a resolution to pay a dividend of Baht 0.175 per share from the Company’s performance
in before half year (on 1 January 2019 to 30 June 2019) totaling Baht 161.87 million to be paid
within on 13 September 2019.

In accordance with the Minute of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2019, held on
24 April 2019, it had passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit for 2018 to pay
cash dividend at the rate of Baht 0.34 per share, totaling of Baht 314.50 million which the
Company had already paid the interim dividend payment at the rate of Baht 0.165 per share,
totaling of Baht 152.62 million on 7 September 2018, and will pay the final payment at the rate
of Baht 0.175 per share, totaling of Baht 161.88 million, will be paid on 10 May 2019.

In accordance with the Minute of the Board of Directors Meeting, held on 10 August 2018, it had
passed a resolution to pay a dividend of Baht 0.165 per share from the Company’s performance
in before half year (on 1 January 2018 to 30 June 2018) totaling Baht 152.62 million to be paid

within on 7 September 2018.
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244 In accordance with the Minute of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2018, held on
25 April 2018, it had passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit for 2017 to pay
dividend totaling of Baht 277.50 million which the Company had already paid the interim
dividend payment of Baht 0.135 per share, totaling of Baht 124.87 million on 8 September 2017,
and will pay the final payment at Baht 0.165 per share, totaling of Baht 152.63 million, paid on
11 May 2018.

25. Capital Management
The objectives of the Company’s capital management are to maintain its abilities to continue as
a going concern and to maintain an appropriate capital structure.
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the consolidated financial statements present debt to equity
ratio as 0.72 :1 and 0.74:1, respectively and separate financial statements present debt to equity ratio as

0.76:1 and 0.74:1, respectively.

26. Revenue from Sale

Consist of:
Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Baht Baht
Revenue from Sale 4,653,805,529.90 4,099,888,884.83
Discount (30,769,241.90) (17,824,668.83)

Net 4,623,036,288.00 4,082,064,216.00
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27. Income Tax (Expense) Revenue

27.1 Income tax which is recognized in the profit for the year consist of:

Current tax

Income Tax (Expense) Revenue for the Current Year
Deferred tax

Deferred Income Tax (Expense) Revenue
Income Tax (Expense) Revenue with is

Recognized in Profit for the Year

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Bath Bath Bath Bath
(235,525,467.78)  (196,323,807.37)  (235,460,290.80)  (196,257,218.11)
4,944,610.60 1,073,097.00 4,944,610.60 1,073,097.00
(230,580,857.18)  (195,250,710.37)  (230,515,680.20)  (195,184,121.11)

The differences between income tax (expense) revenue which were calculated from accounting

profit at the tax rate for year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 in 20%, equally, can be presented as

follows:

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended

31 December 2019

Profit before Income Tax

Baht

1,122,095,691.64

For the year ended
31 December 2018
Baht
(Restated)

972,397,582.75

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Baht

1,121,769,806.73

Baht

972,067,643.18

Income Tax (Expense) Revenue calculated
at the Tax Rate of 20%

Expenses that are not Deductible for Income Tax

(224,419,138.33)
(6,161,718.85)

(194,479,516.55)
(771,193.82)

(224,353,961.35)

(6,161,718.85)

(194,413,528.64)

(770,592.47)

Income Tax (Expense) Revenue which is recognized

in the profit for the year

(230,580,857.18)

(195,250,710.37)

(230,515,680.20)

(195,184,121.11)
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27.2 Tax (Expense) Income which is recognized in other comprehensive income (expense) consist of:

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined
Benefit Plans

Total

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined
Benefit Plans

Total

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined
Benefit Plans

Total

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined
Benefit Plans

Total

Amount Income Tax Net of Tax
Before Tax (Expense) Revenue
Baht Baht Baht

(435,819.24) 87,163.85 (348,655.39)
167,392.00 (33,478.40) 133,913.60
(268,427.24) 53,685.45 214,741.79
453,297.51 (90,659.50) 362,638.01
(44,605.00) 8,921.00 (35,684.00)
408,692.51 (81,738.50) 326,954.01
Separate Financial Statements
Amount Income Tax Net of Tax
Before Tax (Expense) Revenue
Baht Baht Baht

(444,773.34) 88,954.67 (355,818.67)
167,392.00 (33,478.40) 133,913.60
(277,381.34) 55,476.27 (221,905.07)
446,589.81 (89,317.96) 357,271.85
(44,605.00) 8,921.00 (35,684.00)
401,984.81 80,396.96 321,587.85
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28.

29.

30.

Provident Fund

The Company established a contributory registered provident fund in accordance with the

Provident Fund Act.B.E. 1987, which comprise of the employees’ contribution to the fund minimum

5% of their basic salary and the Company also contribute to the fund at 5%. The provident fund is

managed Provident Fund. The benefit will be paid to the employees whom retire in accordance to the

fund’s regulations.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group has paid contribution to provident

fund in the amount of Baht 4.56 million and Baht 4.10 million, respectively.

Earnings Per Share

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company has calculated basic earnings

per share by dividing profit for the year with the weighted average number during the year of ordinary

shares as follows:

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended

31 December 2019

Baht
Profit (Loss) for the Year 891,511,834.46
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary
Share During the Year (Shares) 924,999,441
Basic Earnings (Loss) per Share 0.96

Expenses by Nature

Consist of:

Change in Finished Goods and Work in Construction

Construction Materials Used and Construction Other Expenses
Employees Expense

Depreciation and Amortization

Management Remuneration Expenses

Specific Business Tax and Transfer Fee

Billboard Rental Expenses

Selling Promotion Expense

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2018 31 December 2019

Baht Baht
777,146,872.38 891,254,126.53
924,999,441 924,999,441
0.84 0.96

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended
31 December 2018
Baht

776,883,522.07

924,999,441

0.84

Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended
31 December 2019

Baht

(506,085,954.83)

3,158,651,580.98
296,120,730.24

50,987,606.36
50,975,502.55

174,471,387.50

75,291,448.55

141,911,677.71

For the year ended
31 December 2018
Baht
(Restated)

(77,358,553.66)
2,392,022,798.90
264,560,982.92
61,15547447
38,564,999.85
156,978,269.00
66,730419.12

158,967,154.93
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31. Segment Information

32.

The Company and subsidiary operates in only one main sector, namely business of real estate

development in type of allotted house for sale and operate in one geographic which is Thailand. Thus all

income profit and assets as shown on the financial statements were related to the business sector and

geographical area as already said and for the year 2019 and 2018, the Company have no major customer

with revenue of 10 percent or more of the Company’s revenues in the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Instruments

32.1 Financial Risk Management Policy

The Group is not hold or issue financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

32.2 Interest Rate Risk

Risk on interest is derived from fluctuation of interest rate in the future which affect the

financial performance and cash flows of Company. The company had assets and liabilities

which is exposed for interest rate risk as follows:

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Liabilities
Overdrafts

Bill of Exchange

Debenture

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Liabilities
Overdrafts

Debenture

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2019

Floating Fixed Non-interest Total
Interest Rate Interest Rates bearing
5,875,689.25 - 17,155,150.24 23,030,839.49
411,790.21 - - 411,790.21
- 450,000,000.00 - 450,000,000.00
- 2,940,000,000.00 - 2,940,000,000.00

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2018

Floating Fixed Non-interest Total
Interest Rate Interest Rates bearing
9,629,323.77 - 100,257,145.60 109,886,469.37
19,415,326.57 - - 19,415,326.57

- 3,240,000,000.00 - 3,240,000,000.00

Interest Rates

(%)

0.05-2.25

6.95

1.83-1.85
2.95-4.50

Interest Rates

(%)

0.50-2.25

7.12-7.20
3.25-4.50
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Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Liabilities
Overdrafts

Bill of Exchange
Long-Term Borrowings

Debenture

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Liabilities
Overdrafts

Long-Term Borrowings

Debenture

32.3 Credit Risk

Floating

Interest Rate

5,541,817.34

411,790.21

Floating

Interest Rate

9,197,339.61

19,415,326.57

Separate Financial Statements

Fixed

Interest Rates

450,000,000.00
18,000,000.00

2,940,000,000.00

Non-interest

bearing

17,123,402.74

5,000,000.00

As at 31 December 2019

Total

22,665,220.08

411,790.21
450,000,000.00
23,000,000.00

2,940,000,000.00

Separate Financial Statements

Fixed

Interest Rates

18,000,000.00

3,240,000,000.00

Non-interest

bearing

100,221,085.60

5,000,000.00

As at 31 December 2018

Total

109,418,425.21

19,415,326.57
23,000,000.00

3,240,000,000.00

Interest Rates

(%)

0.05-2.25

6.95
1.83-1.85
2.00

3.25-4.50

Interest Rates

(%)

0.05-2.25

7.12-7.20

2.00

3.25-4.50

The Group constitutes low risk from credit provision since given the sale of property is

sale which determined that liability from customers is fully repayable before the delivery of

property is fulfilled.

32.4 Fair Value

Owing to mainly financial assets and financial liabilities were classified as short-term

type and several borrowings have an interest rate nearby the market rate, thence the management

of the Company believes that the fair value of such financial assets and liabilities do not

materially differ from the carrying amount.
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32.5 Fair Value Hierarchy

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group has financial assets which are recognized at

fair value are categorized by the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2019
Non Current Financial Asset
Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale
As at 31 December 2018
Non Current Financial Asset
Investments Held as

Available-for-Sale

Fair Value
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Amount Inputs Inputs Inputs Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

101,423,899.64

426,748,453.50

101,423,899.64

426,748,453.50

Separate Financial Statements

101,423,899.64

426,748,453.50

Fair Value
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Amount Inputs Inputs Inputs Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
As at 31 December 2019
Non Current Financial Asset
Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale 100,678,867.06 100,678,867.06 - - 100,678,867.06
As at 31 December 2018
Non Current Financial Asset
Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale 426,012,375.02 426,012,375.02 - - 426,012,375.02
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As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group has financial long term liabilities which have fair

value disclosures are categorized by the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements

Fair Value
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Amount Inputs Inputs Inputs Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

As at 31 December 2019
Current Financial Liability
Bill of Exchange 450,000,000.00 -

Non Current Financial Liability

Debenture 2,940,000,000.00 -
As at 31 December 2018
Non Current Financial Liability

Debenture 3,240,000,000.00 -

33. Transactions with Related Parties

447,578,865.50

2,983,240,330.50

3,248,874,696.20

447,578,865.50

2,983,240,330.50

3,248,874,696.20

The Company has significant business transactions with the related parties. Such transactions,

which have been concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Company and

those related parties are in ordinary course of business, which are summarized as follows:

33.1 Relationship with the Company
Name
Prosper Property Co., Ltd.
Prosper Precast Co., Ltd.

Related Persons

33.2 Inter-transactions

Pricing Policies
Annual Interest Rate
Inter-Transaction with Subsidiary

Interest Expense at 2.00%

Nature of Relationship

Subsidiary by direct shareholding
Subsidiary by direct shareholding

Director of the Company

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended

31 December 2019

Baht

359,999.98

For the year ended

31 December 2018

Baht

367,945.18
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33.3. Inter-outstanding balances

Long-Term Borrowings
Subsidiary
Beginning Balance
Increase During the Period
Decrease During the Period
Ending Balance
Related Person
Beginning Balance
Increase During the Period
Decrease During the Period
Ending Balance
Less Long - Term Loan to
Related Person
Net
Accrued Interest

Subsidiary

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2019

As at

31 December 2018

Separate Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2019

As at

31 December 2018

Baht Baht Baht Baht
- - 18,000,000.00 19,000,000.00
- - - (1,000,000.00)
- - 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00
5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00

(4,900,000.00) (4,900,000.00) - -

100,000.00 100,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
- - 631,232.83 271,232.85

33.4 Key Management Personnel Remuneration

Short-Term Employee Benefits
Post-Employee Benefits
- Defined Contribution Plans
- Defined Benefit Plans

Total

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended

31 December 2019

Baht

39,507,380.00

1,722,568.55
9,745,554.00

For the year ended

31 December 2018

Baht

34,245,452.00

1,601,277.85
2,718,270.00

50,975,502.55

38,564,999.85
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34. Cash Flows Information

34.1 Non-Cash Flow Transactions

Consist of:

Transfer Land Held to Development to be Inventories

Transfer Deposit to be Land to Inventories
Transfer assets to be Inventories
Amortized Debenture Issuance Expenses

to be Inventories

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Investments Held as

Available-for-Sale

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Baht Baht

201,094,250.00 570,754,452.00

Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Baht Baht

201,094,250.00 570,754,452.00

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined that

will be Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

(Expenxe)

34.2 Changes in Liabilities arising from Financing Activities

74,650,000.00 1,200,000.00 74,650,000.00 1,200,000.00
2,680,620.26 2,273,858.68 2,680,620.26 2,273,858.68
1,511,630.43 1,437,063.50 1,511,630.43 1,437,063.50
(435,819.24) 453,297.51 (444,773.34) 446,589.81
167,392.00 (44,605.00) 167,392.00 (44,605.00)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities have the movements as follows:

Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings
from Financial Institutions
Debenture
- Current
- Non Current
Accrued Interest
Accrued Dividend

Total

As at
1 January 2019
Baht

19,415,326.57

799,803,120.25
2,436,535,059.34
14,952,712.32
776,236.09

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Changes from
Financing Cash Flows

Baht

430,996,463.64

(800,000,000.00)
499,197,500.00
(25,989,343.33)

(323,376,999.77)

Other Changes

Baht

940,068,634.29
(938,557,003.86)
24,250,067.68
323,749,458.76

As at
31 December 2019

Baht

450,411,790.21

939,871,754.54
1,997,175,555.48
13,213,436.67
1,148,695.08

3,271,482,454.57

(219,172,379.46)

349,511,156.87

3,401,821,231.98
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Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from
Financial Institutions

Debenture
- Current
- Non Current

Liabilities under Finance Lease Agreements
- Current

Accrued Interest

Accrued Dividend

Total

Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from
Financial Institutions
Long Term Borrowings from Subsidiary
Debenture
- Current
- Non Current
Accrued Interest
Accrued Dividend

Total

As at
1 January 2018

Baht

476,072,188.06

959,628,760.26
1,738,642,355.82

12,840.00
13,293,315.12

419,954.14

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Changes from

Financing Cash Flows

Baht

(456,656,861.49)

(960,000,000.00)
1,496,630,000.01

(12,840.00)
(19,892,227.25)
(304,892,118.96)

Other Changes

Baht

800,174,359.99

(798,737,296.49)

21,551,624.45

305,248,400.91

As at
31 December 2018

Baht

19,415,326.57

799,803,120.25
2,436,535,059.34

14,952,712.32

776,236.09

3,188,069,413.40

(244,824,047.69)

328,237,088.86

3,271,482,454.57

As at
1 January 2019
Baht

19,415,326.57
18,000,000.00

799,803,120.25
2,436,535,059.34
15,223,945.17
776,236.09

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Changes from

Financing Cash Flows

Baht

430,996,463.64

(800,000,000.00)
499,197,500.00
(25,989,343.33)

(323,376,999.77)

Other Changes

Baht

940,068,634.29

(938,557,003.86)
24,610,067.66
323,749,458.76

As at
31 December 2019

Baht

450,411,790.21
18,000,000.00

939,871,754.54
1,997,175,555.48
13,844,669.50
1,148,695.08

3,289,753,687.42

(219,172,379.46)

349,511,156.87

3,420,452,464.81
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35.

Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from
Financial Institutions

Long Term Borrowings from Subsidiary

Debenture
- Current
- Non Current

Liabilities under Finance Lease Agreements
- Current

Accrued Interest

Accrued Dividend

Total

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

As at Changes from Other Changes
1 January 2018 Financing Cash Flows
Baht Baht Baht

476,072,188.06

19,000,000.00

959,628,760.26
1,738,642,355.82

12,840.00
13,303,726.07
419,954.14

(456,656,861.49)
(1,000,000.00)

(960,000,000.00)
1,496,630,000.01

(12,840.00)
(19,999,350.53)
(304,892,118.96)

800,174,359.99

(798,737,296.49)

21,919,569.63
305,248,400.91

As at
31 December 2018

Baht

19,415,326.57
18,000,000.00

799,803,120.25
2,436,535,059.34

15,223,945.17
776,236.09

3,207,079,824.35

(245,931,170.97)

328,605,034.04

3,289,753,687.42

Obligations from Project Development on Hand

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, number of project development on hand have

Change as follows:

Number of Closed Projects

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended

31 December 2019

Beginning Number of Projects on Hand 50 48
(%) &)
10 7

Number of New Projects

For the year ended

31 December 2018

Ending Number of Projects on Hand 55 50




258 Lalin Property Public Company Limited Annual Report 2019

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company has commitment to payment for construct in
accordance with several contracts of project construction as follows:
Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements
As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Million Baht Million Baht

Remaining Amount of Contracted Construction 1,382.30 920.88

36. Obligations
In addition to the liabilities presented in the statements of financial position as at 31 December

2019 and 2018, the Company has obligations as follows:

36.1 Bank Guarantee, as follows:
Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Million Baht Million Baht

Bank Guarantee 1,606.19 1,236.99

36.2 As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company constitutes obligation from hiring security for
the headoftice and real estate of the Company. The obligation to pay under the agreement is in

amount of Baht 31.86 million and Baht 27.84 million, respectively.
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37. Correction of Accounting Errors for Prior Period

The Company has corrected the accounting errors of consolidated and separate financial

statement for prior period about the preparation of consolidated and the transactions are not

recognized investment in subsidiary which the Company has investment in 2012, by retroactive

restatement as if such errors had never occurred, which affects the financial statements as follows:

Consolidated Financial Statements

As previously

reported
Baht
Statement of Financial Position As at 1 January 2018
Cash and Cash Equivalents 49,666,427.03
Trade and Other Current Payables 344,990,455.49

Long-Term Borrowings from Related Person - Net -
Unappropriated Retained Earnings 4,007,313,852.15
Statement of Financial Position As at 31 December 2018

Cash and Cash Equivalents 109,852,469.37
Trade and Other Current Payables 386,277,909.62
Long-Term Borrowings from Related Person - Net -

Unappropriated Retained Earnings 4,479,179,639.62

Adjustment

Baht

37,000.00
3,000.00
100,000.00

(66,000.00)

34,000.00
3,000.00
100,000.00

(69,000.00)

As Restated

Baht

49,703,427.03
344,993,455.49
100,000.00

4,007,247,852.15

109,886,469.37
386,280,909.62
100,000.00

4,479,110,639.62

Separate Financial Statements

As previously
reported
Baht
Statement of Financial Position As at 1 January 2018
Investments in Subsidiaries

19,996,000.00

Long-Term Borrowings from Related Person -

Statement of Financial Position As at 31 December 2018
Investments in Subsidiaries 19,996,000.00

Long-Term Borrowings from Related Person -

Adjustment

Baht

5,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

As Restated

Baht

24,996,000.00

5,000,000.00

24,996,000.00

5,000,000.00
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38. Reclassification

The Company has reclassified some items in the consolidated and separate financial
statements for prior period which presented as comparative so as to comply with the classification of
the consolidated and separate financial statements for current period, which does not have any effects
on profit for the period or shareholder’s equity already presented, are summarized as follows:

Consolidated Financial Statements
As previously reported Reclassification As currently reported
Baht Baht Baht
Statement of Financial Position As at 31 December 2018
Inventories 8,527,923,513.47 1,460,550.00 8,529,384,063.47

Other Non-Current Assets 87,784,012.34 (1,460,550.00) 86,323,462.34

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2018
Distribution Costs (2,464,197,011.86) (9,719,979.17) (2,473,916,991.03)

Administrative Expenses (275,246,385.40) 9,719,979.17 (265,526,406.23)

Separate Financial Statements
As previously reported Reclassification As currently reported
Baht Baht Baht
Statement of Financial Position As at 31 December 2018
Inventories 8,530,923,513.47 1,460,550.00 8,532,384,063.47

Other Non-Current Assets 87,783,984.98 (1,460,550.00) 86,323,434.98

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2018
Distribution Costs (2,464,197,011.86) (9,719,979.17) (2,473,916,991.03)

Administrative Expenses (275,246,385.40) 9,719,979.17 (265,526,406.23)
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39.

40.

Events After the Reporting Period

In accordance with the Minute of the Board of Directors Meeting, held on 26 February 2020, it
had passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit for 2019 to pay dividend totaling of Baht
356.12 million which the Company had already paid the interim dividend payment of Baht 0.175 per
share, totaling of Baht 161.87 million on 13 September 2019, and will pay the final payment at Baht 0.21
per share, totaling of Baht 194.25 million, will be paid on 8 May 2020 However, it will be further
proposed for the shareholders’ approval in the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders for fiscal year

2020.

Approval of the Financial Statements
These financial statements have been approved to issue by the Board of the Company on 26

February 2020.
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